
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical Center 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, June 19, 2019 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD TO RECONVENE 
 
 Board Members:  Alsop, Berjis, Bigler, Brar, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 

Roll Call: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED 
WITH A "CA" ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL 
BY KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY STAFF. THE "CA" REPRESENTS THE 
CONSENT AGENDA. CONSENT ITEMS WILL BE CONSIDERED FIRST AND MAY 
BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR AUDIENCE 
WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS 
DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT 
AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN LISTED SEQUENCE WITH AN 
OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  6.19.19 
 

Page | 2  

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter not on 
this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond briefly to 
statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral 
to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the Board at a later meeting. In 
addition, the Board may take action to direct the staff to place a matter of business on a future 
agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR 
NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on their own 

activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to 
have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government Code section 
54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
PUBLIC REQUEST 

 
3) Request of JJ’s Legacy to present a ‘Donate Life’ plaque for display at the Kern Medical Center 

flag pole –  
MAKE PRESENTATION 

 
RECOGNITION 

 
4) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing the ‘Association of Kern County Nurse 

Leaders - 2019 RN of the Year’ nominees from Kern Medical Center –  
MAKE PRESENTATION 

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
CA 
5) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on  

May 15, 2019 –  
APPROVE 

 
CA 
6) Proposed approval of the Kern Medical Center Policy and Procedures Manual – 

APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN SIGNATURE PAGE 
 

CA 
7) Proposed Agreement with Mikhail Bekarev, M.D., a contract employee, for professional 

medical services in the Department of Surgery from August 17, 2019 through August 16, 2022, 
in an amount not to exceed $2,762,500, plus applicable benefits –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
CA 
8) Proposed Agreement with Michael J. Eagan, M.D., a contract employee, for professional 

medical services in the Department of Surgery from July 17, 2019 through July 16, 2022, in an 
amount not to exceed $3,300,000, plus applicable benefits –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  6.19.19 
 

Page | 3  

 
CA 
9) Proposed Agreement with M. Brandon Freeman, M.D., a contract employee, for professional 

medical services in the Department of Surgery from June 25, 2019 through June 24, 2022, in 
an amount not to exceed $1,800,000, plus applicable benefits –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
CA 
10) Proposed Agreement with Ramon S. Snyder, M.D., a contract employee, for professional 

medical services in the Department of Surgery from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022, in an 
amount not to exceed $1,602,000, plus applicable benefits –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
CA 
11) Proposed retroactive Agreement with RightSourcing, Inc., an independent contractor, 

containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for temporary staffing services from May 29, 
2019 through May 28, 2024, in an annual amount not to exceed $16,430,124 –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
CA 
12) Proposed Amendment No. 13 to Agreement 2016-036 with Cerner Corporation, an 

independent contractor, for the period July 1, 2016 through November 1, 2024, for services 
related to the Cerner Millennium project, extending the term from November 1, 2024 to 
December 31, 2027, and increasing the maximum payable by $2,200,000, to cover the 
implementation delay, effective June 19, 2019 – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
CA 
13) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 20117 with LocumTenens.com, an 

independent contractor, for temporary physician staffing services for the period May 22, 2017 
through May 22, 2019, extending the term for two years from May 23, 2019 through May 21, 
2021, and increasing the maximum payable by $2,250,000, from $750,000 to $3,000,000, to 
cover the extended term, effective May 23, 2019 – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
CA 
14) Proposed renewal and binding of insurance coverages for hospital professional liability, general 

liability and umbrella/excess liability, excess workers’ compensation and employers liability, 
automobile liability, helipad liability, directors and officers liability, employment practices 
liability, crime, privacy and securing (cyber) liability, premises pollution liability, underground 
storage tank liability, property (building, equipment, business interruption, earthquake and 
flood), employed lawyers liability, and fiduciary liability from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, 
with option to finance selected premiums through IPFS Corporation of California and CSAC-
EIA in an amount not to exceed $1,634,629 – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN PREMIUM FINANCE 
AGREEMENT AND CERTIFICATE OF INCUMBENCY 

 
15) Proposed Memorandum of Understanding with Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery Service, 

an independent contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for mental health 
services, effective July 1, 2019 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  6.19.19 
 

Page | 4  

 
16) Report on 2019 Community Health Needs Assessment for Kern Medical Center –  
 APPROVE; RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
17)  Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee Tina Anderson, as Extra 

Help Senior Paralegal, for the period ending June 30, 2020, or 960 hours, whichever occurs 
first, effective July 1, 2019 – 

 APPROVE 
 
18) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
19) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
CA 
20) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of May 31, 2019 –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

21) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: Chief 
Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff – Unrepresented Employee: Chief 
Financial Officer (Government Code Section 54957.6) – 

 
22) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: Two (2) Significant 

exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice of legal counsel, 
based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not limited to, an accident, disaster, incident, 
or transactional occurrence that might result in litigation against the Authority and that are 
known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs – 

 
23)  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION (Government Code 

Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Resource Anesthesiology Associates of California, A 
Medical Corporation, a California corporation v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior 
Court Case No. BCV-17-101504 DRL –  

 
24) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority trade 

secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – 
 
 
RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURN TO WEDNESDAY, JULY 17, 2019, AT 11:30 A.M. 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  6.19.19 
 

Page | 5  

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR AGENDA ITEMS 

 
All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review at Kern Medical Center in the 
Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, 93306 during regular business 
hours, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, following the posting of the agenda.  Any 
supporting documentation that relates to an agenda item for an open session of any regular meeting 
that is distributed after the agenda is posted and prior to the meeting will also be available for review 
at the same location.   

 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code Section 54953.2) 

 
The Kern Medical Center Conference Room is accessible to persons with disabilities. Disabled 
individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the Kern County 
Hospital Authority Board of Governors may request assistance at Kern Medical Center in the 
Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California, or by calling (661) 
326-2102. Reasonable efforts will be made to accommodate individuals with disabilities by making 
meeting material available in alternative formats. Requests for assistance should be made five (5) 
working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  6.19.19 
 

Page | 6  

20) CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS FILED AS OF MAY 31, 2019 – 
 RECEIVE AND FILE  
 

A) Claim in the matter of Paras Hatzeson 
 



AKCNL – 2019 RN of the Year
Kern County Chapter

Kern Medical Nominees



Patrick is an exceptional Clinical Nurse Supervisor, who has
devoted the last four years to organizational education in

patient crisis communication and de‐escalation techniques. The countless hours
education, he has devoted to this endeavor, have provided many employees
with the opportunity and skills to best interact with patients experiencing
difficult times as well as positively changed the outcomes of many, many
patients. He has a vast knowledge of the unique behavioral health population
and is always willing and available to educate staff on evidenced‐based
practices within the behavioral health population. He demonstrates an
innovative approach when providing education and has a way of captivating his
audience. He demonstrates confidence and professionalism and is an expert in
caring for the behavioral health population. He has the patience and heart for
his profession and is a tremendous resource for the organization, patients and
the community.

Patrick Sevegny
Clinical Supervisor, Behavioral Health Unit

Education – Direct Patient/Staff Educator



Allison is a compassionate nurse that goes above and beyond
for her patients and her colleagues. She has a great sense of

humor and always has a smile on her face. She is an avid patient advocate that takes
pride in making sure her patients receive high quality, safe care. Allison has stayed
well past the end of her shift when caring for an end of life patient to ensure they
receive the emotional support needed. She is a great role model and supportive,
encouraging preceptor that helps mold and shape our new grad nurses into the kind
of nurse anyone would want to provide care for their own family members. The
nurses shementors know they can count on Allison to be there for them, even in the
middle of the night when they are questioning their ability to face another
challenging day in the ED. She is always there to listen, encourage and inspire. Allison
enjoys being part of programs that promote patient safety, health and wellness in
the community. Her participation in the progressive mobility program at Kern
Medical has helped countless patients recover quicker and has helped prevent many
patient and staff injuries.

Allison Osvog
Clinical Nurse Leader – Emergency Department

Clinical Practice – Inpatient Setting



Ricco consistently shows his desire to be a leader on the
unit and he has thus far done an exemplary job at stepping

into a leadership role. He sets goas for himself and gets to them faster
than even he expects. Ricco actively seeks opportunities to assist in
improving the unit and the care we surpass all expectations of those
around him. As a new graduate nurse he said he wanted to be a resource
for the unit and in a brief time, he has done exactly that and even more.
He continues to be an invaluable asset to his peers, the Emergency
Department, Kern Medical and the community he serves. For these
reasons, Kern Medical feels that Ricco Reynolds is a perfect nominee for
Kern County Emerging Nurse Leader.

Ricco Reynolds
Clinical Nurse Leader, Emergency Department

Leadership – Emerging Nurse Leader



Rachel is an expert nurse, who is certified in Psychiatric
Nursing. She prides herself in learning, teaching and leading

new innovative approaches to fostering a recovery‐oriented environment for
our behavioral health patients. As a leader, she is versatile in many roles and
understands that her purpose is to meet the needs of our patients. Her versatile
duties include anything from providing direct patient care to being a manager in
the department. As a Clinical Nurse Leader, she empowers others and
encourages them to seek professional advancements in their careers. She
creates a learning environment that is optimal for all staff. As a nurse, her
passion is to advocate and care for the mentally ill population. In her role as a
leader, she motivates her co‐workers to practice to their full potential We are so
proud to have Rachel lead in our organization and we value her work as she
creates a collaborative environment, upholds nursing’s best practices and
provides excellent patient care.

Rachel LaPatka
Clinical Nurse Leader, Behavioral Health Unit

Leadership – Exemplary Nurse Leader



Carmi Magno is a dynamic nurse who has contributed in
many positive ways from her early days as a bedside nurse

twenty years ago, when she would provide direct patient care, through her
experience in managed care when her objectives were to improve patient
outcomes by reducing gaps in care through improved care coordination, to her
current role as Outpatient Quality Director at Kern Medical where she has been
able to fully use her passion for Population Health Maintenance. This
combination of experiences, no doubt, played an important role in her desire to
become an advocate for patients. She is now creatively working with multiple
outpatient and inpatient team members as well as physicians to collaborate,
evaluate and intervene in processes which change outcomes thereby, literally,
changing the lives of many of our patients. In the meantime, Carmi successfully
continued her education and received her Master’s Degree in Clinical
Leadership Nursing.

Carmelita Magno
Director of Outpatient Quality

Innovation in Professional Nursing



 

 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical Center 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, May 15, 2019 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD RECONVENED 
 
Board Members: Alsop, Berjis, Bigler, Brar, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 
Roll Call: 4 Present; 3 Absent - Alsop, Brar, Sistrunk 

 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item. For example, Alsop-McLaughlin 
denotes Director Alsop made the motion and Director McLaughlin seconded the motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH 
A "CA" WERE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION. 

 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 

 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

 
1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 

not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. In addition, the Board may take action to direct 
the staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED 
TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING 
YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 
NO ONE HEARD 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  5.15.19 
 
 

Page | 2  

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 
 
CHAIRMAN BIGLER EXPRESSED HIS APPRECIATION TO ALL THOSE WHO 
PARTICIPATED IN AND ASSISTED WITH THE RESEARCH FORUM  

 
 

RECOGNITION 
 

3) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing the Kern Medical Center 
residents, fellows, medical students, nurses, pharmacists, research assistants and 
faculty physicians for their outstanding research studies –  
MADE PRESENTATION 

 
 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

CA 
4) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on  

March 20, 2019 –  
APPROVED 
Berjis-Pelz: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Alsop, Brar, Sistrunk 

 
CA 
5) Proposed Amendment No. 4 to Agreement 14818 with Healthcare Performance Group, 

Inc., an independent contractor, for consulting services related to the Cerner 
Millennium project for the period June 11, 2018 through November 29, 2019, extending 
the term for one month through December 29, 2019, and increasing the maximum 
payable by $643,720, from $953,896 to $1,597,616, to cover the term – 
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 023-2019 
Berjis-Pelz: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Alsop, Brar, Sistrunk 
 

CA 
6) Proposed Agreement with Central Admixture Pharmacy Services, Inc., an independent 

contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for compounded sterile 
solutions from May 15, 2019 through May 14, 2022, in an amount not to exceed 
$500,000 – 
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 024-2019 
Berjis-Pelz: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Alsop, Brar, Sistrunk 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  5.15.19 
 
 

Page | 3  

CA 
7) Proposed Post Employment Health Plan with Nationwide Retirement Solutions, Inc., 

an independent contractor, for a tax-exempt post-retirement health plan for non-
collectively bargained employees –  

 APPROVED; ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2019-005; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO 
SIGN THE POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH PLAN FOR PUBLIC EMPLOYEES 
(AGREEMENT 025-2019), EMPLOYER PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT FOR THE 
POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH PLAN FOR NON-COLLECTIVELY BARGAINED 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES (AGREEMENT 026-2019), EMPLOYER DATA SHEET 
(AGREEMENT 027-2019), AND DISCLOSURE AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM 
(AGREEMENT 028-2019) 
Berjis-Pelz: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Alsop, Brar, Sistrunk 

 
CA 
8) Proposed acceptance of donation from Health Care Interpreter Network (HCIN), an 

independent contractor, for travel and related expenses to cover all costs for two Kern 
Medical Center employees to attend the HCIN “National Quality Assurance 
Conference” in Marina del Rey, California, on May 16 and 17, 2019 – 

 APPROVED; ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2019-006 
Berjis-Pelz: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Alsop, Brar, Sistrunk 

 
CA 
9) Proposed Engagement Letter from Moss-Adams, LLP, an independent contractor, 

regarding the audit Kern Medical Center financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $145,000 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN (AGREEMENT 029-2019) 
Berjis-Pelz: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Alsop, Brar, Sistrunk 

 
10) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 

Berjis-McLaughlin: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Alsop, Brar, Sistrunk 
 
11) Proposed Kern County Hospital Authority operating and capital budget for Fiscal Year 

2019-2020 –  
 APPROVED; REFERED TO KERN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR 

APPROVAL 
Pelz-McLaughlin: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Alsop, Brar, Sistrunk 

 
12) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 

McLaughlin-Pelz: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Alsop, Brar, Sistrunk 
 
CA 
13) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of April 30, 2019 –  

RECEIVED AND FILED 
Berjis-Pelz: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Alsop, Brar, Sistrunk 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  5.15.19 
 
 

Page | 4  

 
ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
Berjis-Pelz  

 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

14) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 
Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
15) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Martin L. Goldman, M.D., an 

individual v. Kern County Hospital Authority, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case 
No. BCV-18-100390 SDS – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
16) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Resource Anesthesiology 

Associates of California, A Medical Corporation, a California corporation v. County of 
Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-17-101504 DRL –  

 SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
17) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Eric vanSonnenberg, M.D. 

v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-15-100859 TSC - 
 SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
18) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: Three (3) 

Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice 
of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not limited to, an 
accident, disaster, incident, or transactional occurrence that might result in litigation 
against the Authority and that are known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs – SEE 
RESULTS BELOW 

 
19) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority 

trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – SEE RESULTS 
BELOW 

 
 
RECONVENED FROM CLOSED SESSION 
Pelz-McLaughlin 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  5.15.19 
 
 

Page | 5  

Item No. 14 concerning Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health 
practitioners (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; BY A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT (MOTION BY DIRECTOR 
PELZ, SECOND BY DIRECTOR MCLAUGHLIN; 3 ABSENT - DIRECTORS ALSOP, 
BRAR, SISTRUNK), THE BOARD APPROVED ALL PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED 
FOR REAPPOINTMENT, RELEASE OF PROCTORING, AND CHANGE IN STAFF 
STATUS; NO OTHER REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
Item No. 15 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 
LITIGATION  (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Martin L. 
Goldman, M.D., an individual v. Kern County Hospital Authority, et al., Kern County 
Superior Court Case No. BCV-18-100390 SDS – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
Item No. 16 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 
LITIGATION  (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Resource 
Anesthesiology Associates of California, A Medical Corporation, a California 
corporation v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-17-
101504 DRL – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
Item No. 17 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 
LITIGATION  (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Eric 
vanSonnenberg, M.D. v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. 
BCV-15-100859 TSC - HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
Item No. 18 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED 
LITIGATION  (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: 
Three (3) Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on 
the advice of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not 
limited to, an accident, disaster, incident, or transactional occurrence that might result 
in litigation against the Authority and that are known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs 
– HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
Item No. 19 concerning Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or 
taking action on authority trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) 
– HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 
ADJOURNED TO WEDNESDAY, JUNE 19, 2019, AT 11:30 A.M. 
Berjis 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  5.15.19 
 
 

Page | 6  

 
 
 
 
 
/s/ Mona A. Allen 

Authority Board Coordinator 
 
 
 
 
/s/ Russell E. Bigler 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
 Kern County Hospital Authority 
 



 

The Policy and Procedures Manual for Kern Medical Center was reviewed and approved by the 
Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors on the date set forth below.   

 

 
 
                    June 19, 2019 
 

Russell E. Bigler, Chairman 
 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 19, 2019 
 
Subject:  Proposed Agreement with Mikhail Bekarev, M.D., for professional medical services in the 
Department of Surgery 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:  Kern Medical requests your Board approve an agreement with Mikhail Bekarev, M.D., for 
professional medical services in the Department of Surgery.  Dr. Bekarev will serve as a full-time faculty member 
in the Department and will provide general orthopedic and orthopedic trauma services as well as acute trauma 
and fresh facture call coverage.   
 
The proposed Agreement is for a term of three-years from August 17, 2019 through August 16, 2022.  The 

majority of Dr. Bekarev’s compensation is based on his productivity.  The maximum payable will not to 
exceed $2,762,500 over the three-year term of the Agreement 
 
Dr. Bekarev’s annual salary is calculated based on the current Medical Group Management Association Physician 
Compensation and Production Survey for specialty and represents the reasonable fair market value 
compensation for the services provided by Dr. Bekarev. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Agreement with Mikhail Bekarev, M.D., for 
professional medical services in the Department of Surgery from August 17, 2019 through August 16, 2022, in an 
amount not to exceed $2,762,500 over the three-year term, and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 



1 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
CONTRACT EMPLOYEE 

(Kern County Hospital Authority – Mikhail Bekarev, M.D.) 
 
 This Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of __________, 2019, between 
the Kern County Hospital Authority, a local unit of government (“Authority”), which owns and 
operates Kern Medical Center (“KMC”), and Mikhail Bekarev, M.D. (“Physician”). 

 
I. 

RECITALS 
  

(a) Authority is authorized, pursuant to section 101852 of Part 4 of Division 101 of 
the Health and Safety Code, to contract for special services with individuals specially trained, 
experienced, expert, and competent to perform those services; and 
 

(b) Authority requires the assistance of Physician to provide professional medical 
services in the Department of Surgery at KMC (the “Department”), as such services are 
unavailable from Authority resources, and Physician desires to accept employment on the terms 
and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and 
  

(c) Physician has special training, knowledge and experience to provide such 
services; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

 
II. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. Term.  The initial term of this Agreement (“Initial Term”) shall be for a period of three 
(3) years, commencing as of August 17, 2019 (the “Commencement Date”).  At the end of the 
Initial Term and each Renewal Term (as hereinafter defined), if any, this Agreement may be 
renewed for additional terms of two (2) years each (“Renewal Term”), but only upon mutual 
written agreement of the parties.  As used herein, the “Term” of this Agreement shall mean the 
Initial Term and all Renewal Terms.  As used herein, an “Employment Year” shall mean the 
annual period beginning on the Commencement Date and each annual period thereafter. 
 
2. Employment.  Authority hereby employs Physician for the practice of medicine in the 
care and treatment of patients at KMC, or at such other clinic sites as KMC may designate 
(collectively referred to as the “Practice Sites”).  It is expressly understood and agreed that KMC 
shall have reasonable discretion to consolidate and relocate clinics operated by Authority and to 
re-designate Practice Sites served by Physician from time to time.  Physician shall be subject to 
Authority’s employment policies, directives, rules and regulations as promulgated by Authority 
from time to time, including, but not limited to, those pertaining to employees. 
 



2 
 

3. Representations and Warranties.  Physician represents and warrants to Authority and 
KMC, upon execution and throughout the Term of this Agreement, as follows: (i) Physician is 
not bound by any agreement or arrangement which would preclude Physician from entering into, 
or from fully performing the services required under this Agreement; (ii) Physician’s license to 
practice medicine in the state of California or in any other jurisdiction has never been denied, 
suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary action, or 
made subject to the terms of probation or other restriction; (iii) Physician’s medical staff 
privileges at any health care facility have never been denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, 
voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary action, or made subject to terms of probation 
or any other restriction; (iv) Physician holds a valid Controlled Substance Registration 
Certificate issued by the Drug Enforcement Administration that has never been revoked, 
suspended, terminated, relinquished, placed on terms of probation, or restricted in any way; (v) 
Physician is not currently and has never been an Ineligible Person1; (vi) Physician is not 
currently the subject of a disciplinary or other proceeding or action before any governmental, 
professional, medical staff or peer review body; and (vii) Physician has, and shall maintain 
throughout the Term of this Agreement, an unrestricted license to practice medicine in the state 
of California and staff membership and privileges at KMC. 
 
4. Obligations of Physician. 
 
 4.1 Services.  Physician shall engage in the practice of medicine on a full-time basis 
exclusively as an exempt employee of Authority.  Physician shall render those services set forth 
in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
4.2 Use of Premises.  Physician shall use the Practice Sites as designated by Authority 

or KMC exclusively for the practice of medicine in the care and treatment of patients and shall 
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations related thereto. 

 
4.3 Qualifications.   
 

4.3.1 Licensure.  Physician shall maintain a current valid license to practice 
medicine in the state of California at all times during the Term of this Agreement. 

 
4.3.2 Board Certification.  Physician shall obtain board certification by the 

American Board of Orthopaedic Surgery in orthopedic surgery-general within 36 months 
of the Commencement Date, and maintain such certification at all times thereafter during 
the Term of this Agreement.   

 
4.3.3 Medical Staff Status.  Physician shall at all times during the Term of this 

Agreement be a member in good standing of the KMC medical staff with “active” staff 
status and hold all clinical privileges on the active medical staff appropriate to the 
discharge of his obligations under this Agreement. 

                                                      
1 An “Ineligible Person” is an individual or entity who: (i) is currently excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise 
ineligible to participate in the federal health care programs or in federal procurement or non-procurement programs; 
or (ii) has been convicted of a criminal offense that falls within the range of activities described in 42 U.S.C. § 
1320a-7(a), but has not yet been excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise declared ineligible. 
 



3 
 

4.3.4 TJC and ACGME Compliance.  Physician shall observe and comply with 
all applicable standards and recommendations of The Joint Commission and 
Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education. 
 
4.4 Loss or Limitation.  Physician shall notify KMC in writing as soon as possible 

(but in any event within three (3) business days) after any of the following events occur: (i) 
Physician’s license to practice medicine in the state of California lapses or is denied, suspended, 
revoked, terminated, relinquished or made subject to terms of probation or other restriction; (ii) 
Physician’s medical staff privileges at KMC or any other health care facility are denied, 
suspended, revoked, terminated, relinquished under threat of disciplinary action or made subject 
to terms of probation or other restriction; (iii) Physician’s Controlled Substance Registration 
Certificate issued by the Drug Enforcement Administration is revoked, suspended, terminated, 
relinquished, placed on terms of probation, or restricted in any way; (iv) Physician becomes 
debarred, excluded, or suspended, or if any other event occurs that makes Physician an Ineligible 
Person; (v) Physician becomes the subject of a disciplinary or other proceeding or action before 
any governmental, professional, medical staff or peer review body; or (vi) an event occurs that 
substantially interrupts all or a portion of Physician’s professional practice or that materially 
adversely affects Physician’s ability to perform Physician’s obligations hereunder. 

 
4.5 Standards of Medical Practice.  The standards of medical practice and 

professional duties of Physician at designated Practice Sites shall be in accordance with the 
KMC medical staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies, the standards for physicians 
established by the state Department of Public Health and all other state and federal laws and 
regulations relating to the licensure and practice of physicians, and The Joint Commission. 
 

4.6 Managed Care Contracting.  Physician shall cooperate in all reasonable respects 
necessary to facilitate KMC’s entry into or maintenance of any third-party payer arrangements 
for the provision of services under any other public or private health and/or hospital care 
programs, including but not limited to insurance programs, self-funded employer health 
programs, health care service plans and preferred provider organizations.  To enable KMC to 
participate in any third-party payer arrangements, Physician shall, upon request: (i) enroll as a 
provider (if required by the third-party payer), separate from KMC, with any third-party payer or 
intermediate organization (including any independent practice association) (each, a “Managed 
Care Organization”) designated by KMC for the provision of professional services to patients 
covered by such Managed Care Organization; (ii) enter into a written agreement with such 
Managed Care Organization as may be necessary or appropriate for the provision of professional 
services to patients covered by such Managed Care Organization; and/or (iii) enter into a written 
agreement with KMC regarding global billing, capitation or other payment arrangements as may 
be necessary or appropriate for the provision of professional services to patients covered by such 
Managed Care Organization. 
 

4.7 Authorization to Release Information.  Physician hereby authorizes Managed 
Care Organizations, government programs, hospitals and other third parties to release to KMC 
and its agents any information requested by KMC or its agents from time to time relating to 
Physician’s professional qualifications or competency.  Physician agrees to execute the 
Authorization to Release Information in the form set forth in Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and 



4 
 

incorporated herein by this reference, and to execute all other documents required by KMC from 
time to time and to otherwise fully cooperate with KMC to enable KMC and its agents to obtain 
such information from third parties.   
 

4.8 Medical Records.  Physician shall cause a complete medical record to be timely 
prepared and maintained for each patient seen by Physician.  This record shall be prepared in 
compliance with all state and federal regulations, standards of The Joint Commission, and the 
KMC medical staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies.  Documentation by Physician shall 
conform to the requirements for evaluation and management (E/M) services billed by teaching 
physicians set forth in the Medicare Carriers Manual, Part 3, sections 15016-15018, inclusive.  
All patient medical records of Practice Sites, including without limitation, patient medical 
records generated during the Term of this Agreement, shall be the property of KMC subject to 
the rights of the respective patients.  Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement by 
either party for any reason, KMC shall retain custody and control of such patient medical 
records. 
  

4.9 Physician Private Practice.  Physician understands and agrees that he shall not 
enter into any other physician employment contract or otherwise engage in the private practice of 
medicine or provide similar services to other organizations, directly or indirectly, during the 
Term of this Agreement or any extensions thereof. 

 
4.10 Proprietary Information.  Physician acknowledges that during the Term of this 

Agreement Physician will have contacts with and develop and service KMC patients and 
referring sources of business of KMC.  In all of Physician’s activities, Physician, through the 
nature of his work, will have access to and will acquire confidential information related to the 
business and operations of KMC, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
patient lists and confidential information relating to processes, plans, methods of doing business 
and special needs of referring doctors and patients.  Physician acknowledges that all such 
information is solely the property of KMC and constitutes proprietary and confidential 
information of KMC; and the disclosure thereof would cause substantial loss to the goodwill of 
KMC; and that disclosure to Physician is being made only because of the position of trust and 
confidence that Physician will occupy.  Physician covenants that, except as required by law, 
Physician will not, at any time during the Term or any time thereafter, disclose to any person, 
hospital, firm, partnership, entity or organization (except when authorized in writing by KMC) 
any information whatsoever pertaining to the business or operations of KMC, any affiliate 
thereof or of any other physician employed by KMC, including without limitation, any of the 
kinds of information described in this paragraph.   
  

4.11 Physician Covenants.  Physician covenants that from the Commencement Date 
and continuing throughout the Term of this Agreement, Physician, unless otherwise permitted by 
the written consent of Authority shall not, on Physician’s own account or as an employee, 
landlord, lender, trustee, associate, consultant, partner, agent, principal, contractor, owner, 
officer, director, investor, member or stockholder of any other person, or in any other capacity, 
directly or indirectly, in whole or in part: (i) engage in any activities that are in competition with 
KMC, including the operation of any medical practice or offering of any medical services that 
are similar to services offered at the Practice Sites; (ii) solicit or encourage the resignation of any 



5 
 

employee of Authority or KMC with whom Physician had a working relationship during 
Physician’s employment with Authority; (iii) solicit or divert patients with whom Physician had 
personal contact during such employment; or (iv) influence or attempt to influence any payer, 
provider or other person or entity to cease, reduce or alter any business relationship with 
Authority or KMC relating to the Practice Sites. 
 
5. Compensation Package. 

 
5.1 Annual Compensation – Commencement Date through August 16, 2020.  For the 

period from the Commencement Date through and including August 16, 2020 (the “Guarantee 
Period”), Physician shall be paid a guarantee salary for teaching and administrative services and 
payment for care of KMC patients as described below (“Guarantee Salary”). 

 
5.1.1 Compensation Methodology.  Authority shall pay Physician a Guarantee 

Salary in the amount of the greater of (i) $610,000 (the “Minimum Amount”) per year, or 
(ii) payment for care of KMC patients using the current Medical Group Management 
Association Physician Compensation and Production Survey (“MGMA Survey Data”)for 
full time physician compensation with more than one year in the specialty for all 
physicians section.  This section is divided into four categories: 25th percentile, median, 
75th percentile and 90th percentile.  A conversion factor will be established by taking 
each category and dividing the physician compensation in that category by the worked 
relative value unit (“Worked RVU”) in that category.  Physician shall be compensated for 
each Worked RVU at the rate of $65.27 (“RVU Effort”). 
 

5.1.2 Reconciliation of Guarantee Salary.  Within 30 days after the end of each 
quarter during the Guarantee Period, KMC will calculate the RVU Effort for such 
immediately preceding quarter, taking into account the RVU Effort from the 
Commencement Date through the end of the subject quarter, and the RVU Effort 
generated from the Guarantee Period shall be determined (the “Actual Amount”).  KMC 
will undertake a reconciliation of the RVU Effort, for services provided by Physician 
during the Guarantee Period, no later than the end of 120 days from the conclusion of the 
Guarantee Period.  If the prorated Minimum Amount is lower than the Actual Amount, 
then such difference shall be paid to Physician as Guarantee Salary within 30 days after 
such calculation has been completed.    

 
5.1.3 Biweekly Payment.  Physician shall be paid biweekly on the same 

schedule as regular Authority employees.  The exact date of said biweekly payments shall 
be at the sole discretion of Authority.  All payments made by Authority to Physician 
according to the compensation methodology set forth in paragraph 5.1 shall be subject to 
all applicable federal and state taxes and withholding requirements. 

 
5.2 Annual Compensation – August 17, 2020 through August 16, 2022.  For the 

period from August 17, 2020 through and including August 16, 2022, Physician shall be 
compensated with cash and other value as described below in this paragraph 5.2 (“Annual 
Salary”). 

 



6 
 

5.2.1 Compensation Methodology.  Authority shall pay Physician an Annual 
Salary comprised of the following: (i) a base salary for teaching and administrative 
services based on the actual number of documented hours for assigned teaching and 
administrative duties multiplied by the current MGMA Survey Data academic 
compensation rate of pay per hour; and (ii) payment for care of KMC patients using the 
current MGMA Survey Data.  Physician will be compensated for each Worked RVU by 
multiplying the Worked RVU by the lowest conversion factor for each KMC patient 
(“RVU Effort”).   

 
5.2.2 Salary Adjustment.  KMC will establish an estimate (“Estimate”) of 

Physician’s RVU Effort using Physician’s RVU Effort for the immediately preceding 
three (3) month period annualized.  The Estimate will be divided by the number of 
Authority payroll periods in a calendar year in order to calculate the amount of RVU 
Effort to be paid to Physician each payroll period (the “Paycheck Amount”).  Within 30 
days after the end of each quarter, KMC will calculate the RVU Effort for such 
immediately preceding quarter, and adjust the payment for RVU Effort accordingly (the 
“Actual Amount”).  If the Estimate is lower than the Actual Amount, then such difference 
shall be paid to Physician within 30 days after such calculation has been completed, or as 
of the effective date of any termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs sooner.  If 
the Estimate exceeds the Actual Amount, then Physician shall pay such difference to 
KMC: (i) in a lump sum within 30 days after such calculation has been completed; or (ii) 
through a reduction in the Paycheck Amount during the next quarter; or (iii) in a lump 
sum as of the effective date of any termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs 
sooner.  The Estimate shall be reestablished as of each Employment Year.  Physician 
hereby expressly grants to KMC the right to offset any amounts owed to KMC 
against any payment to be made to Physician by KMC pursuant to this paragraph if 
Physician fails to pay such excess to KMC.  

     
5.2.3 Time Logs.  Physician shall, on a monthly basis on or before the fifth (5th) 

day of each calendar month during the Term of this Agreement, submit to KMC a written 
time log in the form attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit “C,” 
detailing to KMC’s satisfaction the date, time, actual number of hours, and description of 
activities related to assigned teaching and administrative duties during the immediately 
preceding calendar month.   

 
5.2.4 Biweekly Payment.  Physician shall be paid biweekly on the same 

schedule as regular Authority employees.  The exact date of said biweekly payments shall 
be at the sole discretion of Authority.  All payments made by Authority to Physician 
according to the compensation methodology set forth in paragraph 5.2 shall be subject to 
all applicable federal and state taxes and withholding requirements. 
 

 5.3 Excess Call Coverage.  Authority shall pay Physician for excess call coverage as 
follows: (i) Physician shall be paid the greater of a fixed fee amount of $2,500 or the Worked 
RVU per 24-hour day for weekend2 coverage that exceeds one (1) in four (4) weekends; and 

                                                      
2 For purposes of weekend call coverage, a “weekend” is defined as Friday through Sunday or, in the event of a 
holiday, Friday through Monday. 



7 
 

Physician shall be paid the greater of a fixed fee amount of $2,500 or the Worked RVU per 24-
hour day for weekday3 coverage that exceeds one (1) in four (4) weekdays. 
 

5.4 Limitations on Compensation.  Authority shall exclude from payment for care of 
KMC patients any Worked RVU that is not reimbursed by Medicare or Medi-Cal, unless 
authorized in advance by KMC. 
 

5.5 Fair Market Value Compensation.  The compensation payable under this section 5 
represents the parties’ good faith determination of the reasonable fair market value compensation 
for the services to be provided by Physician under this Agreement. 

 
5.6 Starting Bonus.   
 

5.6.1 Bonus.  Physician shall receive a starting bonus in the amount of $17,000, 
less all applicable federal and state taxes and withholdings, payable within 10 business 
days of the Commencement Date.  Physician shall forfeit the starting bonus if he fails to 
report to work on the Commencement Date.   

 
5.6.2 Repayment.  In the event that Physician voluntarily terminates his 

employment with Authority for any reason whatsoever before the first anniversary of this 
Agreement, Physician will repay to Authority an amount equal to $17,000 multiplied by 
the fraction, the numerator of which is 365 less the number of days during which 
Physician was employed by Authority, and the denominator of which is 365.  Such 
repayment shall be made by Physician in full within 30 days of the effective date of his 
termination of employment with Authority. 

   
5.6.3 Offset.  Physician hereby authorizes Authority to offset against and reduce 

any amounts otherwise due to him for any amounts in respect of the obligation to repay 
the starting bonus. 
 
5.7 Professional Fee Billing.   

 
5.7.1 Assignment.  KMC shall have the exclusive right and authority to set, bill, 

collect and retain all fees, including professional fees, for all direct patient care services 
provided by Physician during the Term of this Agreement.  All professional fees 
generated by Physician during the Term of this Agreement, including without limitation, 
both cash collections and accounts receivable, capitated risk pool fees, professional 
retainer fees, honoraria, professional consulting and teaching fees, and fees for expert 
testimony (but excluding Physician’s private investment and nonprofessional income), 
will be the sole and exclusive property of KMC, whether received by KMC or by 
Physician and whether received during the Term of this Agreement or anytime thereafter.  
Physician hereby assigns all rights to said fees and accounts to KMC and shall execute all 
documents required from time to time by KMC and otherwise fully cooperate with KMC 
to enable KMC to collect fees and accounts from patients and third-party payers. 

                                                      
 
3 For purposes of weekday call coverage, a “weekday” is defined as Monday through Thursday or, in the event of a 
holiday, Tuesday through Thursday. 



8 
 

5.7.2 Remittance of Professional Fee Charges.  Physician shall remit all 
professional fee charges to KMC within 45 days of the date direct patient care services 
are provided by Physician.  Any professional fee charges not remitted by Physician to 
KMC within 45 days of the date of such service, or any charges for which relevant 
documentation has not been provided, will not be credited to Physician as Worked RVU. 

 
5.8 Maximum Payable.  The maximum compensation payable under this Agreement 

shall not exceed $2,762,500 over the three-year Term of this Agreement. 
 
6. Benefits Package. 
 

6.1 Retirement.  Physician shall participate in the Kern County Hospital Authority 
Defined Contribution Plan for Physician Employees (the “Plan”), a qualified defined 
contribution pension plan, pursuant to the terms of the instrument under which the Plan has been 
established, as from time to time amended.  Physician is not eligible to participate in any other 
retirement plan established by Authority for its employees, including but not limited to the Kern 
County Employees’ Retirement Association, and this Agreement does not confer upon Physician 
any right to claim entitlement to benefits under any such retirement plan(s). 

 
6.2 Health Care Coverage.  Physician shall continue to receive the same health 

benefits (medical, dental, prescription and vision coverage) as all eligible Authority employees.  
The employee share of cost is 20% of the current biweekly premium.  Physician is eligible for 
coverage the first day of the biweekly payroll period coincident with or next following the day he 
completes one (1) month of continuous service.  Physician’s initial hire date is the initial 
opportunity to enroll in the health plan.  Physician must work at least 40 hours per biweekly pay 
period to be eligible for coverage. 

 
6.3 Holidays.  Physician shall be entitled to paid holidays subject to Authority policy, 

as amended from time to time.  Physician will not be paid for banked holidays upon termination 
of employment. 

 
6.4 Vacation.  Physician shall be entitled to vacation leave subject to Authority 

policy, as amended from time to time.  Physician shall be paid for accrued and unused vacation 
leave, if any, upon termination or expiration of this Agreement calculated at Physician’s current 
hourly rate (i.e., current Annual Salary divided by 2080 hours = hourly rate).  All payments made 
by Authority to Physician under this paragraph will be subject to all applicable federal and state 
taxes and withholding requirements.  
    

6.5 Sick Leave.  Physician shall be entitled to sick leave subject to Authority policy, 
as amended from time to time.  Physician will not be paid for accrued and unused sick leave 
upon termination of employment.   

 
6.6 Education Leave.  Physician shall receive 80 hours paid education leave annually.  

The first 80 hours will accrue on the Commencement Date.  On each successive Employment 
Year, if any, an additional 80 hours paid education leave will accrue.  Education leave must be 
used within the year that it is accrued.  Physician will not be paid for unused education leave 



9 
 

upon termination of employment.  The Department chair must approve education leave in 
advance of use.  Physician’s participation in educational programs, services or other approved 
activities set forth herein shall be subordinate to Physician’s obligations and duties under this 
Agreement. 

 
6.7 CME Expense Reimbursement.  Authority shall reimburse Physician for all 

approved reasonable and necessary expenditures related to continuing medical education in an 
amount not to exceed $2,500 per Employment Year, payable in arrears, in accordance with 
Authority policy, as amended from time to time.  This amount may not be accumulated or 
accrued and does not continue to the following Employment Year. 

 
6.8 Kern$Flex.  Physician shall be eligible to participate in flexible spending plans to 

pay for dependent care, non-reimbursed medical expenses, and certain insurance premiums on a 
pre-tax basis through payroll deduction.  This is a voluntary benefit that is paid by Physician if 
he elects to participate in the plan. 

 
6.9 Attendance at Meetings.  Physician shall be permitted to be absent from KMC 

during normal working days to attend professional meetings and to attend to such outside 
professional duties in the healthcare field as may be mutually agreed upon between Physician 
and the Department chair.  Attendance at such approved meetings and accomplishment of 
approved professional duties shall be fully compensated service time and will not be considered 
vacation or education leave.   

 
6.10 Unpaid Leave of Absence.  Physician may take an unpaid leave of absence in 

accordance with Authority policies in effect at the time the leave is taken. 
 
6.11 Social Security.  Physician is exempt from payment of Social Security taxes as the 

Kern County Hospital Authority Defined Contribution Plan for Physician Employees is a 
qualified alternative to the insurance system established by the federal Social Security Act. 

 
6.12 Deferred Compensation.  Physician shall be eligible to participate in the Kern 

County Deferred Compensation Plan (“457 Plan”) on a pre-tax basis.  Physician shall make all 
contributions if he elects to participate in the 457 Plan. 

 
6.13 Disability Insurance.  Physician shall be eligible to purchase Long Term 

Disability or Short Term Disability insurance coverage through payroll deduction on a post-tax 
basis.  This is a voluntary benefit that is paid by Physician if he elects to participate in the plan. 

 
6.14 Employee Assistance/Wellness Programs.  Physician shall be eligible to 

participate in any Authority-sponsored employee assistance and employee wellness programs. 
 
6.15 Relocation Reimbursement.  Authority shall reimburse Physician for actual 

relocation expenses (defined as the packing, moving and unpacking of household goods and 
vehicles) and travel expenses (defined as lodging, meals, mileage and incidental expenses) 
associated in moving to Bakersfield, California, in an amount not to exceed $7,500, payable in 
arrears, in accordance with Authority policy.  Reimbursement of travel expenses will include per 



10 
 

mile reimbursement for one (1) personal vehicle at the current privately owned vehicle (POV) 
mileage reimbursement rate established by the U.S. General Services Administration, meals and 
incidental expenses for Physician only at the current domestic per diem rates established by the 
U.S. General Services Administration for Kern County, and reasonable hotel accommodations 
not to exceed the maximum allowable reimbursement rate including taxes established by 
Authority.  Physician shall be deemed vested in reimbursement of relocation expenses in the 
amount of $208.33 per month beginning on the last day of the month in which the relocation 
expenses are reimbursed to Physician.  In the event Physician’s employment is terminated by 
either party, with or without cause, then, on the effective date of such termination, Physician 
shall repay to Authority all amounts received in which Physician has not yet become vested.4 

 
6.16 Limitation on Benefits.  Except as expressly stated herein, Physician shall receive 

no other benefits from Authority. 
 
7. Assignment.  Physician shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or his obligations 
hereunder or any part thereof.  Physician shall not assign any money due or which becomes due 
to Physician under this Agreement without the prior written approval of Authority. 
 
8. Assistance in Litigation.  Upon request, Physician shall support and assist Authority as a 
consultant or expert witness in litigation to which Authority is a party. 
 
9. Authority to Incur Financial Obligation.  It is understood that Physician, in his 
performance of any and all duties under this Agreement, has no right, power or authority to bind 
Authority to any agreements or undertakings. 
 
10. Captions and Interpretation.  Paragraph headings in this Agreement are used solely for 
convenience, and shall be wholly disregarded in the construction of this Agreement.  No 
provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted for or against a party because that party or its 
legal representative drafted such provision, and this Agreement shall be construed as if jointly 
prepared by the parties. 
 
11. Choice of Law/Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed and enforced under and in 
accordance with the laws of the state of California, with venue of any action relating to this 
Agreement in the County of Kern, state of California. 
 
12. Compliance with Law.  Physician shall observe and comply with all applicable 
Authority, local, state and federal laws, ordinances, rules and regulations now in effect or 
hereafter enacted, each of which is hereby made a part hereof and incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
13. Confidentiality.  Physician shall maintain confidentiality with respect to information that 
he receives in the course of his employment and not use or permit the use of or disclose any such 
information in connection with any activity or business to any person, firm or corporation 
                                                      
4 By way of example only, in the event Physician terminates his employment after 12-months then Physician will be vested to the 
extent of $2,500 in the relocation expenses described herein and will be obligated to repay Authority the amount of $5,000.  In 
the event Physician fails to pay such amount to Authority, Physician expressly grants to Authority the right to offset any 
amounts owed to Authority against any payments made to Physician by Authority. 



11 
 

whatsoever, unless such disclosure is required in response to a validly issued subpoena or other 
process of law or as required by Government Code section 6250 et seq.  Upon completion of the 
Agreement, the provisions of this paragraph shall continue to survive. 
 
14. Conflict of Interest.  Physician covenants that he has no interest and that he will not 
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a financial conflict of interest under state 
law (Gov. Code, § 81000 et seq.) or that would otherwise conflict in any manner or degree with 
the performance of his services hereunder.  It is understood and agreed that if such a financial 
interest does exist at the inception of this Agreement, Authority may immediately terminate this 
Agreement by giving written notice thereof.   
 
15. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument.  
 
16. Dispute Resolution.  In the event of any dispute involving the enforcement or 
interpretation of this Agreement or any of the rights or obligations arising hereunder, the parties 
shall first attempt to resolve their differences by mediation before a mediator of their mutual 
selection.  If the parties are, after mutual good faith efforts, unable to resolve their differences by 
mediation, the dispute shall be submitted for trial before a privately compensated temporary 
judge appointed by the Kern County Superior Court pursuant to Article VI, section 21 of the 
California Constitution and Rules 3.810 through 3.830 of the California Rules of Court.  All 
costs of any dispute resolution procedure shall be borne equally by the parties. 
 
17. Enforcement of Remedies.  No right or remedy herein conferred on or reserved to 
Authority is exclusive of any other right or remedy herein or by law or equity provided or 
permitted, but each shall be cumulative of every other right or remedy given hereunder or now or 
hereafter existing by law or in equity or by statute or otherwise, and may be enforced 
concurrently or from time to time. 
 
18. Indemnification.  Authority shall assume liability for and indemnify and hold Physician 
harmless from any and all claims, losses, expenses, costs, actions, settlements, attorneys’ fees 
and judgments incurred by Physician or for which Physician becomes liable, arising out of or 
related to services rendered or which a third party alleges should have been rendered by 
Physician pursuant to this Agreement.  Authority’s obligation under this paragraph shall extend 
from Physician’s first date of service to Authority and shall survive termination or expiration of 
this Agreement to include all claims that allegedly arise out of services Physician rendered on 
behalf of Authority; provided, however, that the provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to 
any services rendered at any location other than Practice Sites without approval by the Kern 
County Hospital Authority Board of Governors and, provided further, that Authority shall have 
no duty or obligation to defend, indemnify, or hold Physician harmless for any conduct or 
misconduct found to be intentional, willful, grossly negligent, or criminal. 
 
19. Invalidity of a Portion.  Should a portion, section, paragraph, or term of this Agreement 
be construed as invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or a competent state or federal 
agency, the balance of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  Further, to the extent 



12 
 

any term or portion of this Agreement is found invalid, void or inoperative, the parties agree that 
a court may construe the Agreement in such a manner as will carry into force and effect the 
intent appearing herein. 
 
20. Modifications of Agreement.  This Agreement may be modified in writing only, signed 
by the parties in interest at the time of the modification. 
 
21. Non-appropriation.  Authority reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in the 
event insufficient funds are appropriated or budgeted for this Agreement in any fiscal year.  
Upon such termination, Authority will be released from any further financial obligation to 
Physician, except for services performed prior to the date of termination or any liability due to 
any default existing at the time this clause is exercised.  Physician shall be given 30 days’ prior 
written notice in the event that Authority requires such an action. 
 
22. Nondiscrimination.  No party to this Agreement shall discriminate on the basis of race, 
color, religion, sex, national origin, age, marital status or sexual orientation, ancestry, physical or 
mental disability, medical conditions, political affiliation, veteran’s status, citizenship or marital 
or domestic partnership status or on the basis of a perception that an individual is associated with 
a person who has, or is perceived to have, any of these characteristics. 
 
23. Non-waiver.  No covenant or condition of this Agreement can be waived except by the 
written consent of Authority.  Forbearance or indulgence by Authority in any regard whatsoever 
shall not constitute a waiver of the covenant or condition to be performed by Physician.  
Authority shall be entitled to invoke any remedy available to Authority under this Agreement or 
by law or in equity despite said forbearance or indulgence. 
 
24. Notices.  Notices to be given by one party to the other under this Agreement shall be 
given in writing by personal delivery, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or express 
delivery service at the addresses specified below.  Notices delivered personally shall be deemed 
received upon receipt; mailed or expressed notices shall be deemed received four (4) days after 
deposit.  A party may change the address to which notice is to be given by giving notice as 
provided above. 
 

Notice to Physician: Notice to Authority: 
  

Mikhail Bekarev, M.D. Kern Medical Center 
5700 West 6th Street, Apt. 401 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 
Los Angeles, California 90036  Bakersfield, California 93306 

 Attn.: Chief Executive Officer 
 
25. Relationship.  Authority and Physician recognize that Physician is rendering specialized, 
professional services.  The parties recognize that each is possessed of legal knowledge and skill, 
and that this Agreement is fully understood by the parties, and is the result of bargaining between 
the parties.  Each party acknowledges their opportunity to fully and independently review and 
consider this Agreement and affirm complete understanding of the effect and operation of its 
terms prior to entering into the same.   



13 
 

26. Severability.  Should any part, term, portion or provision of this Agreement be decided 
finally to be in conflict with any law of the United States or the state of California, or otherwise 
be unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining parts, terms, portions, or provisions 
shall be deemed severable and shall not be affected thereby, provided such remaining portions or 
provisions can be construed in substance to constitute the agreement which the parties intended 
to enter into in the first instance. 
 
27. Sole Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties 
relating to the services, rights, obligations, and covenants contained herein and assumed by the 
parties respectively.  No inducements, representations, or promises have been made, other than 
those recited in this Agreement.  No oral promise, modification, change, or inducement shall be 
effective or given any force or effect. 
 
28. Termination.   
 

28.1 Termination without Cause.  Either party shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement, without penalty or cause, by giving not less than 120 days’ prior written notice to the 
other party. 

 
28.2 Immediate Termination.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Authority may terminate 

this Agreement immediately by written notice to Physician upon the occurrence of any of the 
following events: (i) Authority determines that Physician does not have the proper credentials, 
experience, or skill to perform the required services under this Agreement; (ii) Authority 
determines the conduct of Physician in the providing of services may result in civil, criminal, or 
monetary penalties against Authority or KMC; (iii) Physician violates any federal or state law or 
regulatory rule or regulation or condition of accreditation or certification to which Authority or 
Practice Sites is subject; (iv) Physician engages in the commission of a material act involving 
moral turpitude, fraud, dishonesty, embezzlement, misappropriation or financial dishonesty 
against Authority or KMC; (v) the actions of Physician result in the loss or threatened loss of 
KMC’s ability to participate in any federal or state health care program, including Medicare or 
Medi-Cal; (vi) Physician’s license to practice medicine in the state of California lapses or is 
denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, relinquished or made subject to terms of probation or 
other restriction; (vii) Physician’s medical staff privileges are denied, suspended, revoked, 
terminated, relinquished under threat of disciplinary action or made subject to terms of probation 
or other restriction; (viii) Physician’s Controlled Substance Registration Certificate issued by the 
Drug Enforcement Administration is revoked, suspended, terminated, relinquished, placed on 
terms of probation, or restricted in any way; (ix) Physician becomes debarred, excluded, or 
suspended, or if any other event occurs that makes Physician an Ineligible Person; (x) Physician 
fails to make a timely disclosure pursuant to paragraph 4.4; (xi) Physician engages in conduct 
that, in the sole discretion of Authority, is detrimental to patient care or to the reputation or 
operations of Authority and/or KMC; (xii) Physician breaches the confidentiality provisions of 
this Agreement; (xiii) Physician dies; (xiv) Physician fails to follow Authority’s policies and 
procedures and other rules of conduct applicable to all employees of Authority, including 
without limitation, policies prohibiting sexual harassment; (xv) insubordination, flagrant 
tardiness, or interpersonal problems in the workplace with colleagues, patients or associates; or 
(xvi) Physician breaches any covenant set forth in paragraph 4.11. 



14 
 

29. Effect of Termination. 
 

29.1 Payment Obligations.  In the event of termination of this Agreement for any 
reason, Authority shall have no further obligation to pay for any services rendered or expenses 
incurred by Physician after the effective date of the termination, and Physician shall be entitled 
to receive compensation for services satisfactorily rendered, calculated on a prorated basis up to 
the effective date of termination. 

 
 29.2 Vacate Premises.  Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, 
Physician shall immediately vacate KMC, removing at such time any and all personal property 
of Physician.  KMC may remove and store, at the expense of Physician, any personal property 
that Physician has not so removed. 
   
 29.3 No Interference.  Following the expiration or earlier termination of this 
Agreement, Physician shall not do anything or cause any person to do anything that might 
interfere with any efforts by Authority or KMC to contract with any other individual or entity for 
the provision of services or to interfere in any way with any relationship between KMC and any 
person who may replace Physician. 
  
 29.4 No Hearing Rights.  Termination of this Agreement by Authority or KMC for any 
reason shall not provide Physician the right to a fair hearing or the other rights more particularly 
set forth in the KMC medical staff bylaws. 
 
30. Liability of Authority.  The liabilities or obligations of Authority with respect to its 
activities pursuant to this Agreement shall be the liabilities or obligations solely of Authority and 
shall not be or become the liabilities or obligations of the County of Kern or any other entity, 
including the state of California. 
 

[Signatures follow on next page] 



15 
 

IN WITNESS TO THE FOREGOING, the parties have executed this Agreement as of 
the day and year first written above. 
 
PHYSICIAN 
 
 
By: __________________________     
      Mikhail Bekarev, M.D.  
 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
 
 
By: __________________________      
      Chairman                  
      Board of Governors  
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
KERN MEDICAL CENTER 
 
 
By: __________________________      
      Russell V. Judd                  
      Chief Executive Officer  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 
 
By: __________________________     
      VP & General Counsel 
      Kern County Hospital Authority 
 
 
Agreement.Bekarev.051019 



16 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Job Description 

Mikhail Bekarev, M.D. 
 
Position Description:  Reports to Chair, Department of Surgery and Chief, Division of 
Orthopedic Surgery; serves as full-time faculty member in the Department; provides no fewer 
than 2,500 hours of service per year for all teaching, administrative, and clinical services; works 
collaboratively with clinic and surgery staff and hospital administration to ensure efficient 
workflow, adequacy of support equipment, and superior patient experience.   
 
Essential Functions: 
 
1. Clinical Responsibilities and Assignments: 

 Provides service and improves efficiency for orthopedic clinic activities and surgical 
cases 

 Provides faculty service for acute trauma and fresh fracture call coverage; rounds and 
follows up as appropriate on patients admitted to KMC 

 Provides general orthopedic and orthopedic trauma services 
 Supervises orthopedic Physician Assistant activity and competence 
 Operating Room – minimum of three (3) full days per week 
 KMC, Stockdale Highway, or other designated clinic sites – minimum of three (3) half-

day clinics per week 
 Call coverage – minimum of one (1) day per week and one (1) weekend per month 

 
2. Administrative Responsibilities: 

 Participates in clinical and administrative integration efforts across KMC as appropriate 
for orthopedic surgery ensuring proper program planning, resource allocation, analysis, 
communication and assessment 

 Gathers data through best practices and collaborates with other members of the 
Department and Division to recommend services that will increase productivity, 
minimize duplication of services, increase workflow efficiency, and provide the highest 
quality of care to KMC patients 

 Supports the Department chair and Division chief in developing monitoring tools to 
measure financial, access, quality, and satisfaction outcomes 

 Attends and actively participates in assigned Medical Staff and hospital committees 
 Participates in the preparation, monitoring, review, and performance of clinical activity in 

the Division 
 Participates in the quality improvement and risk management activities, including peer 

review and quality control functions as assigned to services in the Division 
 Provides didactic teaching and resident physician and medical student education as 

assigned and participates in setting goals and expectations for orthopedic surgery medical 
student rotations 

 Completes medical records in a timely fashion and works to improve the quality, 
accuracy, and completeness of documentation 



17 
 

 Works collaboratively with other clinical departments to develop a cohesive and 
collaborative environment across departments with a focus of enhancing access to patient 
care for inpatient and outpatient services 

 Works collaboratively with Department and Division leadership and KMC administration 
to develop an orthopedic sports medicine program to complement existing orthopedic 
services at KMC 

 Follows and complies with the Medical Staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies and 
Authority and KMC policies and procedures 

 
Employment Standards: 
One (1) year of post-residency experience in orthopedic surgery  
AND 
Possession of a current valid Physician’s and Surgeon’s Certificate issued by the state of 
California 
AND   
Certification by the American Board of Orthopaedic Surgery in orthopedic surgery-general 
 
Knowledge of:  The principles and practices of modern medicine; current techniques, 
procedures, and equipment applicable to orthopedic surgery; principles of effective supervision 
and program development. 

 
[Intentionally left blank]  



18 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE INFORMATION 
 
 

[See attached] 



19 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE INFORMATION 
 
I, the undersigned physician, hereby authorize Kern Medical Center (“KMC”) and its duly 
authorized representatives to obtain information from time to time about my professional 
education, training, licensure, credentials competence, ethics and character from any source 
having such information.  This information may include, without limitation, peer review 
information, DRG and RVU analyses, ancillary usage information and other utilization and 
quality related data. 

 
I hereby release the Kern County Hospital Authority and KMC, its authorized representatives 
and any third parties from any liability for actions, recommendations, statements, reports, records 
or disclosures, including privileged and confidential information, involving me that are made, 
requested, taken or received by KMC or its authorized representatives to, from or by any third 
parties in good faith and relating to or arising from my professional conduct, character and 
capabilities. 

 
I agree that this authorization to release information shall remain effective until termination of 
my employment by the Kern County Hospital Authority and KMC.  A duplicate of this 
authorization may be relied upon to the same degree as the original by any third party providing 
information pursuant to this request. 

 
 

    
Physician   Date 
  



20 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
TIME LOG FORM 

 
[See attached] 

 
  



21 
 

TIME LOG FORM 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Physician Name     Signature / Date 
 
_________________________________ _______________________ ____________________________ 
Department    Month / Year of Service  Total Hours / Month 
 
Services Provided (please list specific activity performed)  Date  Hours 
 
1. Medical Staff CME Activities 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
2. Hospital Staff Education and Training 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
3. Clinical Supervision 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
4. Quality Improvement Activities (committees, case review, etc.) 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
5. Administration Activities 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
6. Community Education 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
7. Medical Management Activities 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
8. Compliance Activities 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
9. Other Services  
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________  

_____________________________________ ________ _________ 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
June 19, 2019 
 
Subject:  Proposed Agreement with Michael J. Eagan, M.D., for professional medical services in the 
Department of Surgery 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve an agreement with Michael J. Eagan, M.D., a contract employee, for 
professional medical services in the Department of Surgery.  Dr. Eagan, who is a trained orthopedic trauma 
surgeon, has been employed by Kern Medical since 2012.  
 
The proposed Agreement is for a term of three‐years from June 25, 2019 through June 24, 2022.  Dr. Eagan is 
paid based strictly on his productivity.  The maximum payable will not to exceed $3,300,000 over the three‐year 
term of the Agreement. 
 
Dr. Eagan’s annual salary is calculated based on the current Medical Group Management Association Physician 
Compensation and Production Survey for specialty and represents the reasonable fair market value 
compensation for the services provided by Dr. Eagan. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Agreement with Michael J. Eagan, M.D., for 
professional medical services in the Department of Surgery from June 25, 2019 through June 24, 2022, in an 
amount not to exceed $3,300,000 over the three‐year term, and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 



1 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
CONTRACT EMPLOYEE 

(Kern County Hospital Authority – Michael J. Eagan, M.D.) 
 
 This Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of __________, 2019, between 
the Kern County Hospital Authority, a local unit of government (“Authority”), which owns and 
operates Kern Medical Center (“KMC”), and Michael J. Eagan, M.D. (“Physician”). 

 
I. 

RECITALS 
  

(a) Authority is authorized, pursuant to section 101852 of Part 4 of Division 101 of 
the Health and Safety Code, to contract for special services with individuals specially trained, 
experienced, expert, and competent to perform those services; and 
 

(b) Authority requires the assistance of Physician to provide professional medical 
services in the Department of Surgery at KMC (the “Department”), as such services are 
unavailable from Authority resources, and Physician desires to accept employment on the terms 
and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and 
  

(c) Physician has special training, knowledge and experience to provide such 
services; and 
 

(d) Authority currently contracts with Physician as a contract employee for the 
provision of professional medical services in the Department and teaching services to resident 
physicians employed by Authority (Kern County Agt. #760-2016, dated June 21, 2016), for the 
period June 25, 2016 through June 24, 2019; and 
 

(e) Each party expressly understands and agrees that Kern County Agt. #760-2016 is 
superseded by this Agreement as of the Commencement Date;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

 
II. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of three (3) years, commencing 
as of June 25, 2019 (the “Commencement Date”), and shall end June 24, 2022 (the “Term”), 
unless earlier terminated pursuant to other provisions of this Agreement as herein stated.  This 
Agreement may be renewed for additional terms, but only upon mutual written agreement of the 
parties.  As used herein, an “Employment Year” shall mean the annual period beginning on the 
Commencement Date and each annual period thereafter. 
 
 



2 
 

2. Employment.  Authority hereby employs Physician for the practice of medicine in the 
care and treatment of patients at KMC, or at such other clinic sites as KMC may designate 
(collectively referred to as the “Practice Sites”).  It is expressly understood and agreed that KMC 
shall have reasonable discretion to consolidate and relocate clinics operated by Authority and to 
re-designate Practice Sites served by Physician from time to time.  Physician shall be subject to 
Authority’s employment policies, directives, rules and regulations as promulgated by Authority 
from time to time, including, but not limited to, those pertaining to employees. 
 
3. Representations and Warranties.  Physician represents and warrants to Authority and 
KMC, upon execution and throughout the Term of this Agreement, as follows: (i) Physician is 
not bound by any agreement or arrangement which would preclude Physician from entering into, 
or from fully performing the services required under this Agreement; (ii) Physician’s license to 
practice medicine in the state of California or in any other jurisdiction has never been denied, 
suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary action, or 
made subject to the terms of probation or other restriction; (iii) Physician’s medical staff 
privileges at any health care facility have never been denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, 
voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary action, or made subject to terms of probation 
or any other restriction; (iv) Physician holds a valid Controlled Substance Registration 
Certificate issued by the Drug Enforcement Administration that has never been revoked, 
suspended, terminated, relinquished, placed on terms of probation, or restricted in any way; (v) 
Physician is not currently and has never been an Ineligible Person1; (vi) Physician is not 
currently the subject of a disciplinary or other proceeding or action before any governmental, 
professional, medical staff or peer review body; and (vii) Physician has, and shall maintain 
throughout the Term of this Agreement, an unrestricted license to practice medicine in the state 
of California and staff membership and privileges at KMC. 
 
4. Obligations of Physician. 
 
 4.1 Services.  Physician shall engage in the practice of medicine on a full-time basis 
exclusively as an exempt employee of Authority.  Physician shall render those services set forth 
in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
4.2 Use of Premises.  Physician shall use the Practice Sites as designated by Authority 

or KMC exclusively for the practice of medicine in the care and treatment of patients and shall 
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations related thereto. 

 
4.3 Qualifications.   
 

4.3.1 Licensure.  Physician shall maintain a current valid license to practice 
medicine in the state of California at all times during the Term of this Agreement. 

 

                                                      
1 An “Ineligible Person” is an individual or entity who: (i) is currently excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise 
ineligible to participate in the federal health care programs or in federal procurement or non-procurement programs; 
or (ii) has been convicted of a criminal offense that falls within the range of activities described in 42 U.S.C. § 
1320a-7(a), but has not yet been excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise declared ineligible. 
 



3 
 

4.3.2 Board Certification.  Physician shall be board certified by the American 
Board of Orthopaedic Surgery in orthopedic surgery-general and maintain such 
certification at all times during the Term of this Agreement.   

 
4.3.3 Medical Staff Status.  Physician shall at all times during the Term of this 

Agreement be a member in good standing of the KMC medical staff with “active” staff 
status and hold all clinical privileges on the active medical staff appropriate to the 
discharge of his obligations under this Agreement. 

 
4.3.4 TJC and ACGME Compliance.  Physician shall observe and comply with 

all applicable standards and recommendations of The Joint Commission and 
Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education. 
 
4.4 Loss or Limitation.  Physician shall notify KMC in writing as soon as possible 

(but in any event within three (3) business days) after any of the following events occur: (i) 
Physician’s license to practice medicine in the state of California lapses or is denied, suspended, 
revoked, terminated, relinquished or made subject to terms of probation or other restriction; (ii) 
Physician’s medical staff privileges at KMC or any other health care facility are denied, 
suspended, revoked, terminated, relinquished under threat of disciplinary action or made subject 
to terms of probation or other restriction; (iii) Physician’s Controlled Substance Registration 
Certificate issued by the Drug Enforcement Administration is revoked, suspended, terminated, 
relinquished, placed on terms of probation, or restricted in any way; (iv) Physician becomes 
debarred, excluded, or suspended, or if any other event occurs that makes Physician an Ineligible 
Person; (v) Physician becomes the subject of a disciplinary or other proceeding or action before 
any governmental, professional, medical staff or peer review body; or (vi) an event occurs that 
substantially interrupts all or a portion of Physician’s professional practice or that materially 
adversely affects Physician’s ability to perform Physician’s obligations hereunder. 

 
4.5 Standards of Medical Practice.  The standards of medical practice and 

professional duties of Physician at designated Practice Sites shall be in accordance with the 
KMC medical staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies, the standards for physicians 
established by the state Department of Public Health and all other state and federal laws and 
regulations relating to the licensure and practice of physicians, and The Joint Commission. 
 

4.6 Managed Care Contracting.  Physician shall cooperate in all reasonable respects 
necessary to facilitate KMC’s entry into or maintenance of any third-party payer arrangements 
for the provision of services under any other public or private health and/or hospital care 
programs, including but not limited to insurance programs, self-funded employer health 
programs, health care service plans and preferred provider organizations.  To enable KMC to 
participate in any third-party payer arrangements, Physician shall, upon request: (i) enroll as a 
provider (if required by the third-party payer), separate from KMC, with any third-party payer or 
intermediate organization (including any independent practice association) (each, a “Managed 
Care Organization”) designated by KMC for the provision of professional services to patients 
covered by such Managed Care Organization; (ii) enter into a written agreement with such 
Managed Care Organization as may be necessary or appropriate for the provision of professional 
services to patients covered by such Managed Care Organization; and/or (iii) enter into a written 



4 
 

agreement with KMC regarding global billing, capitation or other payment arrangements as may 
be necessary or appropriate for the provision of professional services to patients covered by such 
Managed Care Organization. 
 

4.7 Authorization to Release Information.  Physician hereby authorizes Managed 
Care Organizations, government programs, hospitals and other third parties to release to KMC 
and its agents any information requested by KMC or its agents from time to time relating to 
Physician’s professional qualifications or competency.  Physician agrees to execute the 
Authorization to Release Information in the form set forth in Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference, and to execute all other documents required by KMC from 
time to time and to otherwise fully cooperate with KMC to enable KMC and its agents to obtain 
such information from third parties.   
 

4.8 Medical Records.  Physician shall cause a complete medical record to be timely 
prepared and maintained for each patient seen by Physician.  This record shall be prepared in 
compliance with all state and federal regulations, standards of The Joint Commission, and the 
KMC medical staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies.  Documentation by Physician shall 
conform to the requirements for evaluation and management (E/M) services billed by teaching 
physicians set forth in the Medicare Carriers Manual, Part 3, sections 15016-15018, inclusive.  
All patient medical records of Practice Sites, including without limitation, patient medical 
records generated during the Term of this Agreement, shall be the property of KMC subject to 
the rights of the respective patients.  Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement by 
either party for any reason, KMC shall retain custody and control of such patient medical 
records. 
  

4.9 Physician Private Practice.  Physician understands and agrees that he shall not 
enter into any other physician employment contract or otherwise engage in the private practice of 
medicine or provide similar services to other organizations, directly or indirectly, during the 
Term of this Agreement or any extensions thereof. 

 
4.10 Proprietary Information.  Physician acknowledges that during the Term of this 

Agreement Physician will have contacts with and develop and service KMC patients and 
referring sources of business of KMC.  In all of Physician’s activities, Physician, through the 
nature of his work, will have access to and will acquire confidential information related to the 
business and operations of KMC, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
patient lists and confidential information relating to processes, plans, methods of doing business 
and special needs of referring doctors and patients.  Physician acknowledges that all such 
information is solely the property of KMC and constitutes proprietary and confidential 
information of KMC; and the disclosure thereof would cause substantial loss to the goodwill of 
KMC; and that disclosure to Physician is being made only because of the position of trust and 
confidence that Physician will occupy.  Physician covenants that, except as required by law, 
Physician will not, at any time during the Term or any time thereafter, disclose to any person, 
hospital, firm, partnership, entity or organization (except when authorized in writing by KMC) 
any information whatsoever pertaining to the business or operations of KMC, any affiliate 
thereof or of any other physician employed by KMC, including without limitation, any of the 
kinds of information described in this paragraph.   



5 
 

 4.11 Physician Covenants.  Physician covenants that from the Commencement Date 
and continuing throughout the Term of this Agreement, Physician, unless otherwise permitted by 
the written consent of Authority shall not, on Physician’s own account or as an employee, 
landlord, lender, trustee, associate, consultant, partner, agent, principal, contractor, owner, 
officer, director, investor, member or stockholder of any other person, or in any other capacity, 
directly or indirectly, in whole or in part: (i) engage in any activities that are in competition with 
KMC, including the operation of any medical practice or offering of any medical services that 
are similar to services offered at the Practice Sites; (ii) solicit or encourage the resignation of any 
employee of Authority or KMC with whom Physician had a working relationship during 
Physician’s employment with Authority; (iii) solicit or divert patients with whom Physician had 
personal contact during such employment; or (iv) influence or attempt to influence any payer, 
provider or other person or entity to cease, reduce or alter any business relationship with 
Authority or KMC relating to the Practice Sites. 
 
5. Compensation Package. 

 
5.1 Annual Compensation.  Physician shall work full time, which is a minimum of 80  

hours per biweekly pay period, and will be compensated with cash and other value as described 
below in this paragraph 5.1 (“Annual Salary”).   

 
5.1.1 Annual Salary.  Authority shall pay Physician an Annual Salary comprised 

of (i) a base salary for teaching and administrative services based on the actual number of 
documented hours for assigned teaching and administrative duties multiplied by the 
current Medical Group Management Association Physician Compensation and 
Production Survey (“MGMA Survey”) academic compensation rate of pay per hour and 
(ii) payment for care of KMC patients using the MGMA Survey physician compensation 
with more than one year in the specialty for all physicians section.  This section is 
divided into four categories: 25th percentile, median, 75th percentile and 90th percentile.  
A conversion factor will be established by taking each category and dividing the 
physician compensation in that category by the worked relative value unit (“Worked 
RVU”) in that category.  Physician will be compensated for each Worked RVU by 
multiplying the Worked RVU by the lowest conversion factor for each KMC patient 
(“RVU Effort”).   

 
5.1.2 Salary Adjustment.  KMC will establish an estimate (“Estimate”) of 

Physician’s RVU Effort using Physician’s RVU Effort for the immediately preceding 12-
month period annualized.  The Estimate will be divided by the number of Authority 
payroll periods in a calendar year in order to calculate the amount of RVU Effort to be 
paid to Physician each payroll period (the “Paycheck Amount”).  Within 30 days after the 
end of each quarter, KMC will calculate the RVU Effort for such immediately preceding 
quarter, and adjust the payment for RVU Effort accordingly (the “Actual Amount”).  If 
the Estimate is lower than the Actual Amount, then such difference shall be paid to 
Physician within 30 days after such calculation has been completed, or as of the effective 
date of any termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs sooner.  If the Estimate 
exceeds the Actual Amount, then Physician shall pay such difference to KMC: (i) in a 
lump sum within 30 days after such calculation has been completed; or (ii) through a 



6 
 

reduction in the Paycheck Amount during the next quarter; or (iii) in a lump sum as of the 
effective date of any termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs sooner.  The 
Estimate shall be reestablished as of each Employment Year.  Physician hereby 
expressly grants to KMC the right to offset any amounts owed to KMC against any 
payment to be made to Physician by KMC pursuant to this paragraph if Physician 
fails to pay such excess to KMC.  

     
5.1.3 Time Logs.  Physician shall, on a monthly basis on or before the fifth (5th) 

day of each calendar month during the Term of this Agreement, submit to KMC a written 
time log in the form attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “C,” detailing to 
KMC’s satisfaction the date, time, actual number of hours, and description of activities 
related to assigned teaching and administrative duties during the immediately preceding 
calendar month.   

 
5.1.4 Limitations on Compensation.  Authority shall exclude from payment for 

care of KMC patients any Worked RVU that is not reimbursed by Medicare or Medi-Cal, 
unless authorized in advance by KMC. 

 
5.15 Biweekly Payment.  Physician shall be paid biweekly on the same 

schedule as regular Authority employees.  The exact date of said biweekly payments shall 
be at the sole discretion of Authority.  All payments made by Authority to Physician shall 
be subject to all applicable federal and state taxes and withholding requirements. 

 
5.1.6 Fair Market Value Compensation.  The compensation provided under 

section 5.1 represents the parties’ good faith determination of the reasonable fair market 
value compensation for the services to be provided by Physician under this Agreement.  
 
5.2 Excess Call Coverage.  Authority shall pay Physician for excess call coverage as 

follows: (i) Physician shall be paid the greater of a fixed fee amount of $2,500 or the Worked 
RVU per 24-hour day for weekend1 coverage that exceeds one weekend per month; and (ii) 
Physician shall be paid the greater of a fixed fee amount of $2,500 or the Worked RVU per 24-
hour day for weekday2 coverage that exceeds one weekday per week.  All payments made by 
Authority to Physician shall be subject to all applicable federal and state taxes and withholding 
requirements. 

 
5.3 Professional Fee Billing.   

 
5.3.1 Assignment.  KMC shall have the exclusive right and authority to set, bill, 

collect and retain all fees, including professional fees, for all direct patient care services 
provided by Physician during the Term of this Agreement.  All professional fees 
generated by Physician during the Term of this Agreement, including without limitation, 

                                                      
1 For purposes of weekend call coverage, a “weekend” is defined as Friday through Sunday or, in the event of a 
holiday, Friday through Monday. 
2 For purposes of weekday call coverage, a “weekday” is defined as Monday through Thursday or, in the event of a 
holiday, Tuesday through Thursday. 
 



7 
 

both cash collections and accounts receivable, capitated risk pool fees, professional 
retainer fees, honoraria, professional consulting and teaching fees, and fees for expert 
testimony (but excluding Physician’s private investment and nonprofessional income), 
will be the sole and exclusive property of KMC, whether received by KMC or by 
Physician and whether received during the Term of this Agreement or anytime thereafter.  
Physician hereby assigns all rights to said fees and accounts to KMC and shall execute all 
documents required from time to time by KMC and otherwise fully cooperate with KMC 
to enable KMC to collect fees and accounts from patients and third-party payers. 

 
5.3.2 Remittance of Professional Fee Charges.  Physician shall remit all 

professional fee charges to KMC within 45 days of the date direct patient care services 
are provided by Physician.  Any professional fee charges not remitted by Physician to 
KMC within 45 days of the date of such service, or any charges for which relevant 
documentation has not been provided, will not be credited to Physician as Worked RVU. 

 
5.4 Maximum Payable.  The maximum compensation payable under this Agreement 

shall not exceed $3,300,000 over the three-year Term of this Agreement. 
 
6. Benefits Package. 
 

6.1 Retirement.  Physician shall continue to participate in the Kern County Hospital 
Authority Defined Contribution Plan for Physician Employees (f/k/a Kern County Pension Plan 
for Physician Employees) (the “Plan”), a qualified defined contribution pension plan, pursuant to 
the terms of the instrument under which the Plan has been established, as from time to time 
amended.  Physician is not eligible to participate in any other retirement plan established by 
Authority for its employees, including but not limited to the Kern County Employees’ 
Retirement Association, and this Agreement does not confer upon Physician any right to claim 
entitlement to benefits under any such retirement plan(s). 

 
6.2 Health Care Coverage.  Physician shall continue to receive the same health 

benefits (medical, dental, prescription and vision coverage) as all eligible Authority employees.  
The employee share of cost is 20% of the current biweekly premium.  Physician’s initial hire 
date is the initial opportunity to enroll in the health plan.  Physician must work at least 40 hours 
per biweekly pay period to be eligible for coverage. 

 
6.3 Holidays.  Physician shall be entitled to paid holidays subject to Authority policy, 

as amended from time to time.  Physician will not be paid for banked holidays upon termination 
of employment. 

 
6.4 Vacation.  Physician shall retain his vacation credit balance, if any, as of the 

Commencement Date.  Effective with the Commencement Date, Physician shall be entitled to 
vacation leave subject to Authority policy, as amended from time to time.  Physician shall be 
paid for accrued and unused vacation leave, if any, upon termination or expiration of this 
Agreement calculated at Physician’s current hourly rate (i.e., current Annual Salary divided by 
2080 hours = hourly rate).  All payments made by Authority to Physician under this paragraph 
will be subject to all applicable federal and state taxes and withholding requirements.  



8 
 

   6.5 Sick Leave.  Physician shall retain his sick leave credit balance, if any, as of the 
Commencement Date.  Effective with the Commencement Date, Physician shall be entitled to 
sick leave subject to Authority policy, as amended from time to time.  Physician will not be paid 
for accrued and unused sick leave upon termination of employment.   

 
6.6 Education Leave.  Physician shall receive 80 hours paid education leave annually.  

The first 80 hours will accrue on the Commencement Date.  On each successive Employment 
Year, if any, an additional 80 hours paid education leave will accrue.  Education leave must be 
used within the year that it is accrued.  Physician will not be paid for unused education leave 
upon termination of employment.  The Department chair must approve education leave in 
advance of use.  Physician’s participation in educational programs, services or other approved 
activities set forth herein shall be subordinate to Physician’s obligations and duties under this 
Agreement. 

 
6.7 CME Expense Reimbursement.  Authority shall reimburse Physician for all 

approved reasonable and necessary expenditures related to continuing medical education in an 
amount not to exceed $2,500 per Employment Year, payable in arrears, in accordance with 
Authority policy, as amended from time to time.  This amount may not be accumulated or 
accrued and does not continue to the following Employment Year. 

 
6.8 Kern$Flex.  Physician shall be eligible to participate in flexible spending plans to 

pay for dependent care, non-reimbursed medical expenses, and certain insurance premiums on a 
pre-tax basis through payroll deduction.  This is a voluntary benefit that is paid by Physician if 
he elects to participate in the plan. 

 
6.9 Attendance at Meetings.  Physician shall be permitted to be absent from KMC 

during normal working days to attend professional meetings and to attend to such outside 
professional duties in the healthcare field as may be mutually agreed upon between Physician 
and the Department chair.  Attendance at such approved meetings and accomplishment of 
approved professional duties shall be fully compensated service time and will not be considered 
vacation or education leave.   

 
6.10 Unpaid Leave of Absence.  Physician may take an unpaid leave of absence in 

accordance with Authority policies in effect at the time the leave is taken. 
 
6.11 Social Security.  Physician is exempt from payment of Social Security taxes as the 

Kern County Hospital Authority Defined Contribution Plan for Physician Employees is a 
qualified alternative to the insurance system established by the federal Social Security Act. 

 
6.12 Deferred Compensation.  Physician shall be eligible to participate in the Kern 

County Deferred Compensation Plan (“457 Plan”) on a pre-tax basis.  Physician shall make all 
contributions if he elects to participate in the 457 Plan. 

 
6.13 Disability Insurance.  Physician shall be eligible to purchase Long Term 

Disability or Short Term Disability insurance coverage through payroll deduction on a post-tax 
basis.  This is a voluntary benefit that is paid by Physician if he elects to participate in the plan. 



9 
 

6.14 Employee Assistance/Wellness Programs.  Physician shall be eligible to 
participate in any Authority-sponsored employee assistance and employee wellness programs. 

 
6.15 Limitation on Benefits.  Except as expressly stated herein, Physician shall receive 

no other benefits from Authority. 
 
7. Assignment.  Physician shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or his obligations 
hereunder or any part thereof.  Physician shall not assign any money due or which becomes due 
to Physician under this Agreement without the prior written approval of Authority. 
 
8. Assistance in Litigation.  Upon request, Physician shall support and assist Authority as a 
consultant or expert witness in litigation to which Authority is a party. 
 
9. Authority to Incur Financial Obligation.  It is understood that Physician, in his 
performance of any and all duties under this Agreement, has no right, power or authority to bind 
Authority to any agreements or undertakings. 
 
10. Captions and Interpretation.  Paragraph headings in this Agreement are used solely for 
convenience, and shall be wholly disregarded in the construction of this Agreement.  No 
provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted for or against a party because that party or its 
legal representative drafted such provision, and this Agreement shall be construed as if jointly 
prepared by the parties. 
 
11. Choice of Law/Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed and enforced under and in 
accordance with the laws of the state of California, with venue of any action relating to this 
Agreement in the County of Kern, state of California. 
 
12. Compliance with Law.  Physician shall observe and comply with all applicable 
Authority, local, state and federal laws, ordinances, rules and regulations now in effect or 
hereafter enacted, each of which is hereby made a part hereof and incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
13. Confidentiality.  Physician shall maintain confidentiality with respect to information that 
he receives in the course of his employment and not use or permit the use of or disclose any such 
information in connection with any activity or business to any person, firm or corporation 
whatsoever, unless such disclosure is required in response to a validly issued subpoena or other 
process of law or as required by Government Code section 6250 et seq.  Upon completion of the 
Agreement, the provisions of this paragraph shall continue to survive. 
 
14. Conflict of Interest.  Physician covenants that he has no interest and that he will not 
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a financial conflict of interest under state 
law (Gov. Code, § 81000 et seq.) or that would otherwise conflict in any manner or degree with 
the performance of his services hereunder.  It is understood and agreed that if such a financial 
interest does exist at the inception of this Agreement, Authority may immediately terminate this 
Agreement by giving written notice thereof.   
 



10 
 

15. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument.  
 
16. Dispute Resolution.  In the event of any dispute involving the enforcement or 
interpretation of this Agreement or any of the rights or obligations arising hereunder, the parties 
shall first attempt to resolve their differences by mediation before a mediator of their mutual 
selection.  If the parties are, after mutual good faith efforts, unable to resolve their differences by 
mediation, the dispute shall be submitted for trial before a privately compensated temporary 
judge appointed by the Kern County Superior Court pursuant to Article VI, section 21 of the 
California Constitution and Rules 3.810 through 3.830 of the California Rules of Court.  All 
costs of any dispute resolution procedure shall be borne equally by the parties. 
 
17. Enforcement of Remedies.  No right or remedy herein conferred on or reserved to 
Authority is exclusive of any other right or remedy herein or by law or equity provided or 
permitted, but each shall be cumulative of every other right or remedy given hereunder or now or 
hereafter existing by law or in equity or by statute or otherwise, and may be enforced 
concurrently or from time to time. 
 
18. Indemnification.  Authority shall assume liability for and indemnify and hold Physician 
harmless from any and all claims, losses, expenses, costs, actions, settlements, attorneys’ fees 
and judgments incurred by Physician or for which Physician becomes liable, arising out of or 
related to services rendered or which a third party alleges should have been rendered by 
Physician pursuant to this Agreement.  Authority’s obligation under this paragraph shall extend 
from Physician’s first date of service to Authority and shall survive termination or expiration of 
this Agreement to include all claims that allegedly arise out of services Physician rendered on 
behalf of Authority; provided, however, that the provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to 
any services rendered at any location other than Practice Sites without approval by the Kern 
County Hospital Authority Board of Governors and, provided further, that Authority shall have 
no duty or obligation to defend, indemnify, or hold Physician harmless for any conduct or 
misconduct found to be intentional, willful, grossly negligent, or criminal. 
 
19. Invalidity of a Portion.  Should a portion, section, paragraph, or term of this Agreement 
be construed as invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or a competent state or federal 
agency, the balance of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  Further, to the extent 
any term or portion of this Agreement is found invalid, void or inoperative, the parties agree that 
a court may construe the Agreement in such a manner as will carry into force and effect the 
intent appearing herein. 
 
20. Modifications of Agreement.  This Agreement may be modified in writing only, signed 
by the parties in interest at the time of the modification. 
 
21. Non-appropriation.  Authority reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in the 
event insufficient funds are appropriated or budgeted for this Agreement in any fiscal year.  
Upon such termination, Authority will be released from any further financial obligation to 
Physician, except for services performed prior to the date of termination or any liability due to 



11 
 

any default existing at the time this clause is exercised.  Physician shall be given 30 days’ prior 
written notice in the event that Authority requires such an action. 
 
22. Nondiscrimination.  No party to this Agreement shall discriminate on the basis of race, 
color, religion, sex, national origin, age, marital status or sexual orientation, ancestry, physical or 
mental disability, medical conditions, political affiliation, veteran’s status, citizenship or marital 
or domestic partnership status or on the basis of a perception that an individual is associated with 
a person who has, or is perceived to have, any of these characteristics. 
 
23. Non-waiver.  No covenant or condition of this Agreement can be waived except by the 
written consent of Authority.  Forbearance or indulgence by Authority in any regard whatsoever 
shall not constitute a waiver of the covenant or condition to be performed by Physician.  
Authority shall be entitled to invoke any remedy available to Authority under this Agreement or 
by law or in equity despite said forbearance or indulgence. 
 
24. Notices.  Notices to be given by one party to the other under this Agreement shall be 
given in writing by personal delivery, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or express 
delivery service at the addresses specified below.  Notices delivered personally shall be deemed 
received upon receipt; mailed or expressed notices shall be deemed received four (4) days after 
deposit.  A party may change the address to which notice is to be given by giving notice as 
provided above. 
 

Notice to Physician: Notice to Authority: 
  

Michael J. Eagan, M.D. Kern Medical Center 
12007 Harrington Street 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Bakersfield, California 93311  Bakersfield, California 93306 
 Attn.: Chief Executive Officer 

 
25. Relationship.  Authority and Physician recognize that Physician is rendering specialized, 
professional services.  The parties recognize that each is possessed of legal knowledge and skill, 
and that this Agreement is fully understood by the parties, and is the result of bargaining between 
the parties.  Each party acknowledges their opportunity to fully and independently review and 
consider this Agreement and affirm complete understanding of the effect and operation of its 
terms prior to entering into the same.   
 
26. Severability.  Should any part, term, portion or provision of this Agreement be decided 
finally to be in conflict with any law of the United States or the state of California, or otherwise 
be unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining parts, terms, portions, or provisions 
shall be deemed severable and shall not be affected thereby, provided such remaining portions or 
provisions can be construed in substance to constitute the agreement which the parties intended 
to enter into in the first instance. 
 
27. Sole Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties 
relating to the services, rights, obligations, and covenants contained herein and assumed by the 
parties respectively.  No inducements, representations, or promises have been made, other than 



12 
 

those recited in this Agreement.  No oral promise, modification, change, or inducement shall be 
effective or given any force or effect. 
 
28. Termination.   
 

28.1 Termination without Cause.  Either party shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement, without penalty or cause, by giving not less than 90 days’ prior written notice to the 
other party. 

 
28.2 Immediate Termination.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Authority may terminate 

this Agreement immediately by written notice to Physician upon the occurrence of any of the 
following events: (i) Authority determines that Physician does not have the proper credentials, 
experience, or skill to perform the required services under this Agreement; (ii) Authority 
determines the conduct of Physician in the providing of services may result in civil, criminal, or 
monetary penalties against Authority or KMC; (iii) Physician violates any federal or state law or 
regulatory rule or regulation or condition of accreditation or certification to which Authority or 
Practice Sites is subject; (iv) Physician engages in the commission of a material act involving 
moral turpitude, fraud, dishonesty, embezzlement, misappropriation or financial dishonesty 
against Authority or KMC; (v) the actions of Physician result in the loss or threatened loss of 
KMC’s ability to participate in any federal or state health care program, including Medicare or 
Medi-Cal; (vi) Physician’s license to practice medicine in the state of California lapses or is 
denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, relinquished or made subject to terms of probation or 
other restriction; (vii) Physician’s medical staff privileges are denied, suspended, revoked, 
terminated, relinquished under threat of disciplinary action or made subject to terms of probation 
or other restriction; (viii) Physician’s Controlled Substance Registration Certificate issued by the 
Drug Enforcement Administration is revoked, suspended, terminated, relinquished, placed on 
terms of probation, or restricted in any way; (ix) Physician becomes debarred, excluded, or 
suspended, or if any other event occurs that makes Physician an Ineligible Person; (x) Physician 
fails to make a timely disclosure pursuant to paragraph 4.4; (xi) Physician engages in conduct 
that, in the sole discretion of Authority, is detrimental to patient care or to the reputation or 
operations of Authority and/or KMC; (xii) Physician breaches the confidentiality provisions of 
this Agreement; (xiii) Physician dies; (xiv) Physician fails to follow Authority’s policies and 
procedures and other rules of conduct applicable to all employees of Authority, including 
without limitation, policies prohibiting sexual harassment; (xv) insubordination, flagrant 
tardiness, or interpersonal problems in the workplace with colleagues, patients or associates; or 
(xvi) Physician breaches any covenant set forth in paragraph 4.11. 
 
29. Effect of Termination. 
 

29.1 Payment Obligations.  In the event of termination of this Agreement for any 
reason, Authority shall have no further obligation to pay for any services rendered or expenses 
incurred by Physician after the effective date of the termination, and Physician shall be entitled 
to receive compensation for services satisfactorily rendered, calculated on a prorated basis up to 
the effective date of termination. 

 



13 
 

 29.2 Vacate Premises.  Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, 
Physician shall immediately vacate KMC, removing at such time any and all personal property 
of Physician.  KMC may remove and store, at the expense of Physician, any personal property 
that Physician has not so removed. 
   
 29.3 No Interference.  Following the expiration or earlier termination of this 
Agreement, Physician shall not do anything or cause any person to do anything that might 
interfere with any efforts by Authority or KMC to contract with any other individual or entity for 
the provision of services or to interfere in any way with any relationship between KMC and any 
person who may replace Physician. 
  
 29.4 No Hearing Rights.  Termination of this Agreement by Authority or KMC for any 
reason shall not provide Physician the right to a fair hearing or the other rights more particularly 
set forth in the KMC medical staff bylaws. 
 
30. Liability of Authority.  The liabilities or obligations of Authority with respect to its 
activities pursuant to this Agreement shall be the liabilities or obligations solely of Authority and 
shall not be or become the liabilities or obligations of the County of Kern or any other entity, 
including the state of California. 
 

[Signatures follow on next page] 



14 
 

IN WITNESS TO THE FOREGOING, the parties have executed this Agreement as of 
the day and year first written above. 
 
PHYSICIAN 
 
 
By: __________________________     
      Michael J. Eagan, M.D.  
 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
 
 
By: __________________________      
      Chairman                  
      Board of Governors  
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
KERN MEDICAL CENTER 
 
 
By: __________________________      
      Russell V. Judd                  
      Chief Executive Officer  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 
 
By: __________________________     
      VP & General Counsel 
      Kern County Hospital Authority 
 
 
Agreement.Eagan.043019 



15 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Job Description 

Michael J. Eagan, M.D. 
 
Position Description:  Reports to Chair, Department of Surgery and Chief, Division of 
Orthopedic Surgery; serves as full-time faculty member in the Department; provides no fewer 
than 80 hours per pay period of service; works collaboratively with clinic and surgery staff and 
hospital administration to ensure efficient workflow, adequacy of support equipment, and 
superior patient experience.   
 
Essential Functions: 
 
1. Clinical Responsibilities and Assignments: 

 Provides service and improves efficiency for orthopedic clinic activities and surgical 
cases 

 Provides faculty service for acute trauma and fresh fracture call coverage; rounds and 
follows up as appropriate on patients admitted to KMC 

 Supervises orthopedic Physician Assistant activity and competence 
 Operating Room – minimum of three (3) full days per week 
 KMC, Stockdale Highway, Truxtun Avenue, or other designated clinic sites – minimum 

of three (3) half-day clinics per week 
 Call coverage – one (1) day per week and one (1) weekend per month 

 
2. Administrative Responsibilities: 

 Participates in clinical and administrative integration efforts across KMC as appropriate 
for orthopedic surgery ensuring proper program planning, resource allocation, analysis, 
communication and assessment 

 Gathers data through best practices and collaborates with other members of the 
Department and Division to recommend services that will increase productivity, 
minimize duplication of services, increase workflow efficiency, and provide the highest 
quality of care to KMC patients 

 Supports the Department chair and Division chief in developing monitoring tools to 
measure financial, access, quality, and satisfaction outcomes 

 Attends and actively participates in assigned Medical Staff and hospital committees 
 Participates in the preparation, monitoring, review, and performance of clinical activity in 

the Division 
 Participates in the quality improvement and risk management activities, including peer 

review and quality control functions as assigned to services in the Division 
 Provides didactic teaching and resident physician and medical student education as 

assigned and participates in setting goals and expectations for orthopedic surgery medical 
student rotations 

 Completes medical records in a timely fashion and works to improve the quality, 
accuracy, and completeness of documentation 

 Works collaboratively with other clinical departments to develop a cohesive and 
collaborative environment across departments with a focus of enhancing access to patient 
care for inpatient and outpatient services 



16 
 

 Follows and complies with the Medical Staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies and 
Authority and KMC policies and procedures 

 
Employment Standards: 
One (1) year of post-residency experience in orthopedic surgery  
AND 
Possession of a current valid Physician’s and Surgeon’s Certificate issued by the state of 
California 
AND   
Certification by the American Board of Orthopaedic Surgery in orthopedic surgery-general 
 
Knowledge of:  The principles and practices of modern medicine; current techniques, 
procedures, and equipment applicable to orthopedic surgery; principles of effective supervision 
and program development. 

 
[Intentionally left blank]  



17 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE INFORMATION 
 
 

[See attached] 



18 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE INFORMATION 
 
I, the undersigned physician, hereby authorize Kern Medical Center (“KMC”) and its duly 
authorized representatives to obtain information from time to time about my professional 
education, training, licensure, credentials competence, ethics and character from any source 
having such information.  This information may include, without limitation, peer review 
information, DRG and RVU analyses, ancillary usage information and other utilization and 
quality related data. 

 
I hereby release the Kern County Hospital Authority and KMC, its authorized representatives 
and any third parties from any liability for actions, recommendations, statements, reports, records 
or disclosures, including privileged and confidential information, involving me that are made, 
requested, taken or received by KMC or its authorized representatives to, from or by any third 
parties in good faith and relating to or arising from my professional conduct, character and 
capabilities. 

 
I agree that this authorization to release information shall remain effective until termination of 
my employment by the Kern County Hospital Authority and KMC.  A duplicate of this 
authorization may be relied upon to the same degree as the original by any third party providing 
information pursuant to this request. 

 
 

    
Physician   Date 
  



19 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
TIME LOG FORM 

 
[See attached] 

 
  



20 
 

TIME LOG FORM 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Physician Name     Signature / Date 
 
_________________________________ _______________________ ____________________________ 
Department    Month / Year of Service  Total Hours / Month 
 
Services Provided (please list specific activity performed)  Date  Hours 
 
1. Medical Staff CME Activities 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
2. Hospital Staff Education and Training 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
3. Clinical Supervision 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
4. Quality Improvement Activities (committees, case review, etc.) 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
5. Administration Activities 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
6. Community Education 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
7. Medical Management Activities 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
8. Compliance Activities 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
9. Other Services  
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________  

_____________________________________ ________ _________ 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
June 19, 2019 
 
Subject:  Proposed Agreement with M. Brandon Freeman, M.D., for professional medical services in 
the Department of Surgery 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve an agreement with M. Brandon Freeman, M.D., a contract employee, 
for professional medical services in the Department of Surgery.  Dr.Freeman serves as Chief in the Division of 
Plastic Surgery.  Dr. Freeman is responsible for efficient, key program development, day‐to‐day operations and 
resident education within the Department for the plastic surgery division and has been employed by Kern 
Medical Center since 2008.  
 
The proposed Agreement is for a term of three‐years from July 17, 2019 through July 16, 2022.  Dr. Eagan is paid 
based strictly on his productivity.  The maximum payable will not to exceed $1,800,000 over the three‐year term 
of the Agreement. 
 
Dr. Freeman’s annual salary is calculated based on the current Medical Group Management Association 
Physician Compensation and Production Survey for specialty and represents the reasonable fair market value 
compensation for the services provided by Dr. Freeman. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Agreement with M. Brandon Freeman, M.D., for 
professional medical services in the Department of Surgery from June 25, 2019 through June 24, 2022, in an 
amount not to exceed $1,800,000 over the three‐year term, and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 



1 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
CONTRACT EMPLOYEE 

(Kern County Hospital Authority – M. Brandon Freeman, M.D.) 
 
 This Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of __________, 2019, between 
the Kern County Hospital Authority, a local unit of government (“Authority”), which owns and 
operates Kern Medical Center (“KMC”), and M. Brandon Freeman, M.D. (“Physician”). 

 
I. 

RECITALS 
  

(a) Authority is authorized, pursuant to section 101852 of Part 4 of Division 101 of 
the Health and Safety Code, to contract for special services with individuals specially trained, 
experienced, expert, and competent to perform those services; and 
 

(b) Authority requires the assistance of Physician to provide professional medical 
services in the Department of Surgery at KMC (the “Department”), as such services are 
unavailable from Authority resources, and Physician desires to accept employment on the terms 
and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and 
  

(c) Physician has special training, knowledge and experience to provide such 
services; and 
 

(d) Authority currently contracts with Physician as a contract employee for the 
provision of professional medical services in the Department and teaching services to resident 
physicians employed by Authority (Agt. #2017-049, dated July 19, 2017), for the period July 17, 
2017 through July 16, 2019; and 
 

(e) Each party expressly understands and agrees that Agt. #2017-049 is superseded 
by this Agreement as of the Commencement Date;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

 
II. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of three (3) years, commencing 
as of July 17, 2019 (the “Commencement Date”), and shall end July 16, 2022 (the “Term”), 
unless earlier terminated pursuant to other provisions of this Agreement as herein stated.  This 
Agreement may be renewed for additional terms, but only upon mutual written agreement of the 
parties.  As used herein, an “Employment Year” shall mean the annual period beginning on the 
Commencement Date and each annual period thereafter. 
 
 



2 
 

2. Employment.  Authority hereby employs Physician as Chief, Division of Plastic Surgery 
and for the practice of medicine in the care and treatment of patients at KMC, or at such other 
clinic sites as KMC may designate (collectively referred to as the “Practice Sites”).  It is 
expressly understood and agreed that KMC shall have reasonable discretion to consolidate and 
relocate clinics operated by Authority and to re-designate Practice Sites served by Physician 
from time to time.  Physician shall be subject to Authority’s employment policies, directives, 
rules and regulations as promulgated by Authority from time to time, including, but not limited 
to, those pertaining to employees. 
 
3. Representations and Warranties.  Physician represents and warrants to Authority and 
KMC, upon execution and throughout the Term of this Agreement, as follows: (i) Physician is 
not bound by any agreement or arrangement which would preclude Physician from entering into, 
or from fully performing the services required under this Agreement; (ii) Physician’s license to 
practice medicine in the state of California or in any other jurisdiction has never been denied, 
suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary action, or 
made subject to the terms of probation or other restriction; (iii) Physician’s medical staff 
privileges at any health care facility have never been denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, 
voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary action, or made subject to terms of probation 
or any other restriction; (iv) Physician holds a valid Controlled Substance Registration 
Certificate issued by the Drug Enforcement Administration that has never been revoked, 
suspended, terminated, relinquished, placed on terms of probation, or restricted in any way; (v) 
Physician is not currently and has never been an Ineligible Person1; (vi) Physician is not 
currently the subject of a disciplinary or other proceeding or action before any governmental, 
professional, medical staff or peer review body; and (vii) Physician has, and shall maintain 
throughout the Term of this Agreement, an unrestricted license to practice medicine in the state 
of California and staff membership and privileges at KMC. 
 
4. Obligations of Physician. 
 
 4.1 Services.  Physician shall engage in the practice of medicine on a full-time basis 
as an exempt employee of Authority.  Physician shall render those services set forth in Exhibit 
“A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
4.2 Use of Premises.  Physician shall use the Practice Sites as designated by Authority 

or KMC exclusively for the practice of medicine in the care and treatment of patients and shall 
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations related thereto. 

 
4.3 Qualifications.   
 

4.3.1 Licensure.  Physician shall maintain a current valid license to practice 
medicine in the state of California at all times during the Term of this Agreement. 

                                                      
1 An “Ineligible Person” is an individual or entity who: (i) is currently excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise 
ineligible to participate in the federal health care programs or in federal procurement or non-procurement programs; 
or (ii) has been convicted of a criminal offense that falls within the range of activities described in 42 U.S.C. § 
1320a-7(a), but has not yet been excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise declared ineligible. 
 



3 
 

 
4.3.2 Board Certification.  Physician shall be board certified by the American 

Board of Plastic Surgery in plastic surgery-general and maintain such certification at all 
times during the Term of this Agreement.   

 
4.3.3 Medical Staff Status.  Physician shall at all times during the Term of this 

Agreement be a member in good standing of the KMC medical staff with “active” staff 
status and hold all clinical privileges on the active medical staff appropriate to the 
discharge of his obligations under this Agreement. 

 
4.3.4 TJC and ACGME Compliance.  Physician shall observe and comply with 

all applicable standards and recommendations of The Joint Commission and 
Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education. 
 
4.4 Loss or Limitation.  Physician shall notify KMC in writing as soon as possible 

(but in any event within three (3) business days) after any of the following events occur: (i) 
Physician’s license to practice medicine in the state of California lapses or is denied, suspended, 
revoked, terminated, relinquished or made subject to terms of probation or other restriction; (ii) 
Physician’s medical staff privileges at KMC or any other health care facility are denied, 
suspended, revoked, terminated, relinquished under threat of disciplinary action or made subject 
to terms of probation or other restriction; (iii) Physician’s Controlled Substance Registration 
Certificate issued by the Drug Enforcement Administration is revoked, suspended, terminated, 
relinquished, placed on terms of probation, or restricted in any way; (iv) Physician becomes 
debarred, excluded, or suspended, or if any other event occurs that makes Physician an Ineligible 
Person; (v) Physician becomes the subject of a disciplinary or other proceeding or action before 
any governmental, professional, medical staff or peer review body; or (vi) an event occurs that 
substantially interrupts all or a portion of Physician’s professional practice or that materially 
adversely affects Physician’s ability to perform Physician’s obligations hereunder. 

 
4.5 Standards of Medical Practice.  The standards of medical practice and 

professional duties of Physician at designated Practice Sites shall be in accordance with the 
KMC medical staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies, the standards for physicians 
established by the state Department of Public Health and all other state and federal laws and 
regulations relating to the licensure and practice of physicians, and The Joint Commission. 
 

4.6 Managed Care Contracting.  Physician shall cooperate in all reasonable respects 
necessary to facilitate KMC’s entry into or maintenance of any third-party payer arrangements 
for the provision of services under any other public or private health and/or hospital care 
programs, including but not limited to insurance programs, self-funded employer health 
programs, health care service plans and preferred provider organizations.  To enable KMC to 
participate in any third-party payer arrangements, Physician shall, upon request: (i) enroll as a 
provider (if required by the third-party payer), separate from KMC, with any third-party payer or 
intermediate organization (including any independent practice association) (each, a “Managed 
Care Organization”) designated by KMC for the provision of professional services to patients 
covered by such Managed Care Organization; (ii) enter into a written agreement with such 
Managed Care Organization as may be necessary or appropriate for the provision of professional 



4 
 

services to patients covered by such Managed Care Organization; and/or (iii) enter into a written 
agreement with KMC regarding global billing, capitation or other payment arrangements as may 
be necessary or appropriate for the provision of professional services to patients covered by such 
Managed Care Organization. 
 

4.7 Authorization to Release Information.  Physician hereby authorizes Managed 
Care Organizations, government programs, hospitals and other third parties to release to KMC 
and its agents any information requested by KMC or its agents from time to time relating to 
Physician’s professional qualifications or competency.  Physician agrees to execute the 
Authorization to Release Information in the form set forth in Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference, and to execute all other documents required by KMC from 
time to time and to otherwise fully cooperate with KMC to enable KMC and its agents to obtain 
such information from third parties.   
 

4.8 Medical Records.  Physician shall cause a complete medical record to be timely 
prepared and maintained for each patient seen by Physician.  This record shall be prepared in 
compliance with all state and federal regulations, standards of The Joint Commission, and the 
KMC medical staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies.  Documentation by Physician shall 
conform to the requirements for evaluation and management (E/M) services billed by teaching 
physicians set forth in the Medicare Carriers Manual, Part 3, sections 15016-15018, inclusive.  
All patient medical records of Practice Sites, including without limitation, patient medical 
records generated during the Term of this Agreement, shall be the property of KMC subject to 
the rights of the respective patients.  Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement by 
either party for any reason, KMC shall retain custody and control of such patient medical 
records. 
  

4.9 Physician Private Practice.  Physician shall be permitted to provide services 
outside KMC, as an independent contractor, during the Term of this Agreement.  Physician, 
while engaged in activities outside KMC or the scope of this Agreement, is not covered by the 
professional liability insurance provided by Authority under this Agreement during the 
performance of such activities.  If Physician engages in outside activities, which are beyond the 
scope of this Agreement, Physician hereby agrees to indemnify and hold Authority and KMC 
harmless from and against any and all liability arising therefrom. 

 
4.10 Proprietary Information.  Physician acknowledges that during the Term of this 

Agreement Physician will have contacts with and develop and service KMC patients and 
referring sources of business of KMC.  In all of Physician’s activities, Physician, through the 
nature of his work, will have access to and will acquire confidential information related to the 
business and operations of KMC, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
patient lists and confidential information relating to processes, plans, methods of doing business 
and special needs of referring doctors and patients.  Physician acknowledges that all such 
information is solely the property of KMC and constitutes proprietary and confidential 
information of KMC; and the disclosure thereof would cause substantial loss to the goodwill of 
KMC; and that disclosure to Physician is being made only because of the position of trust and 
confidence that Physician will occupy.  Physician covenants that, except as required by law, 
Physician will not, at any time during the Term or any time thereafter, disclose to any person, 



5 
 

hospital, firm, partnership, entity or organization (except when authorized in writing by KMC) 
any information whatsoever pertaining to the business or operations of KMC, any affiliate 
thereof or of any other physician employed by KMC, including without limitation, any of the 
kinds of information described in this paragraph.   

 
 4.11 Physician Covenants.  Physician covenants that from the Commencement Date 
and continuing throughout the Term of this Agreement, Physician, unless otherwise permitted by 
the written consent of Authority shall not, on Physician’s own account or as an employee, 
landlord, lender, trustee, associate, consultant, partner, agent, principal, contractor, owner, 
officer, director, investor, member or stockholder of any other person, or in any other capacity, 
directly or indirectly, in whole or in part: (i) engage in any activities that are in competition with 
KMC, including the operation of any medical practice or offering of any medical services that 
are similar to services offered at the Practice Sites; (ii) solicit or encourage the resignation of any 
employee of Authority or KMC with whom Physician had a working relationship during 
Physician’s employment with Authority; (iii) solicit or divert patients with whom Physician had 
personal contact during such employment; or (iv) influence or attempt to influence any payer, 
provider or other person or entity to cease, reduce or alter any business relationship with 
Authority or KMC relating to the Practice Sites. 
 
5. Compensation Package. 

 
5.1 Annual Compensation.  Physician shall work full time, which is a minimum of 80  

hours per biweekly pay period, and will be compensated with cash and other value as described 
below in this paragraph 5.1 (“Annual Salary”).   

 
5.1.1 Annual Salary.  Authority shall pay Physician an Annual Salary comprised 

of (i) a base salary for teaching and administrative services as Chief, Division of Plastic 
Surgery in the amount of $83,005 per year and (ii) payment for care of KMC patients 
using the current Medical Group Management Association Physician Compensation and 
Production Survey with more than one year in the specialty for all physicians section.  
This section is divided into four categories: 25th percentile, median, 75th percentile and 
90th percentile.  A conversion factor will be established by taking each category and 
dividing the physician compensation in that category by the worked relative value unit 
(“Worked RVU”) in that category.  Physician will be compensated for each Worked 
RVU by multiplying the Worked RVU by the median conversion factor for each KMC 
patient (“RVU Effort”).   

 
5.1.2 Salary Adjustment.  KMC will establish an estimate (“Estimate”) of 

Physician’s RVU Effort using Physician’s RVU Effort for the immediately preceding 12-
month period annualized.  The Estimate will be divided by the number of Authority 
payroll periods in a calendar year in order to calculate the amount of RVU Effort to be 
paid to Physician each payroll period (the “Paycheck Amount”).  Within 30 days after the 
end of each quarter, KMC will calculate the RVU Effort for such immediately preceding 
quarter, and adjust the payment for RVU Effort accordingly (the “Actual Amount”).  If 
the Estimate is lower than the Actual Amount, then such difference shall be paid to 
Physician within 30 days after such calculation has been completed, or as of the effective 



6 
 

date of any termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs sooner.  If the Estimate 
exceeds the Actual Amount, then Physician shall pay such difference to KMC: (i) in a 
lump sum within 30 days after such calculation has been completed; or (ii) through a 
reduction in the Paycheck Amount during the next quarter; or (iii) in a lump sum as of the 
effective date of any termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs sooner.  The 
Estimate shall be reestablished as of each Employment Year.  Physician hereby 
expressly grants to KMC the right to offset any amounts owed to KMC against any 
payment to be made to Physician by KMC pursuant to this paragraph if Physician 
fails to pay such excess to KMC.  

     
5.1.3 Time Logs.  Physician shall, on a monthly basis on or before the fifth (5th) 

day of each calendar month during the Term of this Agreement, submit to KMC a written 
time log in the form attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “C,” detailing to 
KMC’s satisfaction the date, time, actual number of hours, and description of activities 
related to assigned teaching and administrative duties during the immediately preceding 
calendar month.   

 
5.1.4 Limitations on Compensation.  Authority shall exclude from payment for 

care of KMC patients any Worked RVU that is not reimbursed by Medicare or Medi-Cal, 
unless authorized in advance by KMC. 

 
5.15 Biweekly Payment.  Physician shall be paid biweekly on the same 

schedule as regular Authority employees.  The exact date of said biweekly payments shall 
be at the sole discretion of Authority.  All payments made by Authority to Physician shall 
be subject to all applicable federal and state taxes and withholding requirements. 

 
5.1.6 Fair Market Value Compensation.  The compensation provided under 

section 5.1 represents the parties’ good faith determination of the reasonable fair market 
value compensation for the services to be provided by Physician under this Agreement.  
 
5.2 Call Coverage.  Authority will pay Physician a fixed fee in the amount of $750 

per 24-hour day, less all applicable federal and state taxes and withholdings, for weekday call 
coverage that exceed one (1) in four (4) days and weekend call coverage that exceeds one (1) in 
four (4) weekends. 

 
5.3 Professional Fee Billing.   

 
5.3.1 Assignment.  KMC shall have the exclusive right and authority to set, bill, 

collect and retain all fees, including professional fees, for all direct patient care services 
provided by Physician during the Term of this Agreement.  All professional fees 
generated by Physician during the Term of this Agreement, including without limitation, 
both cash collections and accounts receivable, capitated risk pool fees, professional 
retainer fees, honoraria, professional consulting and teaching fees, and fees for expert 
testimony (but excluding Physician’s private investment and nonprofessional income), 
will be the sole and exclusive property of KMC, whether received by KMC or by 
Physician and whether received during the Term of this Agreement or anytime thereafter.  



7 
 

Physician hereby assigns all rights to said fees and accounts to KMC and shall execute all 
documents required from time to time by KMC and otherwise fully cooperate with KMC 
to enable KMC to collect fees and accounts from patients and third-party payers. 

 
5.3.2 Remittance of Professional Fee Charges.  Physician shall remit all 

professional fee charges to KMC within 45 days of the date direct patient care services 
are provided by Physician.  Any professional fee charges not remitted by Physician to 
KMC within 45 days of the date of such service, or any charges for which relevant 
documentation has not been provided, will not be credited to Physician as Worked RVU. 

 
5.4 Maximum Payable.  The maximum compensation payable under this Agreement 

shall not exceed $1,800,000 over the three-year Term of this Agreement. 
 
6. Benefits Package. 
 

6.1 Retirement.  Physician shall continue to participate in the Kern County Hospital 
Authority Defined Contribution Plan for Physician Employees (the “Plan”), a qualified defined 
contribution pension plan, pursuant to the terms of the instrument under which the Plan has been 
established, as from time to time amended.  Physician is not eligible to participate in any other 
retirement plan established by Authority for its employees, including but not limited to the Kern 
County Employees’ Retirement Association, and this Agreement does not confer upon Physician 
any right to claim entitlement to benefits under any such retirement plan(s). 

 
6.2 Health Care Coverage.  Physician shall continue to receive the same health 

benefits (medical, dental, prescription and vision coverage) as all eligible Authority employees.  
The employee share of cost is 20% of the current biweekly premium.  Physician’s initial hire 
date is the initial opportunity to enroll in the health plan.  Physician must work at least 40 hours 
per biweekly pay period to be eligible for coverage. 

 
6.3 Holidays.  Physician shall be entitled to paid holidays subject to Authority policy, 

as amended from time to time.  Physician will not be paid for banked holidays upon termination 
of employment. 

 
6.4 Vacation.  Physician shall retain his vacation credit balance, if any, as of the 

Commencement Date.  Effective with the Commencement Date, Physician shall be entitled to 
vacation leave subject to Authority policy, as amended from time to time.  Physician shall be 
paid for accrued and unused vacation leave, if any, upon termination or expiration of this 
Agreement calculated at Physician’s current hourly rate (i.e., current Annual Salary divided by 
2080 hours = hourly rate).  All payments made by Authority to Physician under this paragraph 
will be subject to all applicable federal and state taxes and withholding requirements.  
    

6.5 Sick Leave.  Physician shall retain his sick leave credit balance, if any, as of the 
Commencement Date.  Effective with the Commencement Date, Physician shall be entitled to 
sick leave subject to Authority policy, as amended from time to time.  Physician will not be paid 
for accrued and unused sick leave upon termination of employment.   

 



8 
 

 
6.6 Education Leave.  Physician shall receive 80 hours paid education leave annually.  

The first 80 hours will accrue on the Commencement Date.  On each successive Employment 
Year, if any, an additional 80 hours paid education leave will accrue.  Education leave must be 
used within the year that it is accrued.  Physician will not be paid for unused education leave 
upon termination of employment.  The Department chair must approve education leave in 
advance of use.  Physician’s participation in educational programs, services or other approved 
activities set forth herein shall be subordinate to Physician’s obligations and duties under this 
Agreement. 

 
6.7 CME Expense Reimbursement.  Authority shall reimburse Physician for all 

approved reasonable and necessary expenditures related to continuing medical education in an 
amount not to exceed $2,500 per Employment Year, payable in arrears, in accordance with 
Authority policy, as amended from time to time.  This amount may not be accumulated or 
accrued and does not continue to the following Employment Year. 

 
6.8 Kern$Flex.  Physician shall be eligible to participate in flexible spending plans to 

pay for dependent care, non-reimbursed medical expenses, and certain insurance premiums on a 
pre-tax basis through payroll deduction.  This is a voluntary benefit that is paid by Physician if 
he elects to participate in the plan. 

 
6.9 Attendance at Meetings.  Physician shall be permitted to be absent from KMC 

during normal working days to attend professional meetings and to attend to such outside 
professional duties in the healthcare field as may be mutually agreed upon between Physician 
and the Department chair.  Attendance at such approved meetings and accomplishment of 
approved professional duties shall be fully compensated service time and will not be considered 
vacation or education leave.   

 
6.10 Unpaid Leave of Absence.  Physician may take an unpaid leave of absence in 

accordance with Authority policies in effect at the time the leave is taken. 
 
6.11 Social Security.  Physician is exempt from payment of Social Security taxes as the 

Kern County Hospital Authority Defined Contribution Plan for Physician Employees is a 
qualified alternative to the insurance system established by the federal Social Security Act. 

 
6.12 Deferred Compensation.  Physician shall be eligible to participate in the Kern 

County Deferred Compensation Plan (“457 Plan”) on a pre-tax basis.  Physician shall make all 
contributions if he elects to participate in the 457 Plan. 

 
6.13 Disability Insurance.  Physician shall be eligible to purchase Long Term 

Disability or Short Term Disability insurance coverage through payroll deduction on a post-tax 
basis.  This is a voluntary benefit that is paid by Physician if he elects to participate in the plan. 

 
6.14 Employee Assistance/Wellness Programs.  Physician shall be eligible to 

participate in any Authority-sponsored employee assistance and employee wellness programs. 
 



9 
 

6.15 Limitation on Benefits.  Except as expressly stated herein, Physician shall receive 
no other benefits from Authority. 
 
7. Assignment.  Physician shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or his obligations 
hereunder or any part thereof.  Physician shall not assign any money due or which becomes due 
to Physician under this Agreement without the prior written approval of Authority. 
 
8. Assistance in Litigation.  Upon request, Physician shall support and assist Authority as a 
consultant or expert witness in litigation to which Authority is a party. 
 
9. Authority to Incur Financial Obligation.  It is understood that Physician, in his 
performance of any and all duties under this Agreement, has no right, power or authority to bind 
Authority to any agreements or undertakings. 
 
10. Captions and Interpretation.  Paragraph headings in this Agreement are used solely for 
convenience, and shall be wholly disregarded in the construction of this Agreement.  No 
provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted for or against a party because that party or its 
legal representative drafted such provision, and this Agreement shall be construed as if jointly 
prepared by the parties. 
 
11. Choice of Law/Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed and enforced under and in 
accordance with the laws of the state of California, with venue of any action relating to this 
Agreement in the County of Kern, state of California. 
 
12. Compliance with Law.  Physician shall observe and comply with all applicable 
Authority, local, state and federal laws, ordinances, rules and regulations now in effect or 
hereafter enacted, each of which is hereby made a part hereof and incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
13. Confidentiality.  Physician shall maintain confidentiality with respect to information that 
he receives in the course of his employment and not use or permit the use of or disclose any such 
information in connection with any activity or business to any person, firm or corporation 
whatsoever, unless such disclosure is required in response to a validly issued subpoena or other 
process of law or as required by Government Code section 6250 et seq.  Upon completion of the 
Agreement, the provisions of this paragraph shall continue to survive. 
 
14. Conflict of Interest.  Physician covenants that he has no interest and that he will not 
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a financial conflict of interest under state 
law (Gov. Code, § 81000 et seq.) or that would otherwise conflict in any manner or degree with 
the performance of his services hereunder.  It is understood and agreed that if such a financial 
interest does exist at the inception of this Agreement, Authority may immediately terminate this 
Agreement by giving written notice thereof.   
 
15. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument.  



10 
 

16. Dispute Resolution.  In the event of any dispute involving the enforcement or 
interpretation of this Agreement or any of the rights or obligations arising hereunder, the parties 
shall first attempt to resolve their differences by mediation before a mediator of their mutual 
selection.  If the parties are, after mutual good faith efforts, unable to resolve their differences by 
mediation, the dispute shall be submitted for trial before a privately compensated temporary 
judge appointed by the Kern County Superior Court pursuant to Article VI, section 21 of the 
California Constitution and Rules 3.810 through 3.830 of the California Rules of Court.  All 
costs of any dispute resolution procedure shall be borne equally by the parties. 
 
17. Enforcement of Remedies.  No right or remedy herein conferred on or reserved to 
Authority is exclusive of any other right or remedy herein or by law or equity provided or 
permitted, but each shall be cumulative of every other right or remedy given hereunder or now or 
hereafter existing by law or in equity or by statute or otherwise, and may be enforced 
concurrently or from time to time. 
 
18. Indemnification.  Authority shall assume liability for and indemnify and hold Physician 
harmless from any and all claims, losses, expenses, costs, actions, settlements, attorneys’ fees 
and judgments incurred by Physician or for which Physician becomes liable, arising out of or 
related to services rendered or which a third party alleges should have been rendered by 
Physician pursuant to this Agreement.  Authority’s obligation under this paragraph shall extend 
from Physician’s first date of service to Authority and shall survive termination or expiration of 
this Agreement to include all claims that allegedly arise out of services Physician rendered on 
behalf of Authority; provided, however, that the provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to 
any services rendered at any location other than designated KMC Practice Sites without approval 
by the Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors, including, without limitation, 
outside activities beyond the scope of this Agreement, and, provided further, that Authority shall 
have no duty or obligation to defend, indemnify, or hold Physician harmless for any conduct or 
misconduct found to be intentional, willful, grossly negligent, or criminal. 
 
19. Invalidity of a Portion.  Should a portion, section, paragraph, or term of this Agreement 
be construed as invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or a competent state or federal 
agency, the balance of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  Further, to the extent 
any term or portion of this Agreement is found invalid, void or inoperative, the parties agree that 
a court may construe the Agreement in such a manner as will carry into force and effect the 
intent appearing herein. 
 
20. Modifications of Agreement.  This Agreement may be modified in writing only, signed 
by the parties in interest at the time of the modification. 
 
21. Non-appropriation.  Authority reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in the 
event insufficient funds are appropriated or budgeted for this Agreement in any fiscal year.  
Upon such termination, Authority will be released from any further financial obligation to 
Physician, except for services performed prior to the date of termination or any liability due to 
any default existing at the time this clause is exercised.  Physician shall be given 30 days’ prior 
written notice in the event that Authority requires such an action. 
 



11 
 

22. Nondiscrimination.  No party to this Agreement shall discriminate on the basis of race, 
color, religion, sex, national origin, age, marital status or sexual orientation, ancestry, physical or 
mental disability, medical conditions, political affiliation, veteran’s status, citizenship or marital 
or domestic partnership status or on the basis of a perception that an individual is associated with 
a person who has, or is perceived to have, any of these characteristics. 
 
23. Non-waiver.  No covenant or condition of this Agreement can be waived except by the 
written consent of Authority.  Forbearance or indulgence by Authority in any regard whatsoever 
shall not constitute a waiver of the covenant or condition to be performed by Physician.  
Authority shall be entitled to invoke any remedy available to Authority under this Agreement or 
by law or in equity despite said forbearance or indulgence. 
 
24. Notices.  Notices to be given by one party to the other under this Agreement shall be 
given in writing by personal delivery, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or express 
delivery service at the addresses specified below.  Notices delivered personally shall be deemed 
received upon receipt; mailed or expressed notices shall be deemed received four (4) days after 
deposit.  A party may change the address to which notice is to be given by giving notice as 
provided above. 
 

Notice to Physician: Notice to Authority: 
  

M. Brandon Freeman, M.D. Kern Medical Center 
14009 Yokuts Lane 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Bakersfield, California 93306 Bakersfield, California 93306 
 Attn.: Chief Executive Officer 

 
25. Relationship.  Authority and Physician recognize that Physician is rendering specialized, 
professional services.  The parties recognize that each is possessed of legal knowledge and skill, 
and that this Agreement is fully understood by the parties, and is the result of bargaining between 
the parties.  Each party acknowledges their opportunity to fully and independently review and 
consider this Agreement and affirm complete understanding of the effect and operation of its 
terms prior to entering into the same.   
 
26. Severability.  Should any part, term, portion or provision of this Agreement be decided 
finally to be in conflict with any law of the United States or the state of California, or otherwise 
be unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining parts, terms, portions, or provisions 
shall be deemed severable and shall not be affected thereby, provided such remaining portions or 
provisions can be construed in substance to constitute the agreement which the parties intended 
to enter into in the first instance. 
 
27. Sole Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties 
relating to the services, rights, obligations, and covenants contained herein and assumed by the 
parties respectively.  No inducements, representations, or promises have been made, other than 
those recited in this Agreement.  No oral promise, modification, change, or inducement shall be 
effective or given any force or effect. 
 



12 
 

28. Termination.   
 

28.1 Termination without Cause.  Either party shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement, without penalty or cause, by giving not less than 90 days’ prior written notice to the 
other party. 

 
28.2 Immediate Termination.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Authority may terminate 

this Agreement immediately by written notice to Physician upon the occurrence of any of the 
following events: (i) Authority determines that Physician does not have the proper credentials, 
experience, or skill to perform the required services under this Agreement; (ii) Authority 
determines the conduct of Physician in the providing of services may result in civil, criminal, or 
monetary penalties against Authority or KMC; (iii) Physician violates any federal or state law or 
regulatory rule or regulation or condition of accreditation or certification to which Authority or 
Practice Sites is subject; (iv) Physician engages in the commission of a material act involving 
moral turpitude, fraud, dishonesty, embezzlement, misappropriation or financial dishonesty 
against Authority or KMC; (v) the actions of Physician result in the loss or threatened loss of 
KMC’s ability to participate in any federal or state health care program, including Medicare or 
Medi-Cal; (vi) Physician’s license to practice medicine in the state of California lapses or is 
denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, relinquished or made subject to terms of probation or 
other restriction; (vii) Physician’s medical staff privileges are denied, suspended, revoked, 
terminated, relinquished under threat of disciplinary action or made subject to terms of probation 
or other restriction; (viii) Physician’s Controlled Substance Registration Certificate issued by the 
Drug Enforcement Administration is revoked, suspended, terminated, relinquished, placed on 
terms of probation, or restricted in any way; (ix) Physician becomes debarred, excluded, or 
suspended, or if any other event occurs that makes Physician an Ineligible Person; (x) Physician 
fails to make a timely disclosure pursuant to paragraph 4.4; (xi) Physician engages in conduct 
that, in the sole discretion of Authority, is detrimental to patient care or to the reputation or 
operations of Authority and/or KMC; (xii) Physician breaches the confidentiality provisions of 
this Agreement; (xiii) Physician dies; (xiv) Physician fails to follow Authority’s policies and 
procedures and other rules of conduct applicable to all employees of Authority, including 
without limitation, policies prohibiting sexual harassment; (xv) insubordination, flagrant 
tardiness, or interpersonal problems in the workplace with colleagues, patients or associates; or 
(xvi) Physician breaches any covenant set forth in paragraph 4.11. 
 
29. Effect of Termination. 
 

29.1 Payment Obligations.  In the event of termination of this Agreement for any 
reason, Authority shall have no further obligation to pay for any services rendered or expenses 
incurred by Physician after the effective date of the termination, and Physician shall be entitled 
to receive compensation for services satisfactorily rendered, calculated on a prorated basis up to 
the effective date of termination. 

 
 29.2 Vacate Premises.  Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, 
Physician shall immediately vacate KMC, removing at such time any and all personal property 
of Physician.  KMC may remove and store, at the expense of Physician, any personal property 
that Physician has not so removed. 



13 
 

 29.3 No Interference.  Following the expiration or earlier termination of this 
Agreement, Physician shall not do anything or cause any person to do anything that might 
interfere with any efforts by Authority or KMC to contract with any other individual or entity for 
the provision of services or to interfere in any way with any relationship between KMC and any 
person who may replace Physician. 
  
 29.4 No Hearing Rights.  Termination of this Agreement by Authority or KMC for any 
reason shall not provide Physician the right to a fair hearing or the other rights more particularly 
set forth in the KMC medical staff bylaws. 
 
30. Liability of Authority.  The liabilities or obligations of Authority with respect to its 
activities pursuant to this Agreement shall be the liabilities or obligations solely of Authority and 
shall not be or become the liabilities or obligations of the County of Kern or any other entity, 
including the state of California. 
 

[Signatures follow on next page] 



14 
 

IN WITNESS TO THE FOREGOING, the parties have executed this Agreement as of 
the day and year first written above. 
 
PHYSICIAN 
 
 
By: __________________________     
      M. Brandon Freeman, M.D.  
 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
 
 
By: __________________________      
      Chairman                  
      Board of Governors  
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
KERN MEDICAL CENTER 
 
 
By: __________________________      
      Russell V. Judd                  
      Chief Executive Officer  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 
 
By: __________________________     
      VP & General Counsel 
      Kern County Hospital Authority 
 
 
Agreement.Freeman.050319 



15 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Job Description 

M. Brandon Freeman, M.D. 
 
Position: Chief, Division of Plastic Surgery. 
 
Position Description: Reports to Chair, Department of Surgery; serves as the chief physician 
responsible for efficient, key program development, day-to-day operations and resident 
education within the Department for the plastic surgery division at KMC; serves as a full-time 
faculty member in the Department; provides no fewer than 80 hours per pay period of service. 
 
Essential Functions: 
 
1. Clinical Responsibilities.   

• Serves as attending physician in the Division of Plastic Surgery 
• Supervises residents and medical students assigned to the plastic surgery service 
• Supervises orthopedic and plastic surgery physician assistant activity and competency 
• Provides service and improves efficiency for hand, plastic and microvascular surgery 

clinical activities – two (2) half days per week 
• Provides service and improves efficiency for hand and plastic surgery cases 
• Provides faculty call coverage for hand, plastic and maxilla-facial trauma 
 

2. Administrative Responsibilities.   
• Serves as Chief, Division of Plastic Surgery 
• Leads clinical and administrative integration efforts across KMC as appropriate for 

hand, plastic and microvascular surgery ensuring proper program planning, surgeon 
recruitment and faculty development, resource allocation, analysis, communication 
and assessment 

• Gathers data through best practices and collaborates with other members of the 
Department to recommend services that will increase productivity, minimize 
duplication of services, increase workflow efficiency, and provide the highest quality 
of care to KMC patients 

• Supports the Department chair with development of monitoring tools to measure 
financial, access, quality and satisfaction outcomes for hand, plastic and 
microvascular surgery 
 

3. Teaching Responsibilities.   
• Assists in resident mentoring, counseling, and evaluation, as appropriate 
• Assists in resident research and scholarly activity 
• Provides didactic lectures for residents and medical students, as assigned by one or 

more program directors 
 

Employment Standards: 
One (1) year of post-residency experience in plastic surgery 
AND 
 



16 
 

Possession of a current valid Physician’s and Surgeon’s Certificate issued by the state of 
California 
AND   
Certification by the American Board of Plastic Surgery in plastic surgery-general 
 
Knowledge of:  The principles and practices of modern medicine; current techniques, 
procedures, and equipment applicable to the field of plastic surgery; principles of effective 
supervision and program development. 
 
Ability to:  Plan, organize, direct and coordinate plastic surgery services; perform plastic surgery 
procedures; supervise and instruct professional and technical personnel; develop and present 
educational programs for interns, residents and ancillary medical staff; maintain records and 
prepare comprehensive reports; work effectively with staff, patients, and others. 

 
[Intentionally left blank]  



17 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE INFORMATION 
 
 

[See attached] 



18 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE INFORMATION 
 
I, the undersigned physician, hereby authorize Kern Medical Center (“KMC”) and its duly 
authorized representatives to obtain information from time to time about my professional 
education, training, licensure, credentials competence, ethics and character from any source 
having such information.  This information may include, without limitation, peer review 
information, DRG and RVU analyses, ancillary usage information and other utilization and 
quality related data. 

 
I hereby release the Kern County Hospital Authority and KMC, its authorized representatives 
and any third parties from any liability for actions, recommendations, statements, reports, records 
or disclosures, including privileged and confidential information, involving me that are made, 
requested, taken or received by KMC or its authorized representatives to, from or by any third 
parties in good faith and relating to or arising from my professional conduct, character and 
capabilities. 

 
I agree that this authorization to release information shall remain effective until termination of 
my employment by the Kern County Hospital Authority and KMC.  A duplicate of this 
authorization may be relied upon to the same degree as the original by any third party providing 
information pursuant to this request. 

 
 

    
Physician   Date 
  



19 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
TIME LOG FORM 

 
[See attached] 

 
  



20 
 

TIME LOG FORM 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Physician Name     Signature / Date 
 
_________________________________ _______________________ ____________________________ 
Department    Month / Year of Service  Total Hours / Month 
 
Services Provided (please list specific activity performed)  Date  Hours 
 
1. Medical Staff CME Activities 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
2. Hospital Staff Education and Training 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
3. Clinical Supervision 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
4. Quality Improvement Activities (committees, case review, etc.) 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
5. Administration Activities 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
6. Community Education 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
7. Medical Management Activities 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
8. Compliance Activities 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 
9. Other Services  
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________ 
 _____________________________________ ________ _________  

_____________________________________ ________ _________ 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
June 19, 2019 
 
Subject:  Proposed Agreement with Ramon S. Snyder, M.D., for professional medical services in the 
Department of Surgery 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve an agreement with Ramon S. Snyder, M.D., a contract employee, for 
professional medical services in the Department of Surgery.  Dr. Snyder serves as Director of minimally invasive 
surgery and has been employed by Kern Medical since 2012.   Dr. Snyder participates in clinical and 
administrative integration efforts across the hospital as appropriate for the Department ensuring proper 
program planning, resource allocation, analysis, communication, and assessment. 
 
The proposed Agreement is for a term of three‐years from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022, the maximum 
payable will not to exceed $1,602,000 over the three‐year term of the Agreement. 
 
Dr. Snyder’s annual salary is calculated based on the current Medical Group Management Association Physician 
Compensation and Production Survey for specialty and represents the reasonable fair market value 
compensation for the services provided by Dr. Snyder. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Agreement with Ramon S. Snyder, M.D., for 
professional medical services in the Department of Surgery from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022, in an 
amount not to exceed $1,602,000 over the three‐year term, and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 



1 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
CONTRACT EMPLOYEE 

(Kern County Hospital Authority – Ramon S. Snyder, M.D.) 
 
 This Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of __________, 2019, between 
the Kern County Hospital Authority, a local unit of government (“Authority”), which owns and 
operates Kern Medical Center (“KMC”), and Ramon S. Snyder, M.D. (“Physician”). 

 
I. 

RECITALS 
  

(a) Authority is authorized, pursuant to section 101852 of Part 4 of Division 101 of 
the Health and Safety Code, to contract for special services with individuals specially trained, 
experienced, expert, and competent to perform those services; and 
 

(b) Authority requires the assistance of Physician to provide professional medical 
services in the Department of Surgery at KMC (the “Department”), as such services are 
unavailable from Authority resources, and Physician desires to accept employment on the terms 
and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and 
  

(c) Physician has special training, knowledge and experience to provide such 
services; and 
 

(d) Authority currently contracts with Physician as a contract employee for the 
provision of professional medical services in the Department and teaching services to resident 
physicians employed by Authority (Kern County Agt. #823-2016, dated June 28, 2016), for the 
period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019; and 
 

(e) Each party expressly understands and agrees that Kern County Agt. #823-2016 is 
superseded by this Agreement as of the Commencement Date;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

 
II. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of three (3) years, commencing 
as of July 1, 2019 (the “Commencement Date”), and shall end June 30, 2022 (the “Term”), 
unless earlier terminated pursuant to other provisions of this Agreement as herein stated.  This 
Agreement may be renewed for additional terms, but only upon mutual written agreement of the 
parties.  As used herein, an “Employment Year” shall mean the annual period beginning on the 
Commencement Date and each annual period thereafter. 
 
 



2 
 

2. Employment.  Authority hereby employs Physician for the practice of medicine in the 
care and treatment of patients at KMC, or at such other clinic sites as KMC may designate 
(collectively referred to as the “Practice Sites”).  It is expressly understood and agreed that KMC 
shall have reasonable discretion to consolidate and relocate clinics operated by Authority and to 
re-designate Practice Sites served by Physician from time to time.  Physician shall be subject to 
Authority’s employment policies, directives, rules and regulations as promulgated by Authority 
from time to time, including, but not limited to, those pertaining to employees. 
 
3. Representations and Warranties.  Physician represents and warrants to Authority and 
KMC, upon execution and throughout the Term of this Agreement, as follows: (i) Physician is 
not bound by any agreement or arrangement which would preclude Physician from entering into, 
or from fully performing the services required under this Agreement; (ii) Physician’s license to 
practice medicine in the state of California or in any other jurisdiction has never been denied, 
suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary action, or 
made subject to the terms of probation or other restriction; (iii) Physician’s medical staff 
privileges at any health care facility have never been denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, 
voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary action, or made subject to terms of probation 
or any other restriction; (iv) Physician holds a valid Controlled Substance Registration 
Certificate issued by the Drug Enforcement Administration that has never been revoked, 
suspended, terminated, relinquished, placed on terms of probation, or restricted in any way; (v) 
Physician is not currently and has never been an Ineligible Person1; (vi) Physician is not 
currently the subject of a disciplinary or other proceeding or action before any governmental, 
professional, medical staff or peer review body; and (vii) Physician has, and shall maintain 
throughout the Term of this Agreement, an unrestricted license to practice medicine in the state 
of California and staff membership and privileges at KMC. 
 
4. Obligations of Physician. 
 
 4.1 Services.  Physician shall engage in the practice of medicine on a full-time basis 
exclusively as an exempt employee of Authority.  Physician shall render those services set forth 
in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
4.2 Use of Premises.  Physician shall use the Practice Sites as designated by Authority 

or KMC exclusively for the practice of medicine in the care and treatment of patients and shall 
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations related thereto. 

 
4.3 Qualifications.   
 

4.3.1 Licensure.  Physician shall maintain a current valid license to practice 
medicine in the state of California at all times during the Term of this Agreement. 

 

                                                      
1 An “Ineligible Person” is an individual or entity who: (i) is currently excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise 
ineligible to participate in the federal health care programs or in federal procurement or non-procurement programs; 
or (ii) has been convicted of a criminal offense that falls within the range of activities described in 42 U.S.C. § 
1320a-7(a), but has not yet been excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise declared ineligible. 
 



3 
 

4.3.2 Board Certification.  Physician shall be board certified by the American 
Board of Surgery in surgery-general and maintain such certification at all times during 
the Term of this Agreement.   

 
4.3.3 Medical Staff Status.  Physician shall at all times during the Term of this 

Agreement be a member in good standing of the KMC medical staff with “active” staff 
status and hold all clinical privileges on the active medical staff appropriate to the 
discharge of his obligations under this Agreement. 

 
4.3.4 TJC and ACGME Compliance.  Physician shall observe and comply with 

all applicable standards and recommendations of The Joint Commission and 
Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education. 
 
4.4 Loss or Limitation.  Physician shall notify KMC in writing as soon as possible 

(but in any event within three (3) business days) after any of the following events occur: (i) 
Physician’s license to practice medicine in the state of California lapses or is denied, suspended, 
revoked, terminated, relinquished or made subject to terms of probation or other restriction; (ii) 
Physician’s medical staff privileges at KMC or any other health care facility are denied, 
suspended, revoked, terminated, relinquished under threat of disciplinary action or made subject 
to terms of probation or other restriction; (iii) Physician’s Controlled Substance Registration 
Certificate issued by the Drug Enforcement Administration is revoked, suspended, terminated, 
relinquished, placed on terms of probation, or restricted in any way; (iv) Physician becomes 
debarred, excluded, or suspended, or if any other event occurs that makes Physician an Ineligible 
Person; (v) Physician becomes the subject of a disciplinary or other proceeding or action before 
any governmental, professional, medical staff or peer review body; or (vi) an event occurs that 
substantially interrupts all or a portion of Physician’s professional practice or that materially 
adversely affects Physician’s ability to perform Physician’s obligations hereunder. 

 
4.5 Standards of Medical Practice.  The standards of medical practice and 

professional duties of Physician at designated Practice Sites shall be in accordance with the 
KMC medical staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies, the standards for physicians 
established by the state Department of Public Health and all other state and federal laws and 
regulations relating to the licensure and practice of physicians, and The Joint Commission. 
 

4.6 Managed Care Contracting.  Physician shall cooperate in all reasonable respects 
necessary to facilitate KMC’s entry into or maintenance of any third-party payer arrangements 
for the provision of services under any other public or private health and/or hospital care 
programs, including but not limited to insurance programs, self-funded employer health 
programs, health care service plans and preferred provider organizations.  To enable KMC to 
participate in any third-party payer arrangements, Physician shall, upon request: (i) enroll as a 
provider (if required by the third-party payer), separate from KMC, with any third-party payer or 
intermediate organization (including any independent practice association) (each, a “Managed 
Care Organization”) designated by KMC for the provision of professional services to patients 
covered by such Managed Care Organization; (ii) enter into a written agreement with such 
Managed Care Organization as may be necessary or appropriate for the provision of professional 
services to patients covered by such Managed Care Organization; and/or (iii) enter into a written 



4 
 

agreement with KMC regarding global billing, capitation or other payment arrangements as may 
be necessary or appropriate for the provision of professional services to patients covered by such 
Managed Care Organization. 
 

4.7 Authorization to Release Information.  Physician hereby authorizes Managed 
Care Organizations, government programs, hospitals and other third parties to release to KMC 
and its agents any information requested by KMC or its agents from time to time relating to 
Physician’s professional qualifications or competency.  Physician agrees to execute the 
Authorization to Release Information in the form set forth in Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference, and to execute all other documents required by KMC from 
time to time and to otherwise fully cooperate with KMC to enable KMC and its agents to obtain 
such information from third parties.   
 

4.8 Medical Records.  Physician shall cause a complete medical record to be timely 
prepared and maintained for each patient seen by Physician.  This record shall be prepared in 
compliance with all state and federal regulations, standards of The Joint Commission, and the 
KMC medical staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies.  Documentation by Physician shall 
conform to the requirements for evaluation and management (E/M) services billed by teaching 
physicians set forth in the Medicare Carriers Manual, Part 3, sections 15016-15018, inclusive.  
All patient medical records of Practice Sites, including without limitation, patient medical 
records generated during the Term of this Agreement, shall be the property of KMC subject to 
the rights of the respective patients.  Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement by 
either party for any reason, KMC shall retain custody and control of such patient medical 
records. 
  

4.9 Physician Private Practice.  Physician understands and agrees that he shall not 
enter into any other physician employment contract or otherwise engage in the private practice of 
medicine or provide similar services to other organizations, directly or indirectly, during the 
Term of this Agreement or any extensions thereof. 

 
4.10 Proprietary Information.  Physician acknowledges that during the Term of this 

Agreement Physician will have contacts with and develop and service KMC patients and 
referring sources of business of KMC.  In all of Physician’s activities, Physician, through the 
nature of his work, will have access to and will acquire confidential information related to the 
business and operations of KMC, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
patient lists and confidential information relating to processes, plans, methods of doing business 
and special needs of referring doctors and patients.  Physician acknowledges that all such 
information is solely the property of KMC and constitutes proprietary and confidential 
information of KMC; and the disclosure thereof would cause substantial loss to the goodwill of 
KMC; and that disclosure to Physician is being made only because of the position of trust and 
confidence that Physician will occupy.  Physician covenants that, except as required by law, 
Physician will not, at any time during the Term or any time thereafter, disclose to any person, 
hospital, firm, partnership, entity or organization (except when authorized in writing by KMC) 
any information whatsoever pertaining to the business or operations of KMC, any affiliate 
thereof or of any other physician employed by KMC, including without limitation, any of the 
kinds of information described in this paragraph.   



5 
 

 4.11 Physician Covenants.  Physician covenants that from the Commencement Date 
and continuing throughout the Term of this Agreement, Physician, unless otherwise permitted by 
the written consent of Authority shall not, on Physician’s own account or as an employee, 
landlord, lender, trustee, associate, consultant, partner, agent, principal, contractor, owner, 
officer, director, investor, member or stockholder of any other person, or in any other capacity, 
directly or indirectly, in whole or in part: (i) engage in any activities that are in competition with 
KMC, including the operation of any medical practice or offering of any medical services that 
are similar to services offered at the Practice Sites; (ii) solicit or encourage the resignation of any 
employee of Authority or KMC with whom Physician had a working relationship during 
Physician’s employment with Authority; (iii) solicit or divert patients with whom Physician had 
personal contact during such employment; or (iv) influence or attempt to influence any payer, 
provider or other person or entity to cease, reduce or alter any business relationship with 
Authority or KMC relating to the Practice Sites. 
 
5. Compensation Package. 

 
5.1 Annual Compensation.  Physician shall work full time, which is a minimum of 80  

hours per biweekly pay period, and will be compensated with cash and other value as described 
below in this paragraph 5.1 (“Annual Salary”).   

 
5.1.1 Annual Salary.  Authority shall pay Physician an Annual Salary comprised 

of (i) a base salary for teaching and administrative duties and (ii) payment for the care of 
KMC patients in the amount of $425,739 per year, to be paid as follows: Physician shall 
be paid $16,374.57 biweekly not to exceed $425,739 annually.  Physician understands 
and agrees that (i) the Annual Salary set forth in this paragraph 5.1 is calculated based on 
the current Medical Group Management Association Physician Compensation and 
Production Survey (“MGMA Survey”) for specialty and (ii) Physician will maintain a 
median level of worked relative value units (“Worked RVU”) based on the current 
MGMA Survey and fulfill all the duties set forth in Exhibit “A” during the Term of this 
Agreement. 

 
5.1.2 Biweekly Payment.  Physician shall be paid biweekly on the same 

schedule as regular Authority employees.  The exact date of said biweekly payments shall 
be at the sole discretion of Authority.  All payments made by Authority to Physician shall 
be subject to all applicable federal and state taxes and withholding requirements. 

 
5.1.3 Fair Market Value Compensation.  The compensation provided under 

section 5.1 represents the parties’ good faith determination of the reasonable fair market 
value compensation for the services to be provided by Physician under this Agreement.  
 
5.2 Clerkship Director Stipend.  Authority shall pay Physician an annual stipend of 

$923.07 biweekly, less all applicable federal and state taxes and withholdings, not to exceed 
$24,000 annually for services as medical student clerkship director for the Department.  
Physician understands and agrees that he must remain in the position of medical student 
clerkship director as of each biweekly payout date in order to earn and receive the stipend 
payment.   



6 
 

 5.3 Incentive Compensation.  Within 30 days following the end of each Employment 
Year, beginning from the Commencement Date, KMC will calculate the professional fee net 
collections (defined as actual cash received) for all professional services provided by Physician.  
Physician shall receive 25% of the professional fee net collections in excess of $425,739, less all 
applicable federal and state taxes and withholdings, per Employment Year. 

 
 5.4 Quality Bonus.  Upon satisfaction of the relevant criteria set forth below and 
subject to the other terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, in addition to the Annual 
Salary, Physician shall be eligible to receive a quality bonus based on the following measures: 

 
  5.4.1 Quality/Safety Measure(s).  Physician shall be eligible to receive a quality 

bonus an amount not to $12,500 each Employment Year if Physician achieves certain 
quality/safety measure(s).  Measures shall be determined annually.  Measures shall be 
calculated within 60 days of the end of each fiscal year ending June 30.  The first quality 
bonus, if any, shall be paid for the 12 months ending June 30, 2020.  If multiple measures 
are used (i.e., more than one measure annually), the annual bonus amount of $12,500 
shall be divided by the total number of measures and the prorated amount paid if the 
target metric is achieved. 

 
5.4.2 Patient Satisfaction Measure.  Physician shall be eligible to receive a 

quality bonus in an amount not to exceed $12,500 each Employment Year if the general 
surgery physicians as a group achieve certain patient satisfaction target metrics.  
Measures shall be determined annually.  Measures shall be calculated within 60 days of 
the end of each fiscal year ending June 30.  The first quality bonus, if any, shall be paid 
for the 12 months ending June 30, 2020.   

 
5.4.3 Criteria for Payment.  Physician understands and agrees that he must 

remain actively employed by Authority and in compliance with Authority policies and 
directives concerning job performance and conduct as of each payout date in order to 
earn and receive the quality bonus payment.  All quality bonus payments made by 
Authority to Physician shall be subject to all applicable federal and state taxes and 
withholding requirements. 
  
5.5 Professional Fee Billing.   

 
5.5.1 Assignment.  KMC shall have the exclusive right and authority to set, bill, 

collect and retain all fees, including professional fees, for all direct patient care services 
provided by Physician during the Term of this Agreement.  All professional fees 
generated by Physician during the Term of this Agreement, including without limitation, 
both cash collections and accounts receivable, capitated risk pool fees, professional 
retainer fees, honoraria, professional consulting and teaching fees, and fees for expert 
testimony (but excluding Physician’s private investment and nonprofessional income), 
will be the sole and exclusive property of KMC, whether received by KMC or by 
Physician and whether received during the Term of this Agreement or anytime thereafter.  
Physician hereby assigns all rights to said fees and accounts to KMC and shall execute all 
documents required from time to time by KMC and otherwise fully cooperate with KMC 
to enable KMC to collect fees and accounts from patients and third-party payers. 



7 
 

 
5.5.2 Remittance of Professional Fee Charges.  Physician shall remit all 

professional fee charges to KMC within 45 days of the date direct patient care services 
are provided by Physician.  Any professional fee charges not remitted by Physician to 
KMC within 45 days of the date of such service, or any charges for which relevant 
documentation has not been provided, will not be credited to Physician as Worked RVU. 

 
5.6 Maximum Payable.  The maximum compensation payable under this Agreement 

shall not exceed $1,602,000 over the three-year Term of this Agreement. 
 
6. Benefits Package. 
 

6.1 Retirement.  Physician shall continue to participate in the Kern County Hospital 
Authority Defined Contribution Plan for Physician Employees (f/k/a Kern County Pension Plan 
for Physician Employees) (the “Plan”), a qualified defined contribution pension plan, pursuant to 
the terms of the instrument under which the Plan has been established, as from time to time 
amended.  Physician is not eligible to participate in any other retirement plan established by 
Authority for its employees, including but not limited to the Kern County Employees’ 
Retirement Association, and this Agreement does not confer upon Physician any right to claim 
entitlement to benefits under any such retirement plan(s). 

 
6.2 Health Care Coverage.  Physician shall continue to receive the same health 

benefits (medical, dental, prescription and vision coverage) as all eligible Authority employees.  
The employee share of cost is 20% of the current biweekly premium.  Physician’s initial hire 
date is the initial opportunity to enroll in the health plan.  Physician must work at least 40 hours 
per biweekly pay period to be eligible for coverage. 

 
6.3 Holidays.  Physician shall be entitled to paid holidays subject to Authority policy, 

as amended from time to time.  Physician will not be paid for banked holidays upon termination 
of employment. 

 
6.4 Vacation.  Physician shall retain his vacation credit balance, if any, as of the 

Commencement Date.  Effective with the Commencement Date, Physician shall be entitled to 
vacation leave subject to Authority policy, as amended from time to time.  Physician shall be 
paid for accrued and unused vacation leave, if any, upon termination or expiration of this 
Agreement calculated at Physician’s current hourly rate (i.e., current Annual Salary divided by 
2080 hours = hourly rate).  All payments made by Authority to Physician under this paragraph 
will be subject to all applicable federal and state taxes and withholding requirements.  
    

6.5 Sick Leave.  Physician shall retain his sick leave credit balance, if any, as of the 
Commencement Date.  Effective with the Commencement Date, Physician shall be entitled to 
sick leave subject to Authority policy, as amended from time to time.  Physician will not be paid 
for accrued and unused sick leave upon termination of employment.   

 
6.6 Education Leave.  Physician shall receive 80 hours paid education leave annually.  

The first 80 hours will accrue on the Commencement Date.  On each successive Employment 



8 
 

Year, if any, an additional 80 hours paid education leave will accrue.  Education leave must be 
used within the year that it is accrued.  Physician will not be paid for unused education leave 
upon termination of employment.  The Department chair must approve education leave in 
advance of use.  Physician’s participation in educational programs, services or other approved 
activities set forth herein shall be subordinate to Physician’s obligations and duties under this 
Agreement. 

 
6.7 CME Expense Reimbursement.  Authority shall reimburse Physician for all 

approved reasonable and necessary expenditures related to continuing medical education in an 
amount not to exceed $2,500 per Employment Year, payable in arrears, in accordance with 
Authority policy, as amended from time to time.  This amount may not be accumulated or 
accrued and does not continue to the following Employment Year. 

 
6.8 Kern$Flex.  Physician shall be eligible to participate in flexible spending plans to 

pay for dependent care, non-reimbursed medical expenses, and certain insurance premiums on a 
pre-tax basis through payroll deduction.  This is a voluntary benefit that is paid by Physician if 
he elects to participate in the plan. 

 
6.9 Attendance at Meetings.  Physician shall be permitted to be absent from KMC 

during normal working days to attend professional meetings and to attend to such outside 
professional duties in the healthcare field as may be mutually agreed upon between Physician 
and the Department chair.  Attendance at such approved meetings and accomplishment of 
approved professional duties shall be fully compensated service time and will not be considered 
vacation or education leave.   

 
6.10 Unpaid Leave of Absence.  Physician may take an unpaid leave of absence in 

accordance with Authority policies in effect at the time the leave is taken. 
 
6.11 Social Security.  Physician is exempt from payment of Social Security taxes as the 

Kern County Hospital Authority Defined Contribution Plan for Physician Employees is a 
qualified alternative to the insurance system established by the federal Social Security Act. 

 
6.12 Deferred Compensation.  Physician shall be eligible to participate in the Kern 

County Deferred Compensation Plan (“457 Plan”) on a pre-tax basis.  Physician shall make all 
contributions if he elects to participate in the 457 Plan. 

 
6.13 Disability Insurance.  Physician shall be eligible to purchase Long Term 

Disability or Short Term Disability insurance coverage through payroll deduction on a post-tax 
basis.  This is a voluntary benefit that is paid by Physician if he elects to participate in the plan. 

 
6.14 Employee Assistance/Wellness Programs.  Physician shall be eligible to 

participate in any Authority-sponsored employee assistance and employee wellness programs. 
 
6.15 Limitation on Benefits.  Except as expressly stated herein, Physician shall receive 

no other benefits from Authority. 
 



9 
 

7. Assignment.  Physician shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or his obligations 
hereunder or any part thereof.  Physician shall not assign any money due or which becomes due 
to Physician under this Agreement without the prior written approval of Authority. 
 
8. Assistance in Litigation.  Upon request, Physician shall support and assist Authority as a 
consultant or expert witness in litigation to which Authority is a party. 
 
9. Authority to Incur Financial Obligation.  It is understood that Physician, in his 
performance of any and all duties under this Agreement, has no right, power or authority to bind 
Authority to any agreements or undertakings. 
 
10. Captions and Interpretation.  Paragraph headings in this Agreement are used solely for 
convenience, and shall be wholly disregarded in the construction of this Agreement.  No 
provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted for or against a party because that party or its 
legal representative drafted such provision, and this Agreement shall be construed as if jointly 
prepared by the parties. 
 
11. Choice of Law/Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed and enforced under and in 
accordance with the laws of the state of California, with venue of any action relating to this 
Agreement in the County of Kern, state of California. 
 
12. Compliance with Law.  Physician shall observe and comply with all applicable 
Authority, local, state and federal laws, ordinances, rules and regulations now in effect or 
hereafter enacted, each of which is hereby made a part hereof and incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
13. Confidentiality.  Physician shall maintain confidentiality with respect to information that 
he receives in the course of his employment and not use or permit the use of or disclose any such 
information in connection with any activity or business to any person, firm or corporation 
whatsoever, unless such disclosure is required in response to a validly issued subpoena or other 
process of law or as required by Government Code section 6250 et seq.  Upon completion of the 
Agreement, the provisions of this paragraph shall continue to survive. 
 
14. Conflict of Interest.  Physician covenants that he has no interest and that he will not 
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a financial conflict of interest under state 
law (Gov. Code, § 81000 et seq.) or that would otherwise conflict in any manner or degree with 
the performance of his services hereunder.  It is understood and agreed that if such a financial 
interest does exist at the inception of this Agreement, Authority may immediately terminate this 
Agreement by giving written notice thereof.   
 
15. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument.  
 
16. Dispute Resolution.  In the event of any dispute involving the enforcement or 
interpretation of this Agreement or any of the rights or obligations arising hereunder, the parties 



10 
 

shall first attempt to resolve their differences by mediation before a mediator of their mutual 
selection.  If the parties are, after mutual good faith efforts, unable to resolve their differences by 
mediation, the dispute shall be submitted for trial before a privately compensated temporary 
judge appointed by the Kern County Superior Court pursuant to Article VI, section 21 of the 
California Constitution and Rules 3.810 through 3.830 of the California Rules of Court.  All 
costs of any dispute resolution procedure shall be borne equally by the parties. 
 
17. Enforcement of Remedies.  No right or remedy herein conferred on or reserved to 
Authority is exclusive of any other right or remedy herein or by law or equity provided or 
permitted, but each shall be cumulative of every other right or remedy given hereunder or now or 
hereafter existing by law or in equity or by statute or otherwise, and may be enforced 
concurrently or from time to time. 
 
18. Indemnification.  Authority shall assume liability for and indemnify and hold Physician 
harmless from any and all claims, losses, expenses, costs, actions, settlements, attorneys’ fees 
and judgments incurred by Physician or for which Physician becomes liable, arising out of or 
related to services rendered or which a third party alleges should have been rendered by 
Physician pursuant to this Agreement.  Authority’s obligation under this paragraph shall extend 
from Physician’s first date of service to Authority and shall survive termination or expiration of 
this Agreement to include all claims that allegedly arise out of services Physician rendered on 
behalf of Authority; provided, however, that the provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to 
any services rendered at any location other than Practice Sites without approval by the Kern 
County Hospital Authority Board of Governors and, provided further, that Authority shall have 
no duty or obligation to defend, indemnify, or hold Physician harmless for any conduct or 
misconduct found to be intentional, willful, grossly negligent, or criminal. 
 
19. Invalidity of a Portion.  Should a portion, section, paragraph, or term of this Agreement 
be construed as invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or a competent state or federal 
agency, the balance of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  Further, to the extent 
any term or portion of this Agreement is found invalid, void or inoperative, the parties agree that 
a court may construe the Agreement in such a manner as will carry into force and effect the 
intent appearing herein. 
 
20. Modifications of Agreement.  This Agreement may be modified in writing only, signed 
by the parties in interest at the time of the modification. 
 
21. Non-appropriation.  Authority reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in the 
event insufficient funds are appropriated or budgeted for this Agreement in any fiscal year.  
Upon such termination, Authority will be released from any further financial obligation to 
Physician, except for services performed prior to the date of termination or any liability due to 
any default existing at the time this clause is exercised.  Physician shall be given 30 days’ prior 
written notice in the event that Authority requires such an action. 
 
22. Nondiscrimination.  No party to this Agreement shall discriminate on the basis of race, 
color, religion, sex, national origin, age, marital status or sexual orientation, ancestry, physical or 
mental disability, medical conditions, political affiliation, veteran’s status, citizenship or marital 



11 
 

or domestic partnership status or on the basis of a perception that an individual is associated with 
a person who has, or is perceived to have, any of these characteristics. 
 
23. Non-waiver.  No covenant or condition of this Agreement can be waived except by the 
written consent of Authority.  Forbearance or indulgence by Authority in any regard whatsoever 
shall not constitute a waiver of the covenant or condition to be performed by Physician.  
Authority shall be entitled to invoke any remedy available to Authority under this Agreement or 
by law or in equity despite said forbearance or indulgence. 
 
24. Notices.  Notices to be given by one party to the other under this Agreement shall be 
given in writing by personal delivery, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or express 
delivery service at the addresses specified below.  Notices delivered personally shall be deemed 
received upon receipt; mailed or expressed notices shall be deemed received four (4) days after 
deposit.  A party may change the address to which notice is to be given by giving notice as 
provided above. 
 
 

Notice to Physician: Notice to Authority: 
  

Ramon S. Snyder, M.D. Kern Medical Center 
9601 Marseilles Court 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Bakersfield, California 93314  Bakersfield, California 93306 
 Attn.: Chief Executive Officer 

 
25. Relationship.  Authority and Physician recognize that Physician is rendering specialized, 
professional services.  The parties recognize that each is possessed of legal knowledge and skill, 
and that this Agreement is fully understood by the parties, and is the result of bargaining between 
the parties.  Each party acknowledges their opportunity to fully and independently review and 
consider this Agreement and affirm complete understanding of the effect and operation of its 
terms prior to entering into the same.   
 
26. Severability.  Should any part, term, portion or provision of this Agreement be decided 
finally to be in conflict with any law of the United States or the state of California, or otherwise 
be unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining parts, terms, portions, or provisions 
shall be deemed severable and shall not be affected thereby, provided such remaining portions or 
provisions can be construed in substance to constitute the agreement which the parties intended 
to enter into in the first instance. 
 
27. Sole Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties 
relating to the services, rights, obligations, and covenants contained herein and assumed by the 
parties respectively.  No inducements, representations, or promises have been made, other than 
those recited in this Agreement.  No oral promise, modification, change, or inducement shall be 
effective or given any force or effect. 
 
28. Termination.   

 



12 
 

 
28.1 Termination without Cause.  Either party shall have the right to terminate this 

Agreement, without penalty or cause, by giving not less than 90 days’ prior written notice to the 
other party. 

 
28.2 Immediate Termination.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Authority may terminate 

this Agreement immediately by written notice to Physician upon the occurrence of any of the 
following events: (i) Authority determines that Physician does not have the proper credentials, 
experience, or skill to perform the required services under this Agreement; (ii) Authority 
determines the conduct of Physician in the providing of services may result in civil, criminal, or 
monetary penalties against Authority or KMC; (iii) Physician violates any federal or state law or 
regulatory rule or regulation or condition of accreditation or certification to which Authority or 
Practice Sites is subject; (iv) Physician engages in the commission of a material act involving 
moral turpitude, fraud, dishonesty, embezzlement, misappropriation or financial dishonesty 
against Authority or KMC; (v) the actions of Physician result in the loss or threatened loss of 
KMC’s ability to participate in any federal or state health care program, including Medicare or 
Medi-Cal; (vi) Physician’s license to practice medicine in the state of California lapses or is 
denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, relinquished or made subject to terms of probation or 
other restriction; (vii) Physician’s medical staff privileges are denied, suspended, revoked, 
terminated, relinquished under threat of disciplinary action or made subject to terms of probation 
or other restriction; (viii) Physician’s Controlled Substance Registration Certificate issued by the 
Drug Enforcement Administration is revoked, suspended, terminated, relinquished, placed on 
terms of probation, or restricted in any way; (ix) Physician becomes debarred, excluded, or 
suspended, or if any other event occurs that makes Physician an Ineligible Person; (x) Physician 
fails to make a timely disclosure pursuant to paragraph 4.4; (xi) Physician engages in conduct 
that, in the sole discretion of Authority, is detrimental to patient care or to the reputation or 
operations of Authority and/or KMC; (xii) Physician breaches the confidentiality provisions of 
this Agreement; (xiii) Physician dies; (xiv) Physician fails to follow Authority’s policies and 
procedures and other rules of conduct applicable to all employees of Authority, including 
without limitation, policies prohibiting sexual harassment; (xv) insubordination, flagrant 
tardiness, or interpersonal problems in the workplace with colleagues, patients or associates; or 
(xvi) Physician breaches any covenant set forth in paragraph 4.11. 
 
29. Effect of Termination. 
 

29.1 Payment Obligations.  In the event of termination of this Agreement for any 
reason, Authority shall have no further obligation to pay for any services rendered or expenses 
incurred by Physician after the effective date of the termination, and Physician shall be entitled 
to receive compensation for services satisfactorily rendered, calculated on a prorated basis up to 
the effective date of termination. 

 
 29.2 Vacate Premises.  Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, 
Physician shall immediately vacate KMC, removing at such time any and all personal property 
of Physician.  KMC may remove and store, at the expense of Physician, any personal property 
that Physician has not so removed. 
   



13 
 

 29.3 No Interference.  Following the expiration or earlier termination of this 
Agreement, Physician shall not do anything or cause any person to do anything that might 
interfere with any efforts by Authority or KMC to contract with any other individual or entity for 
the provision of services or to interfere in any way with any relationship between KMC and any 
person who may replace Physician. 
  
 29.4 No Hearing Rights.  Termination of this Agreement by Authority or KMC for any 
reason shall not provide Physician the right to a fair hearing or the other rights more particularly 
set forth in the KMC medical staff bylaws. 
 
30. Liability of Authority.  The liabilities or obligations of Authority with respect to its 
activities pursuant to this Agreement shall be the liabilities or obligations solely of Authority and 
shall not be or become the liabilities or obligations of the County of Kern or any other entity, 
including the state of California. 
 

[Signatures follow on next page] 



14 
 

IN WITNESS TO THE FOREGOING, the parties have executed this Agreement as of 
the day and year first written above. 
 
PHYSICIAN 
 
 
By: __________________________     
      Ramon S. Snyder, M.D.  
 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
 
 
By: __________________________      
      Chairman                  
      Board of Governors  
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
KERN MEDICAL CENTER 
 
 
By: __________________________      
      Russell V. Judd                  
      Chief Executive Officer  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 
 
By: __________________________     
      VP & General Counsel 
      Kern County Hospital Authority 
 
 
 
Agreement.Snyder.050919 



15 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Job Description 

Ramon S. Snyder, M.D. 
 
Position Description: Reports to Chair, Department of Surgery; serves as a full-time core 
general surgery faculty member in the Department; serves as Director of minimally invasive 
surgery; provides a minimum work effort of 2,500 hours annually in teaching, administrative, 
and clinical activity; day-to-day activities and clinical workload will include coverage for non-
acute general surgery; provides comprehensive and safe clinical coverage for day-to-day 
operations, timely completion of surgery, direct patient care, scholarly research and resident 
education; works collaboratively with clinic and surgery staff and hospital administration to 
ensure efficient workflow, adequacy of support equipment, and superior patient experience.   
 
Essential Functions: 
 
1. Clinical Responsibilities and Assignments: 

 Coordinates with current general surgery faculty schedules and activities to provide 
service and improve efficiency for general surgery clinical activities 

 Conducts daily inpatient rounds 
 Provides service and improves efficiency for general surgical and minimally invasive 

surgery cases 
 Provides faculty service for non-acute general surgical coverage 
 Supervises surgery Physician Assistant activity and competence 
 Operating Room –minimum of two (2) half days per week 
 KMC, Stockdale Highway, Truxtun Avenue, or other designated clinic sites – minimum 

of three (3) half-day clinics per week 
 Provides call coverage in coordination with other faculty for non-acute general surgery 

 
2. Administrative Responsibilities: 

 Assists in clinical and administrative integration efforts across KMC as appropriate for 
general surgery assisting with proper program planning, surgeon recruitment and faculty 
development, resource allocation, analysis, communication and assessment 

 Coordinates development activities and operations in the ambulatory surgery center for 
the general surgeons 

 Assists with program oversight and strategic planning for the surgery residency program 
 Gathers data through best practices and collaborates with other members of the 

Department to recommend services that will increase productivity, minimize duplication 
of services, increase workflow efficiency, and provide the highest quality of care to KMC 
patients 

 Supports the Department chair to develop monitoring tools to measure financial, access, 
quality and satisfaction outcomes for minimally invasive and general surgery services 

 Attends and actively participates in assigned Medical Staff and hospital committees 
 Participates in clinical and administrative integration efforts across the hospital as 

appropriate for the Department ensuring proper program planning, resource allocation, 
analysis, communication, and assessment 



16 
 

 Participates in the preparation, monitoring, review, and performance of clinical activity in 
the Department 

 Participates in the quality improvement and risk management activities, including peer 
review and quality control functions, as assigned to services in the Department 

 Provides didactic teaching and resident physician and medical student education, as 
assigned, and participates in setting goals and expectations for the surgery resident and 
medical student rotations 

 Completes medical records in a timely fashion and works to improve the quality, 
accuracy, and completeness of documentation 

 Works collaboratively with other clinical departments to develop a cohesive and 
collaborative environment across departments with a focus of enhancing access to patient 
care for inpatient and outpatient services 

 Follows and complies with the Medical Staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies and 
County and KMC policies and procedures 

 
3. Teaching Responsibilities: 

 Assists the Program Director with individual resident mentoring, counseling, and 
evaluation as appropriate for general surgery and critical care rotations 

 Assist with didactic curriculum and teaching conference activity including noon, 
preoperative, oncology, and journal club 

 Assist in resident research and scholarly activity 
 
4. Medical Student Clerkship Director Responsibilities: 

 Prepares and maintains syllabus/curriculum including clerkship instructional materials, 
key contacts of faculty, residents, and coordinators, and rotation and call schedules 

 Conducts faculty, resident, and medical student development 
 Ensures an educational environment conducive to student experience, which includes, 

without limitation the following: student understanding of responsibilities and clerkship 
objectives; duty hour policy; meaningful and supervised patient care that meets criteria 
for patient conditions and numbers; monitoring students’ use of Patient Log; providing 
for direct observation of at least one History and Physical by a faculty member; providing 
ongoing faculty and resident feedback to students about clinical service; and 
appropriately advocating for students 

 Ensures didactic lectures and case sessions for students occur as well as review and 
observe lectures for quality and consistency, including student evaluations 

 
 
Employment Standards: 
One (1) year of post-residency experience in general and trauma surgery  
AND 
Possession of a current valid Physician’s and Surgeon’s Certificate issued by the state of 
California 
AND   
Certification by the American Board of Surgery in surgery-general 
 
 



17 
 

Knowledge of:  The principles and practices of modern medicine; current techniques, 
procedures, and equipment applicable to general and trauma surgery; principles of effective 
supervision and program development. 
 

[Intentionally left blank]  



18 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE INFORMATION 
 
 

[See attached] 



19 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE INFORMATION 
 
I, the undersigned physician, hereby authorize Kern Medical Center (“KMC”) and its duly 
authorized representatives to obtain information from time to time about my professional 
education, training, licensure, credentials competence, ethics and character from any source 
having such information.  This information may include, without limitation, peer review 
information, DRG and RVU analyses, ancillary usage information and other utilization and 
quality related data. 

 
I hereby release the Kern County Hospital Authority and KMC, its authorized representatives 
and any third parties from any liability for actions, recommendations, statements, reports, records 
or disclosures, including privileged and confidential information, involving me that are made, 
requested, taken or received by KMC or its authorized representatives to, from or by any third 
parties in good faith and relating to or arising from my professional conduct, character and 
capabilities. 

 
I agree that this authorization to release information shall remain effective until termination of 
my employment by the Kern County Hospital Authority and KMC.  A duplicate of this 
authorization may be relied upon to the same degree as the original by any third party providing 
information pursuant to this request. 

 
 

    
Physician   Date 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  
June 19, 2019  
  
Subject:    Proposed  retroactive  Agreement  with  RightSourcing,  Inc.  to  provide  contingent  labor  and 
manage contracts with providers of contingent labor 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board retroactively approve the Supplier Managed Services Client Terms and 
Conditions  (“Agreement”)  with  RightSourcing,  Inc.  for  purposes  of  providing  management  of  our 
contingent workforce for a five (5) year term beginning May 29, 2019 through May 28, 2024.  
 
Since December 2008, RightSourcing, Inc. has served as Kern Medical’s primary source for contract 
labor services and has coordinated the recruiting activities related to our contingent workforce, which 
includes our traveling registered nurses, locum tenens physicians, and ancillary healthcare 
professionals. Kern Medical continues to require these listed services with RightSourcing and has also 
included the option of using RightSourcing for payroll services for placed workers and direct hire 
services if so desired. The annual not‐to exceed amount for the Agreement is $16,430,124. 
 
The Agreement contains non‐standard terms and conditions and cannot be approved as to form by 
Counsel, due to RightSourcing’s demand that the Kern County Hospital Authority contractually agree to 
indemnify RightSourcing against the acts or omissions of the placed labor.  Efforts were made to 
negotiate the deletion of this offending provision to no avail.  In mitigation, the Agreement does 
require that RightSourcing include a provision is each placed labor contract that the third party vendor 
indemnify the hospital authority for the acts or omissions of the placed labor.   
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Agreement with RightSourcing, Inc. for the 
provision of the contingent labor and the management of contracts with providers of contingent labor 
for Kern Medical for a term of five (5) years in an amount not to exceed of $16,430,124 annually, and 
authorize the Chairman to sign.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

















Russell E. Bigler

Chairman, Board of Governors

June 19, 2019

































 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
June 19, 2019 
 
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 13 to Agreement # HA2016‐036 with Cerner Corporation, an 
independent contractor.   
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed Amendment No. 13 with Cerner Corporation to extend 
current services to support the delay in the Cerner Millennium project.      
 
In 2016, the Kern County Hospital Authority selected Cerner Millennium as the new electronic health record for 
Kern Medical.  The Authority and Cerner have entered into multiple agreements that outline the terms, 
conditions and payments for the new system. 
 
The installation of this expansive and expensive system began in December 2017.  The parties anticipated, and 
the agreements, outlined a go live date of July 1, 2019.  We have now determined that completing the build, 
training, and implementation of the system by that date is not possible, so we have extended the go live date of 
the Millennium project to November 1, 2019.  To accommodate this change in go live date, it is necessary to 
amend the agreement with Cerner. 
 
This delay increases the associated costs of implementing the system.  Significant discussion where held with 
Cerner to outline the reasons for delaying the go live date.  Upon review, both parties agreed that actions by 
both parties lead to the delay in the go live date.  Cerner has agreed to provide reimbursement to Kern Medical 
for their portion of the delay. 
 
This Amendment No. 13 addresses the following items: 
1. The listed contracts will be extended through December 31, 2027.  This extension will solidify the 

partnership of the two parties, as well as reduce the associated costs.  
2. The CPI language has been updated to read that it will not exceed the lesser of the previous calendar year’s 

percentage increase in CPI, or three percent (3%) per annum.  This is a 2% reduction. 
3. Six (6) module upgrades will be price protected for two (2) years. This includes upgrades for Millennium (1 

release upgrade and 1 service package upgrade), CareAware, and FetaLink modules.  
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve Amendment No. 13 to the Cerner Business Agreement 
with Cerner Corporation to extend the term from December 31, 2024 to December 31, 2027 and increase the 
maximum payable by $2,200,000, effective June 19, 2019. 
 
 
 









 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
June 19, 2019 
 
Subject:  Proposed Retroactive Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 20117 with LocumTenens.Com 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical is amending the current agreement with LocumTenens.com to extend the agreement for two 
more years and to increase the maximum payable from $750,000 to $3,000,000.  The per diem rate schedule 
contained in the original agreement is not changing.   LocumTenens.com provides interim physician staffing.   
 
The utilization of locums physicians through this agreement increased in order to staff psychiatrists employed by 
Kern Medical and reimbursed by Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery Services as well as to staff certain 
specialties that have seen increasing patient volumes that need coverage.   
 
Therefore, Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed retroactive Amendment No. 2 to 
Agreement 20117 with LocumTenens.com, an independent contractor, for temporary physician staffing services 
for the period May 23, 2019 through May 21, 2021, extending the term two years, increasing the maximum 
payable by $2,250,000, from $750,000 to $3000,000, to cover the extended term, effective May 23, 2019. 
 
 





 
 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 19, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed renewal and binding of insurance coverages from July 1, 2019 through June 
30, 2020, in an amount not to exceed $1,634,629 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve; authorize Chief Executive Officer to sign the Premium 
Finance Agreement and Certificate of Incumbency with IPFS Corporation of California 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board’s approval to renew and bind the following insurance 
coverages for the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020: 
 

 Hospital Professional Liability, General Liability and Umbrella/Excess Liability 

 Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability 

 Automobile Liability 

 Heliport & Non-Owned Aircraft Liability 

 Directors & Officers Liability 

 Employment Practices Liability 

 Crime  

 Privacy and Security (Cyber) Liability 

 Premises Pollution Liability 

 Underground Storage Tanks (UST) Liability 

 Property: Building, Equipment, Business Interruption, Earthquake & Flood 

 Employed Lawyers Liability 

 Fiduciary Liability 
 

Hospital Professional Liability, General Liability and Umbrella/Excess Liability * 
Kern Medical recommends renewing coverage for the Hospital Professional Liability, General 
Liability and Umbrella/Excess Liability with Columbia Casualty Company (CNA).  

 

 Insurance Carriers: Columbia Casualty Company (CNA) and National Fire & Marine 
Insurance Company (MedPro) 

 A.M. Best Rating: CNA (A (Excellent) XV); MedPro (A++ (Superior) XV)  

 Term: July 1, 2019 – July 1, 2020 

 Coverage: Hospital Professional Liability insurance protects physicians and other 
licensed health care professionals from liability associated with wrongful practices 
resulting in bodily injury, medical expenses, and the cost of defending lawsuits related 
to such claims. General Liability insures against losses from bodily injury, personal injury 
and property damage. Umbrella/Excess Liability provides additional limits in excess of 
self-insured retentions and underlying coverages 

 Limit per Medical Incident or per Occurrence: $25,000,000 
 



Page 2 of 6 

 

 

 Self-insured Retention (SIR):  
o $2,000,000 per Professional Liability Claim 
o $1,000,000 per General Liability Occurrence 

 Underlying Coverages: Automobile Liability, Employers Liability and Heliport Liability 

 Combined Annual Premium: $692,447  
 

Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability *  
Kern Medical recommends renewing coverage for Workers’ Compensation and Employers 
Liability with Safety National Casualty Corporation. 
 

 Insurance Carrier: Safety National Casualty Corporation 

 A.M. Best Rating: A+ (Superior) XV  

 Term: July 1, 2019 – July 1, 2020 

 Coverage: This policy insures against losses from work-related bodily injury or disease 
and the common law liability of an employer for injuries sustained by employees 

 Limit per Occurrence:  
Workers’ Compensation - Statutory 
Employers Liability - $5,000,000 

 SIR: $1,000,000 

 Annual Premium: $126,533  
 

Automobile Liability 
Kern Medical recommends renewing coverage for Automobile Liability with Philadelphia 
Indemnity to cover 11 vehicles and 5 trailers with specific coverages as expiring. 
 

 Insurance Carrier: Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 

 A.M. Best Rating: A++ (Superior) XV  

 Term: July 1, 2019 – July 1, 2020 

 Coverage: This policy insures against losses from automobile accident related injuries 
and property damage, including Owned, Non-Owned and Hired Automobiles 

 Limit per Occurrence: $1,000,000 

 Deductible: $500 for comprehensive and $1,000 for collision (where coverage applies); 
$0 for liability 

 Annual Premium: $15,983  
 

Heliport Liability * 
Kern Medical recommends renewing Heliport Liability coverage through ACE Property & 
Casualty Insurance Co (Chubb). 
 

 Insurance Carrier: ACE Property & Casualty Insurance Co. (Chubb) 

 A.M. Best Rating: A++ (Superior) XV  

 Term: July 1, 2019 – July 1, 2020 

 Coverage: This policy insures against losses for injury to a third party or their property 
arising from the operation and maintenance of the hospital’s helipad (e.g., damage 
caused to a vehicle from debris). The policy also protects the hospital against losses 
associated with non-owned aircraft (e.g., patient transport by helicopter) 



Page 3 of 6 

 

 

 Limit per Occurrence: $10,000,000 

 Deductible: $0 

 Annual Premium: $6,441  
 
Directors and Officers Liability * 
Kern Medical recommends placing coverage for Directors and Officers Liability through Lloyd’s 
of London (Beazley Syndicate) as opposed to AIG Specialty Insurance Company, the incumbent 
carrier, due to a significant increase in premium proposed by AIG of approximately 12% and a 
higher retention (from $25,000 to $75,000). Beazley offers to package D&O and EPL at a lower 
rate, broaden coverage, and higher limits; however, with a $100,000 retention change specific 
to D&O only. 
 

 Insurance Carrier: Lloyd’s Syndicate 2623/623 (Beazley) 

 A.M. Best Rating: A (Excellent) XV  

 Term: July 1, 2019 – July 1, 2020 

 Coverage: This policy provides financial protection for managers against the 
consequences of actual or “wrongful acts” when acting within the scope of their 
managerial duties  

 Limit Each Wrongful Act Claim: $5,000,000 

 SIR: $100,000 

 Annual Premium: $29,408  
 

Employment Practices Liability * 
Kern Medical recommends placing Employment Practices Liability coverage through Lloyd’s of 
London (Beazley Syndicate) as opposed to AIG Specialty Insurance Company, the incumbent 
carrier, due to a significant increase in premium proposed by AIG of approximately 51%. 
Beazley offers to package D&O and EPL at a lower rate, broaden coverage, and higher limits.   
 

 Insurance Carrier: Lloyd’s Syndicate 2623/623 (Beazley) 

 A.M. Best Rating: A (Excellent) XV  

 Term: July 1, 2019 – July 1, 2020 

 Coverage: This policy insures against losses for wrongful acts, including wrongful 
termination, sexual harassment, discrimination, invasion of privacy, false imprisonment, 
breach of contract, and emotional distress. 

 Limit Each Wrongful Act Claim: $5,000,000 

 SIR: $500,000 

 Annual Premium: $63,886  
 
Crime 
Kern Medical recommends continued participation in the Crime insurance program offered by 
California State Association of Counties Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC-EIA). 
 

 Insurance Carrier: National Union Fire Insurance of Pittsburgh, PA (AIG) 

 A.M. Best Rating: A (Excellent) XV  

 Term: June 30, 2019 – June 30, 2020 



Page 4 of 6 

 

 

 Coverage: This policy insures against employee theft, robbery, forgery, extortion, and 
computer fraud 

 Limit per Occurrence: $15,000,000 

 Deductible: $25,000 

 Annual Premium: $13,203  
 
Cyber Liability  
Kern Medical recommends continued participation in the Cyber Liability program through 
California State Association of Counties Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC-EIA). 
 

 Insurance Carrier: Primary program layer and breach notification through Lloyd’s of 
London (Beazley Syndicate) and excess program layer through Greenwich Insurance 
Company (AXA XL) and Crum & Forster Specialty Insurance Company 

 A.M. Best Rating: Lloyd’s/Beazley (A [Excellent] XV); Greenwich (A+ [Superior] XV); Crum 
& Forster (A [Excellent] XIII) 

 Term: July 1, 2019 – July 1, 2020 

 Coverage: This policy insures against website media content liability (including cyber 
extortion, first party data protection and first party network business interruption) and 
privacy notification costs from data breaches in which patient and employee personal 
information, such as names, dates of birth, Social Security Numbers, credit card 
information, etc., is exposed and/or misappropriated  

 Limit per Incident and Aggregate: $7,000,000 

 SIR: $50,000 

 Annual Premium: $19,993  
 

Premises Pollution Liability * 
Kern Medical recommends placing Premises Pollution Liability coverage through Interstate Fire 
and Casualty Company (Allianz) as opposed to Illinois Union Insurance Company (Chubb), the 
incumbent carrier, due to an unacceptable mold exclusion and the offering of broadened 
coverages and lower premiums. 
 

 Insurance Carrier: Interstate Fire and Casualty Company (Allianz) 

 A.M. Best Rating: A++ (Superior) XV  

 Term: July 1, 2019 – July 1, 2020 

 Coverage: Coverage for first-party claims arising from a pollution condition from 
premises, including clean-up, emergency response and business interruption; coverage 
for third-party bodily injury and property damage; coverage for transport of hazardous 
materials and non-owned disposal sites 

 Limit per Pollution or Indoor Environmental Condition: $1,000,000 

 SIR: $25,000 

 Annual Premium: $12,548  
 

Underground Storage Tank Liability * 
Kern Medical recommends renewing Underground Storage Tank Liability insurance through ACE 
American Insurance Company (Chubb) for one underground storage tank containing 10,000 
gallons of diesel fuel and the associated aboveground day tanks. 



Page 5 of 6 

 

 

 Insurance Carrier: ACE American Insurance Company (Chubb) 

 A.M. Best Rating: A++ (Superior) XV  

 Term: July 1, 2019 – July 1, 2020 

 Coverage: Bodily Injury or Property Damage caused by a storage tank incident, including 
Corrective Action Costs and Legal Defense Expenses; meets requirements for Financial 
Responsibility 

 Limit per Occurrence: $1,000,000 

 Deductible: $25,000 

 Annual Premium: $841 
 
Property  
Kern Medical recommends continued participation in the Property insurance program through 
California State Association of Counties Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC-EIA). Note that 
premiums have increased by approximately 18% due to hardening market conditions, 
significant fire losses year over year by other program participants, and a shrinking availability 
for earthquake coverage. 
 

 Insurance Carriers: CSAC-EIA with multiple layers of excess and reinsurance from various 
carriers 

 A.M. Best Rating: A- (Excellent) IX  

 Term: 3/31/2019 – 3/31/2020 (Billed from 07/01/2019 – 07/01/2020) 

 Coverage: This policy provides All Risk coverage, including Real Property, Earthquake, 
Flood, Boiler & Machinery, Business Interruption, and more 

 Limit per Occurrence: $600,000,000 All Risk; $465,000,000 Annual Aggregate for 
Earthquake 

 Deductible: $100,000 All Risk; 5% of Values for Earthquake ($100,000 Minimum) 

 Annual Premium: $616,649 
 

Employed Lawyers * 
Kern Medical recommends renewing Employed Lawyers Professional Liability coverage through 
Federal Insurance Co (Chubb). 
 

 Insurance Carrier: Federal Insurance Company (Chubb) 

 A.M. Best Rating: A++ (Superior) XV  

 Term: 7/1/2019 – 7/1/2020 

 Coverage: This policy provides professional liability coverage for employed lawyers and 
support staff from claims arising from their professional legal services     

 Limit per Occurrence/Aggregate: $1,000,000 

 SIR: $0 Non-Indemnified Person; $5,000 Organization 

 Annual Premium: $1,764 
 

Fiduciary Liability * 
Kern Medical recommends renewing Fiduciary Liability coverage through Hudson Insurance Co. 
 

 Insurance Carrier: Hudson Insurance Company 

 A.M. Best Rating: A (Excellent) XV  



Page 6 of 6 

 

 

 Term: 7/1/2019 – 7/1/2020 

 Coverage: This policy provides coverage for the Defined Contribution Plan fiduciaries, as 
they can be held personally liable for losses to a benefit plan incurred because of their 
alleged errors or omissions or breach of their fiduciary duties      

 Limit per Occurrence/Aggregate: $2,000,000 

 SIR: $0 Non-Indemnifiable Losses of Covered Penalties; $50,000 All other Losses 

 Annual Premium: $6,518 
 

Total Annual Premiums: $1,606,214 (as recommended) 
 
Premium Financing 
 
Kern Medical recommends financing the premiums as follows: 
 
1. CSAC-EIA will provide in-house financing of Property, Crime, and Privacy and Security 

(Cyber) coverages for an additional fee of $6,267 with the cost of coverage and 
financing split between 12 equal payments; and 

 
2. IPFS Corporation of California will finance those coverages identified with an * symbol.  

Financing will require a 15% cash down payment ($141,000), plus finance charges 
currently at a rate of 6% (up to $22,148), for total payments not to exceed $962,020, as 
set forth below: 

  
 Total Premium -   $939,887 
 Cash down payment  $141,000 
  
 Amount financed -   $798,886 
 Finance charges (6%) -  $22,134 
 
 Total payments -   $962,020 
 
3. Financing through IPFS Corporation requires the signing of a separate Premium Finance 

Agreement and Certificate of Incumbency. 
 
Attached for your ease of reference are a Proposed Program Summary and a Summary of 
Changes Per Policy Year from July 1, 2016 to the present. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the renewal and binding of insurance 
coverages from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, with the option to finance selected 
premiums through CSAC-EIA and IPFS Corporation of California, in an amount not to exceed 
$1,634,629; and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Premium Finance Agreement 
with IPFS Corporation and Certificate of Incumbency. 



KCHA 19-20 RN Proposal - 6-6-2019 - PROPOSED PROGRAM

$26M

$15M

Per SOV
TIV $527M

$11M

$1M Add'l Side A
$5M

$2M/$1M

SIR/Deductible $2M HPL / $1M GL $1M Nil Nil $1M $100k $500k $25k $50k
 100 Indiv. $5k $50k $25k $25k $100,000

EQ 5%+$100,000

Graph is not to scale

18-19 PROGRAM COST (INCLUDING SURPLUS LINES TAXES & FEES AND OTHER FEES) TOTAL
CHUBB

$671,110 Incl w/WC $14,508 $6,019 $130,463 $21,243 $83,855 $12,003 $20,282 $1,764 $6,018 $12,252 $579 $520,511 $1,500,607
w/100k $13,936

 notified individuals Full Annual Cost w/Add'l Locations

19-20 RENEWAL PROGRAM COST (INCLUDING SURPLUS LINES TAXES AND FEES) TOTAL
ALLIANZ

$692,447 Incl w/WC $15,983 $6,441 $126,533 $29,408 $63,886 $13,203 $19,993 $1,764 $6,518 $12,548 $841 $616,649 $1,606,214
w/100k Cost Difference $105,608

 notified individuals % Change 7.04%

Kern County Hospital Authority
Proposed Program Summary

7/1/2019 to 7/1/2020

Excess Umbrella

$15M Each Medical Incident / $15M per Occurrence Other Liability
  xs $10M 

xs SIR or UL
$15M Policy Aggregate

MedPro

Crime 

$15M

6/30/2019 -
6/30/2020

CSAC-EIA
(AIG)

Umbrella Liability
$10M Each Medical Incident / $10M Per Occurrence Other Liability

xs SIR or UL
$10M Policy Aggregate

Property:
Building,

Equipment,
Business 

Interruption, EQ 
& Flood

CSAC-EIA
3/31/2019-
3/31/2020

Heliport & Non-Owned
Aircraft Liability

$10M

Chubb

Employed 
Lawyers Prof. 

Liability
$1M

Chubb

Pollution 
Liability

$1M
Allianz

Fiduciary 
Liability

$3M
Hudson

UST
Liability

$1M
Chubb

Hospital Professional / 
General Liab. (incl EBL) 
Each Medical Incident /

Occurrence

Employers Liability

$5M

SNCC

Auto Liability
 $1M CSL

Philadelphia

Directors & 
Officers 
Liability

$5M
Beazley

Employment
Practices
Liability

$5M
Beazley 

AIG

$11M Policy Aggregate

Cyber Liability 
$7M and 

notification costs 
for breach

(100,000 Indiv.)
CSAC-EIA
(Beazley/XL/

C&F)

Workers 
Compensation

Statutory Limits

SNCC

BEAZLEY



Line of Coverage FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20
% Change from
18/19 to 19/20

1 HPL/GL/UMB/Excess 911,050$        643,246$        671,110$        692,447$        3.18%
2 Auto 13,405$          13,425$          14,509$          15,983$           10.16%
3 Heliport 6,019$             6,019$             6,019$             6,441$             7.01%
4 Pollution 12,129$          12,130$          12,252$          12,548$           2.42%
5 UST 481$                529$                579$                841$                45.25%
6 D&O 19,944$          20,023$          21,243$          29,408$           38.44%
7 EPL 71,753$          77,810$          83,855$          63,886$           -23.81%
8 EWC 703,640$        389,000$        130,463$        126,533$        -3.01%
9 Crime 10,630$          11,183$          12,003$          13,203$           10.00%

10 Cyber/Excess/CEO 22,411$          21,987$          20,282$          19,993$           -1.42%
11 Property 550,251$        519,869$        520,511$        616,649$        18.47%
12 Employed Lawyers N/C 1,764$             1,764$             1,764$             0.00%
13 Fiduciary Liability N/C N/C 6,018$             6,518$             8.31%

Total 2,321,713$  1,716,985$  1,500,608$  1,606,214$   Average %
8.84%

1 HPL/GL/UMB/Excess In FY 16/17, coverage limits were the same as present; however, the SIR
for both HPL and GL were set at $1M, each
In FY 17/18, coverage limits remained the same though the SIR for HPL
changed to $2M while GL remained at $1M
For FY 18/19, coverages and SIR's remain the same for both HPL and GL
For FY 19/20, coverages and SIR's remain the same for both HPL and GL 

2 Auto No changes had been made to this coverage through FY 17/18.
In FY 18/19, both changes in coverage and the addition of the four 
previously uninsured trailers were recommended. Coverage changes 
included the deletion of Collision coverage from two 2001 Dodge 
Cargo Vans as the deductible is equitable to half the vehicle value.
Other coverage changes included the deletion of Med Pay, UM and UIM
coverages as these are essentially duplicative of other available 
coverages such as workers compensation. In addition, passengers were
prohibited from being transported in a KCHA vehicle by policy.
For FY 19/20, coverages and deductibles remain the same.

3 Heliport No changes have been made to this coverage since FY 16/17.

4 Pollution No changes had been made to this coverage through FY 18/19.
For FY 19/20 incumbent carrier Chubb suddenly applied an exclusion to 
mold effectively excluding it as well as increased renewal price. Competing
carrier, with nearly the same coverage absent the mold exclusion and a
slightly less premium than renewing, was identified to place coverage with.

5 UST No changes have been made to this coverage through FY 18/19.
For FY 19/20, an audit of storage tanks revealed an additional two not
previously disclosed to the carrier and needed to be added.

Summary of Changes Per Policy Year



6 D&O No changes have been made to this coverage through FY 18/19.
For FY 19/20, incumbent carrier quoted renewal rates with nearly a 50% 
increase, the same coverage, but an increase to the SIR from $25,000 to 
$75,000.  A competing carrier has provided a package deal with EPL, broader
coverage and higher limits for an overall reduced price from the incumbent 
carrier, although with a $100,000 SIR as compared to the incumbent carrier.

7 EPL No changes have been made to this coverage through FY 18/19.
For FY 19/20, incumbent carrier quoted renewal rates with nearly a 50% 
increase and the same coverage.  A competing carrier has provided a package 
deal with D&O, broader coverage and higher limits for an overall reduced
price from the incumbent carrier was selected to place coverage with.

8 EWC In FY 16/17, statutory limits were selected and coverage was placed
through CSAC/EIA with an SIR of $500k.
In FY 17/18, a recommendation was made and approved due to 
increase the SIR to $1M as a result of favorable claims history and 
management resulting in a net premium decrease of $314,640 (or 55%).
In FY 18/19, CSAC/EIA proposed a renewal premium of $428,000  
despite another decrease in claims and resolution of many legacy 
claims. To potentially avoid a 10% increase in premium, we went to 
market and solicited other quotes.  Safety National, the Hospitals'
previous carrier for 8 years (via Kern County from 2008 to 2016) was 
quite familiar with our program and eager to regain the business.
Safety National offered a premium of $130,463 with no material 
difference in coverage or a change from the $1M SIR.
For FY 19/20, coverages and SIR remains the same with Safety National
and premium continues to decrease to minimums.

9 Crime No changes in coverage have been made to this coverage for any FY.

10 Cyber/Excess/CEO No changes have been made to this coverage through FY 18/19.
For FY 19/20, higher limits and multiple broadening of coverages have
occurred with the incumbent carriers.

11 Property In FY 17/18, the deductible was increased from $50k to $100k
Additionally, all of the mobile accounting trailers and F Ward were removed
from structural coverage though liability remains.
In FY 18/19, minor changes were made to include an edit to business
interruption coverage, adding/removing leased locations which 
includes tenant improvements and equipment.
For FY 19/20, no changes made to either coverages or the deductible;
however, overall premiums have increased due to hardening of the 
market primarily due to the major fires in N. CA as well as an increase
in EQ costs which is the result of a shrinking market for this type of coverage.

12 Employed Lawyers No changes have been made to this coverage since FY 16/17.

13 Fiduciary Liability No significant changes have been made to this coverage through FY 18/19.



For FY 18/19, added 401(A) Plan though there was no charge until next term.
For FY 19/20, Post Employment Health Plan added which increased premium
along with 401(A) by $500.



PREMIUM FINANCE AGREEMENT
License # 973 9750

A CASH PRICE
(TOTAL PREMIUMS)

$940,386.15

B CASH DOWN 
PAYMENT

$141,000.00

C PRINCIPAL BALANCE
(A MINUS B)

$799,386.15

AGENT
(Name & Place of business)
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC

100 PINE ST STE 1100

SAN FRANCISCO,CA 94111-5113
(415)403-1400 FAX: (415)403-0773

INSURED
(Name & Residence or business)
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
1700 MOUNT VERNON AVE

BAKERSFIELD, CA 93306-4018
(661)862-7587 

Account #:                                       LOAN DISCLOSURE
Additional Policies Scheduled on Page 3

Quote Number: 8971739

ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE
 The cost of your credit as a yearly rate.
 

6.000%

FINANCE CHARGE 
The dollar amount the credit will 
cost you.

$22,147.55

AMOUNT FINANCED
The amount of credit provided to 
you or on your behalf.

$799,386.15

TOTAL OF PAYMENTS
The amount you will have paid after you 
have made all payments as scheduled

$821,533.70

ITEMIZATION OF THE AMOUNT FINANCED: THE 
AMOUNT FINANCED IS FOR APPLICATION TO THE 
PREMIUMS SET FORTH IN THE SCHEDULE OF 
POLICIES UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

YOUR PAYMENT SCHEDULE WILL BE

Number Of Payments Amount Of Payments

10 $82,153.37

When Payments 
Are Due 

Beginning: MONTHLY
08/01/2019

Security: Refer to paragraph 1 below for a description of the collateral assigned to Lender to secure this loan. 
Late Charges: A late charge will be imposed on any installment in default 10 days or more. This late charge will be 5.00% of the installment due.
Prepayment:  If you pay your account off early, you may be entitled to a refund of a portion of the finance charge computed as provided in Sec. 
18635, California Statute or as otherwise allowed by law. The finance charge includes a predetermined interest rate plus a non-refundable 
service/origination fee of $25.00. See the terms below and on the next page for additional information about nonpayment, default and penalties.

The undersigned insured directs IPFS Corporation of California (herein, "Lender") to pay the premiums on the policies described on the Schedule of Policies. In 
consideration of such premium payments, subject to the provisions set forth herein, the insured agrees to pay Lender at the branch office address shown above, 
or as otherwise directed by Lender, the amount stated as Total of Payments in accordance with the Payment Schedule, in each case as shown in the above Loan 
Disclosure. The named insured(s), on a joint and several basis if more than one, hereby agree to the following provisions set forth on pages 1 and 2 of this 
Agreement: 1. SECURITY: To secure payment of all amounts due under this Agreement, insured assigns Lender a security interest in all right, title and interest to 
the scheduled policies, including (but only to the extent permitted by applicable law): (a) all money that is or may be due insured because of a loss under any 
such policy that reduces the unearned premiums (subject to the interest of any applicable mortgagee or loss payee), (b) any unearned premium under each such 
policy, (c) dividends which may become due insured in connection with any such policy and (d) interests arising under a state guarantee fund. 2. POWER OF 
ATTORNEY: Insured irrevocably appoints Lender attorney-in-fact with full power of substitution and full authority upon default to cancel all policies above 
identified, receive all sums assigned to its Lender or in which it has granted Lender a security interest and to execute and deliver on behalf of the insured 
documents, instruments, forms and notices relating to the listed insurance policies in furtherance of this Agreement. 3. POLICY EFFECTIVE DATES: The finance 
charge begins to accrue as of the earliest policy effective date.

NOTICE: A. Do not sign this agreement before you read it or if it contains 
any blank space. B. You are entitled to a completely filled in copy of this 
agreement. C. Under the law, you have the right to pay in advance the full 
amount due and under certain conditions to obtain a partial refund of the 
finance charge. D. Keep your copy of this agreement to protect your legal 

rights.FOR INFORMATION CONTACT THE 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

The undersigned hereby warrants and agrees to Agent's
Representations set forth herein.

POLICY PREFIX
AND NUMBER

EFFECTIVE DATE 
OF POLICY

SCHEDULE OF POLICIES
INSURANCE COMPANY AND GENERAL AGENT

COVERAGE MINIMUM 
EARNED 
PERCENT

POL
TERM

PREMIUM

PENDING 07/01/2019 COLUMBIA CASUALTY CO EXCESS 
PROF 

LIABILITY

25.00% 12 578,576.00
Tax: 18,514.43

$940,386.15

$0.00Broker Fee:

TOTAL:

Commercial 

49 STEVENSON STREET
SUITE 1275
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105
(877)687-9826 FAX: (415)796-6156
CUSTOMER SERVICE: (800)774-8282

IPFS CORPORATION

Signature of Insured or Authorized Agent      DATE                      Signature of Agent                                           DATE

Page 1 of 5(10/17) Copyright 2017 IPFS Corporation ™ 6/6/2019 Web - CACFEE



Insured and Lender further agree that: 4. AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE DATE: This Agreement shall be effective when written acceptance is mailed to the insured 
by Lender. 5. DEFAULT AND DELINQUENT PAYMENTS: If any of the following happens insured will be in default: (a) a payment is not made when it is due, (b) 
a proceeding in bankruptcy, receivership, insolvency or similar proceeding is instituted by or against insured, or (c) insured fails to keep any promise the insured 
makes in this Agreement; provided, however, that, to the extent required by applicable law, insured may be held to be in default only upon the occurrence of an 
event described in clause (a) above. The acceptance by Lender of one or more late payments from the insured shall not estop Lender or be a waiver of the rights 
of Lender to exercise all of its rights hereunder or under applicable law in the event of any subsequent late payment. 6. CANCELLATION: Lender may cancel the 
scheduled policies after providing at least 10 days notice of its intent to cancel or any other required statutory notice if the insured does not pay any installment 
according to the terms of this Agreement or transfers any of the scheduled policies to a third party and the unpaid balance due to Lender shall be immediately 
due and payable by the insured. Lender at its option may enforce payment of this debt without recourse to the security given to Lender. 7. CANCELLATION 
CHARGES: If Lender cancels any insurance policy in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable law, then the insured shall pay Lender a 
cancellation charge equal to $15.00 or the maximum amount permitted by law. If cancellation occurs, the insured agrees to pay a finance charge on the 
outstanding indebtedness at the maximum rate authorized by applicable state law in effect on the date of cancellation until the outstanding indebtedness is paid 
in full or until such other date as required by law. 8. INSUFFICIENT FUNDS (NSF) CHARGES: If insured's check or electronic funding is dishonored for any 
reason, the insured will pay to Lender a fee of $15.00 or the maximum amount permitted by law. 9. MONEY RECEIVED AFTER CANCELLATION: Any 
payments made to Lender after Lender's Notice of Cancellation of the insurance policy(ies) has been mailed may be credited to the insured's account without any 
obligation on the part of Lender to request reinstatement of any policy. Any money Lender receives from an insurance company shall be credited to the balance 
due Lender with any surplus refunded to whomever is entitled to the money. In the event that Lender does request a reinstatement of the policy(ies) on behalf of 
the insured, such a request does not guarantee that coverage under the policy(ies) will be reinstated or continued. Only the insurance company has authority to 
reinstate the policy(ies). The insured agrees that Lender has no liability to the insured if the policy(ies) is not reinstated and Lender may charge a reinstatement 
fee where permitted up to the maximum amount allowed by law. 10. ASSIGNMENT: The insured agrees not to assign this Agreement or any policy listed hereon 
or any interest therein (except for the interest of mortgagees or loss payees), without the written consent of Lender, and that Lender may sell, transfer and assign 
its rights hereunder or under any policy without the consent of the insured, and that all agreements made by the insured hereunder and all rights and benefits 
conferred upon Lender shall inure to the benefit of Lender's successors and assigns (and any assignees thereof). 11. INSURANCE AGENT OR BROKER: The 
insured agrees that the insurance agent or broker soliciting the policies or through whom the policies were issued is not the agent of Lender; and the agent or 
broker named on the front of this Agreement is neither authorized by Lender to receive installment payments under this Agreement nor to make representations, 
orally or in writing, to the insured on Lender's behalf (except to the extent expressly required by applicable law). As and where permissible by law, Lender may 
compensate your insurance agent/broker for assisting in arranging the financing of your insurance premiums. If you have any questions about this compensation 
you should contact your agent/broker. 12. FINANCING NOT A CONDITION: The law does not require a person to enter into a premium finance agreement as a 
condition of the purchase of insurance. 13. COLLECTION COSTS: Insured agrees to pay attorney fees and other collection costs to Lender to the extent 
permitted by law if this Agreement is referred to an attorney or collection agency who is not a salaried employee of Lender, to collect any money insured owes 
under this Agreement. 14. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: The insured agrees that Lender's liability to the insured, any other person or entity for breach of any of 
the terms of this Agreement for the wrongful or improper exercise of any of its powers under this Agreement shall be limited to the amount of the principal 
balance outstanding, except in the event of Lender' gross negligence or willful misconduct. Insured recognizes and agrees that Lender is a lender only and not an 
insurance company and that in no event does Lender assume any liability as an insurer hereunder or otherwise. 15. CLASSIFICATION AND FORMATION OF 
AGREEMENT: This Agreement is and will be a general intangible and not an instrument (as those terms are used in the Uniform Commercial Code) for all 
purposes. Any electronic signature or electronic record may be used in the formation of this Agreement, and the signatures of the insured and agent and the 
record of this Agreement may be in electronic form (as those terms are used in the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act). A photocopy, a facsimile or other paper 
or electronic record of this Agreement shall have the same legal effect as a manually signed copy. 16. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES: The insured 
represents that (a) the insured is not insolvent or presently the subject of any insolvency proceeding (or if the insured is a debtor of bankruptcy, the bankruptcy 
court has authorized this transaction), (b) if the insured is not an individual, that the signatory is authorized to sign this Agreement on behalf of the insured, (c) all 
parties responsible for payment of the premium are named and have signed this Agreement, and (d) there is no term or provision in any of the scheduled policies 
that would require Lender to notify or get the consent of any third party to effect cancellation of any such policy. 17. ADDITIONAL PREMIUM FINANCING: 
Insured authorizes Lender to make additional advances under this premium finance agreement at the request of either the Insured or the Insured’s agent with the 
Insured’s express authorization, and subject to the approval of Lender, for any additional premium on any policy listed in the Schedule of Policies due to changes 
in the insurable risk. If Lender consents to the request for an additional advance, Lender will send Insured a revised payment amount ("Revised Payment 
Amount"). Insured agrees to pay the Revised Payment Amount, which may include additional finance charges on the newly advanced amount, and 
acknowledges that Lender will maintain its security interest in the Policy with full authority to cancel all policies and receive all unearned premium if Insured fails 
to pay the Revised Payment Amount. 18. PRIVACY: Our privacy policy may be found at https://www.ipfs.com/Privacy.aspx. 19. ENTIRE DOCUMENT / 
GOVERNING LAW: This document is the entire Agreement between Lender and the insured and can only be changed in writing and signed by both parties 
except that the insured authorizes Lender to insert or correct on this Agreement, if omitted or incorrect, the insurer's name and the policy number(s). Lender is 
also authorized to correct patent errors and omissions in this Agreement. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is found to be illegal or unenforceable, 
it shall be deemed severed from the remaining provisions, which shall remain in full force and effect. The laws of the State of California will govern this 
Agreement. 20. AUTHORIZATION: The insurance company(ies) and their agents, any intermediaries and the agent / broker named in this Agreement and their 
successors and assigns are hereby authorized and directed by insured to provide Lender with full and complete information regarding all financed insurance 
policy(ies), including without limitation the status and calculation of unearned premiums, and Lender is authorized and directed to provide such parties with full 
and complete information and documentation regarding the financing of such insurance policy(ies), including a copy of this Agreement and any related notices. 
21. WAIVER OF SOVERIGN IMMUNITY: The insured expressly waives any sovereign immunity available to the insured, and agrees to be subject to the laws as 
set forth in this Agreement (and the jurisdiction of federal and/or state courts) for all matters relating to the collection and enforcement of amounts owed under 
this Agreement and the security interest in the scheduled policies granted hereby.
                                                                                AGENT/BROKER REPRESENTATIONS
The agent/broker executing this, and any future, agreements represents, warrants and agrees: (1) installment payments totaling $0.00 and all applicable down 
payment(s) have been received from the insured in immediately available funds, (2) the insured has received a copy of this Agreement; if the agent/broker has 
signed this Agreement on the insured's behalf, the insured has expressly authorized the agent/broker to sign this Agreement on its behalf or, if the insured has 
signed, to the best of the undersigned’s knowledge and belief such signature is genuine, (3) the policies are in full force and effect and the information in the 
Schedule of Policies including the premium amounts is correct, (4) no direct company bill, audit, or reporting form policies or policies subject to retrospective 
rating or to minimum earned premium are included, except as indicated, and the deposit of provisional premiums is not less than anticipated premiums to be 
earned for the full term of the policies, (5) the policies can be cancelled by the insured or Lender (or its successors and assigns) on 10 days notice and the 
unearned premiums will be computed on the standard short rate or pro rata table except as indicated, (6) there are no bankruptcy, receivership, or insolvency 
proceedings affecting the insured, (7) to hold Lender, its successors and assigns harmless against any loss or expense (including attorney fees) resulting from 
these representations or from errors, omissions or inaccuracies of agent/broker in preparing this Agreement, (8) to pay the down payment and any funding 
amounts received from Lender under this Agreement to the insurance company or general agent (less any commissions where applicable), (9) to hold in trust for 
Lender or its assigns any payments made or credited to the insured through or to agent/broker directly or indirectly, actually or constructively by the insurance 
companies and to pay the monies, as well as the unearned commissions to Lender or its assigns upon demand to satisfy the outstanding indebtedness of the 
insured, (10) all material information concerning the insured and the financed policies necessary for Lender to cancel such policies and receive the unearned 
premium has been disclosed to Lender, (11) no term or provision of any financed policy requires Lender to notify or get the consent of any third party to effect 
cancellation of such policy, and (12) to promptly notify Lender in writing if any information on this Agreement becomes inaccurate.

Page 2 of 5(10/17) Copyright 2017 IPFS Corporation ™ 6/6/2019 Web - CACFEE



POLICY PREFIX
AND NUMBER

EFFECTIVE DATE 
OF POLICY INSURANCE COMPANY AND GENERAL AGENT

COVERAGE MINIMUM 
EARNED 
PERCENT

POL
TERM

PREMIUM

PENDING 07/01/2019 NATIONAL FIRE & MARINE INS CO
MED PRO

EXCESS 
PROF 

LIABILITY

25.00% 12 92,400.00
Tax: 2,956.80

PENDING 07/01/2019 ACE PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE C LIABILITY 0.000% 12 6,441.00

PENDING 07/01/2019 LLOYD'S LONDON - CERTAIN UNDERWRITE
AMWINS INS. BROKERAGE OF CA, LLC

DIRECTORS 
& OFFICERS

0.000% 12 90,401.00
Tax: 2,892.83

PENDING 07/01/2019 INTERSTATE FIRE & CASUALTY CO POLLUTION 25.00% 12 12,159.00
Tax: 389.09

PENDING 07/01/2019 ACE AMERICAN INSURANCE CO LIABILITY 0.000% 12 841.00

PENDING 07/01/2019 SAFETY NATIONAL CASUALTY CORPORATIO WORKMENS 
COMP

0.000% 12 126,533.00

PENDING 07/01/2019 FEDERAL INSURANCE CO LAW PROF 
LIABILITY

0.000% 12 1,764.00

PENDING 07/01/2019 HUDSON INSURANCE CO
AMWINS INS. BROKERAGE OF CA, LLC

FIDUCIARY 0.000% 12 6,518.00

$940,386.15TOTAL:

SCHEDULE OF POLICIES
(continued)

Account #:                                       Quote Number: 8971739

AGENT
(Name & Place of business)
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC

100 PINE ST STE 1100

SAN FRANCISCO,CA 94111-5113
(415)403-1400 FAX: (415)403-0773

INSURED
(Name & Residence or business)
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
1700 MOUNT VERNON AVE

BAKERSFIELD, CA 93306-4018
(661)862-7587 

Page 3 of 5(10/17) Copyright 2017 IPFS Corporation ™ 6/6/2019 Web - CACFEE



IPFS Corporation of California 
AUTOMATIC DEBIT AUTHORIZATION

Name & Address of Insured/Borrower: KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY

1700 MOUNT VERNON AVE BAKERSFIELD, CA 93306-4018

Telephone Number: (661) 326-2878

Name & Address of Account Holder (If different from above):

Telephone Number: (   )   - eMail Address:

IPFS Use Only: Quote No.: 8971739 Debit Begins: 08/01/2019

IPFS
49 STEVENSON STREET

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105
Phone: (877)687-9826
FAX: (415)796-6156

Please verify with your bank that the bank routing number for ACH transations is the same as listed on your 
check or deposit slip.

Bank Account Title(Name):    [ ] Checking   or   [ ] Savings

Financial Institution:    ABA #/Routing #: 

Address (City, State, ZIP):    Acct No: 

Number of Payments:         10 Payment Amount: $82,153.37 First Payment Due:       08/01/2019

I hereby authorize IPFS Corporation (IPFS) to initiate electronic debit entries to the account indicated on this form, from the 
financial institution identified above (BANK). I authorize BANK to honor the debit entries initiated by IPFS and debit the 
same to such account. This authority pertains to all financial obligations existing from time to time under the Premium 
Finance Agreement (PFA) I enter into with IPFS, including but not limited to scheduled payments and the cash down 
payment described in the PFA (or) revised payment amounts resulting from revisions to the PFA or otherwise, and 
applicable fees and charges.

The debits for scheduled payments will be in accordance with the schedule of payments disclosed in the PFA, with a debit 
occurring on the First Payment Due Date, and on the subsequent same day of each month (or per the PFA Schedule of 
payments if different) thereafter, until all scheduled payments have been made. If the payment due date falls on a 
weekend of holiday, IPFS will debit the account on the following business day. I understand that funds must be 
available in the account on the date the debit is made.

I understand and agree that each time the BANK rejects a debit entry for Non-Sufficient Funds (NSF) or Account Closed, 
my account with IPFS will be assessed the maximum NSF fee permitted by law not to exceed $40.00. The NSF Fee may 
be electronically debited from my BANK account indicated on this form. I also understand and agree that IPFS may re-
initiate a debit returned NSF up to two more times, and the re-initiated debit may occur on a date other than my regular 
payment due date.

I also understand and agree that this authorization is to remain in force until (1) IPFS receives from me a signed written 
notice of revocation, sent to the IPFS address set forth above by first class mail postage prepaid in such time and manner 
as to afford IPFS a reasonable opportunity to act on it; OR (2) I have received written notification from IPFS that this 
authorization and agreement is terminated for rejection of a debit entry due to NSF or Account Closed. 

By:                                                            Date 
(Account Holder or Authorized Signatory of Account Holder)

Printed or Typed Name:_______________________________________ DBA ___________________________ 

AGREEMENT

Page 4 of 5(10/17) Copyright 2017 IPFS Corporation ™ 6/6/2019 Web - CACFEE



ACH (Automated Clearing House)
GUIDELINES & PROCEDURES

1. For an account to be set up on ACH, insured needs to sign an automatic debit authorization form.
    1a. If form is electronically signed, keep for your records only and do not mail to IPFS.

2. IPFS Needs at least two business days before the next payment due date. If authorization is received less than two 
business days before the next payment due date, insured has to send in a payment for that period and IPFS will initiate 
debit transactions the following installment due date. 

**Send back to: 
IPFS Corporation of California 
49 STEVENSON STREET SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105
Phone: (877)687-9826
FAX: (415)796-6156

Page 5 of 5(10/17) Copyright 2017 IPFS Corporation ™ 6/6/2019 Web - CACFEE



CERTIFICATE OF INCUMBENCY 
 
 
 
I, MONA A. ALLEN, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected or appointed and acting 

Secretary or Clerk of Kern County Hospital Authority (Insured), that I have custody of the 

records of such entity, and that each individual named below is, and was as of the date each 

individual affixed his or her signature to the Premium Finance Agreement, between the Insured 

and Imperial PFS (the “Agreement”), a duly elected or appointed officer of such entity holding 

the title or office set forth opposite his or her name below.  I further certify that: (i) the 

signature set opposite each individual’s name is a true and authentic signature of that 

individual and (ii) each such individual has (and had on the date each such individual affixed his 

or her signature to the Agreement) the authority on behalf of the Insured to enter into the 

Agreement. 

 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Signature 
 
Russell V. Judd 
Chief Executive Officer 
Kern County Hospital Authority 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have duly executed this Incumbency Certificate and affixed Insured’s 

seal hereto this ________________day of ___________________________, 2019. 

 
___________________________________________ 
Mona A. Allen, Authority Board Coordinator 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
  
June 19, 2019  
  
Subject: Proposed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery 
Services (BHRS) for mental health services for patients of the REACH and GROW clinics, physician 
services in BHRS clinics, training, crisis intervention services, and services in the correctional medicine 
setting 
 
Recommended Action: Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed MOU with BHRS for the provision of mental 
health services to Kern Medical and BHRS patients. The effective date of the MOU is July 1, 2019, and is 
for an indefinite term. The MOU may be terminated by either party upon 30 days’ prior written notice.  
 
Kern Medical and BHRS have partnered closely for many years to provide mental health services to the 
Medi‐Cal population in the community.  The outpatient clinics operated by BHRS also serve as the 
primary training site for third and fourth year Kern Medical residents and fellows.  There is no annual 
not to exceed amount for the payment of services.  The provision of services is reciprocal and such 
services will be reviewed annually. 
 
Counsel is unable to approve the MOU as to form, due to numerous nonstandard terms and conditions 
and discrepancies in the MOU. These include without limitation the following: (1) the MOU contracting 
parties should be the County of Kern and the Kern County Hospital Authority. However, the MOU is 
with BHRS, which is a department of the County, not a separate legal entity, and is defined in the MOU 
as a political subdivision of the state of California; (2) the MOU has an indefinite term, yet is subject to 
annual renewal; (3) Kern Medical is required to submit reports from accreditation agencies to BHRS, 
notwithstanding that the reports are confidential under the California Public Records Act; (4) the 
interpretation of the MOU by BHRS governs operations of Kern Medical in violation of the title 22 
regulation that requires the Kern Medical retain professional and administrative responsibility for 
services rendered under a contract; and (5) the MOU states BHRS is liable for the acts or omissions of 
physicians employed by Kern Medical, but neither the County nor BHRS indemnify the hospital 
authority for those acts or omissions. Efforts were made to negotiate different terms to no avail.   
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Kern Medical recommends that your Board approve the MOU with 
BHRS, for the provision of mental health services, and authorize the Chairman to sign.  
 
 
 
 



Memorandum of Understanding Between Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery 

Services and Kern County Hospital Authority is available for viewing upon request 

at: 

 

Kern Medical Administration 

1700 Mt. Vernon Avenue 

661-326-2102 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 7, 2019 
 
Subject:  Community Health Needs Assessment  
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve and adopt the Community Health Needs Assessment.    The purpose 
of the Community Health Needs Assessment is to identify and prioritize significant health needs of the community 
served by Kern Medical.  The health needs identified in this report help to guide the strategic priorities of Kern 
Medical. 
 
The Community Health Needs Assessment process was overseen by the Kern County Community Benefit 
Collaborative.  The Collaborative is comprised of Kern Medical, Delano Regional Medical Center, Dignity Health, 
Adventist Health, Valley Children’s Healthcare and Kaiser Permanente. 
 
Primary data was collected from a group of 41 key community stakeholders.  The community stakeholders were 
asked to prioritize the significant health needs according to the highest level of importance in the community.  
The following 16 health needs were identified: 
 
1. Housing and Homelessness 
2. Mental Health 
3. Access to Care 
4. Economic Insecurity 
5. Substance Use and Misuse 
6. Chronic Diseases 
7. Environmental Pollution 
8. Food Insecurity 

9. Sexually Transmitted Infections 
10. Violence and Injury 
11. Preventive Practices 
12. Dental Care 
13. Birth Indicators 
14. Overweight and Obesity 
15. Alzheimer’s Disease 
16. Unintentional Injuries 

 
Once approved, this report will be widely available on Kern Medical’s website at KernMedical.com. 
 



Community Health Needs Assessment
Kern County Hospital Authority

Board of Governors
June 19, 2019



Community Health Needs Assessment

• The purpose is to identify and prioritize significant 
health needs of the community served by Kern 
Medical



Kern County Community Benefit 
Collaborative

• Kern Medical
• Delano Regional Medical Center
• Dignity Health (Mercy & Memorial)
• Adventist Health (Bakersfield & Tehachapi Valley)
• Valley Children’s Healthcare
• Kaiser Permanente



Data Collected

• Primary Data
• Community Surveys
• 41 Key Community Stakeholders



Secondary Data
• Collected from a variety of local, county & 

state sources
o Demographics
o Social Determinants of health
o Health Care Access
o Birth Indicators
o Leading Causes of Death
o Acute & Chronic Disease
o Health Behaviors
o Mental Heath
o Substance Use & Misuse 
o Preventative Practices



Significant Health Needs

1. Housing & Homelessness: 39% of families spend 30% or 
more of their income on housing 

2. Mental Health: Among adults, 12% had experienced 
serious psych

3. Access to Care: 87% had insurance coverage
4. Economic Insecurity: 23% are at or below the poverty 

level
5. Substance Use & Misuse: Increase in meth & opioid use
6. Chronic Diseases: 16% adults diagnosed as prediabetic 

& 11% diabetic
7. Environmental Pollution: In 2016, 78 bad air days



Significant Health Needs

8. Food Insecurity: 14% experienced food insecurity over 
past year

9. Sexually Transmitted Infections: 172 cases of congenital 
syphilis per 100,000 births (9 objective) 

10. Violence & Injury: 8 homicides per 100,000 (5 objective)
11. Preventive Practices: 44% received flu shot (70% 

objective)
12. Dental Care: 12% not visited a dentist for 5+ years
13. Birth Indicators: 72% received prenatal care in 1st

trimester



Significant Health Needs

14. Overweight & Obesity: 41% of adults & 21% of teens are 
obese

15. Alzheimer’s Disease: Mortality rate 51 per 100,000 (36 
state rate)

16. Unintentional Injuries: 52 per 100,000 (37 objective)



How do we use?

• We use the Community Health Needs Assessment 
as a tool for strategic planning

• Increases our awareness of health needs of Kern 
County



Kern Medical’s Community Health Needs Assessment 2019 

Available upon request 

 

Kern Medical Administration 

1700 Mt. Vernon Avenue 

661-326-2102 



 
 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 19, 2019 
 
Subject: Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee Tina Anderson 
 
Recommended Action: Approve  
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical is requesting approval to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee Tina Anderson, 
as Extra Help Senior Paralegal, for the period ending June 30, 2020, or 960 hours, whichever occurs first, 
effective July 1, 2019. 
 
The Public Employee Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) sets forth post‐retirement service and employment 
requirements for all KCERA retirees returning to work for a KCERA employer.  The authority is a designated 
KCERA employer.  Under PEPRA service requirements, a retiree may be reemployed up to a maximum of 960 
hours per fiscal year, subject to approval by your Board.   
 
In addition to the service requirements, Ms. Anderson is also subject to the employment requirements under 
PEPRA, which provide that a retired public employee is not eligible for post‐retirement employment for a period 
of 180 days following the date of retirement unless the appointment is necessary to fill a critically needed 
position before 180 days have passed and the appointment has been approved by your Board.  The appointment 
may not be placed on the consent agenda. 
 
Ms. Anderson retired effective January 18, 2019.  She worked at Kern Medical for 10 years, as a senior paralegal 
supporting the attorneys who advise Kern Medical and the hospital authority, and has the requisite experience 
and skill set needed to perform the work for which she is being reemployed.  Kern Medical has an urgent need 
to reemploy Ms. Anderson immediately, to ensure the ongoing implementation of the new contracts database 
and drafting and processing of over 100 resident physicians contracts prior to the new academic year.  Ms. 
Anderson was the only paralegal employed by Kern Medical.  She brings an in‐depth knowledge of the how and 
when contracts are processed at Kern Medical and it is critically important that the migration of hundreds of 
contracts to the new system be completed.  Kern Medical staff at multiple levels relies on the accuracy of its 
contracts system for when contracts expire, need to be renewed, or examined for compliance with contract 
terms, etc.  Ms. Anderson is intimately acquainted with the functions of the Legal Services Department.  She will 
be able to provide services immediately without any training.  Ms. Anderson will be reemployed for a limited 
duration to fill a critical need, while Kern Medical recruits a replacement.     
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the reemployment of Tina Anderson, as Extra Help 
Senior Paralegal, effective July 1, 2019. 

 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
June 19, 2019 
 
Subject:  Comments Regarding Budget Variances – April 2019 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
Summary:   
 
The following items have budget variances for the month of April 2019:  
 
Indigent Funding: 
Indigent funding revenue has a favorable budget variance for the month and year‐to‐date due to a decision to 
reserve less revenue from the indigent programs in FY 2019 than was planned when the budget was prepared.  
Additional information received about these programs after the budget was prepared supports a high likelihood 
that  these  funds will  be  received.    This will  also more  properly match  revenue with  the  periods  earned.    In 
addition, a favorable $1.4 million year‐to‐date true‐up entry was posted in April for the Global Payment Program 
(GPP). 
    
Registry Nurses: 
Registry  nurses  expense  has  an  unfavorable  budget  variance  for  the month  and  year‐to‐date.    Kern Medical 
continues to rely on contracted nurse staffing to supplement the nursing departments while maintaining nurse 
recruiting efforts. 
 
Medical Fees: 
Medical fees have a favorable budget variance for the month of April due to reimbursement received from Kern 
Behavioral  Health  and  Recovery  Services  (BHRS)  for  physician  services  that  were  provided  to  BHRS  by  Kern 
Medical  in prior months.   Medical  fees  are over budget on a  year‐to‐date basis  due  to higher  than expected 
costs for Locum Tenens contracted physician services.  
 
Other Professional Fees: 
Other  professional  fees  have  an unfavorable  budget  variance  for April  due  to  a  reclassification of  contracted 
labor  expense  from  the  investment  in  surgery  center  to  contracted  labor  expense.    On  a  year‐to‐date  basis, 
other  professional  fees  are  over  budget  mainly  due  to  higher  than  anticipated  contracted  labor  expenses 
throughout the hospital and clinics.    
 
Supplies Expense: 
Supplies expenses have an unfavorable budget variance for the month of April primarily due to above average 
expenses  for pharmaceuticals  and prostheses.   On  a  year‐to‐date basis,  pharmaceutical  expenses,  prostheses 
expenses, and general surgical supplies expenses are the primary drivers of the unfavorable budget variance. 
 
 

 



Comments Regarding Budget Variances – April 2019 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

 

Purchased Services: 
Purchased  services have a  favorable budget  variance  for  the month primarily  because of  a  reversed  expense 
accrual for a Hall Ambulance invoice received in March.  The invoice was charging Kern Medical $356 thousand 
for 2018 patient offload delays.  These are services that previously were not billed by Hall and no contract exists 
to support these charges.  Purchased services expenses are in line with the budget on a year‐to‐date basis.  
 
Other Expenses: 
Other expenses have a slightly favorable budget variance for the month due to lower than average repairs and 
maintenance expenses.  On a year‐to‐date basis repairs and maintenance expenses and new IT equipment rental 
expenses contribute to an unfavorable budget variance. 
 
Amortization Expense: 
Amortization  expense  has  an  unfavorable  budget  variance  of  $183  thousand  for  April.    Change  Healthcare 
software  was  properly  classified  as  an  intangible  asset  in  September  2018.    However,  corresponding 
amortization  expense  has  not  been  recorded  for  this  asset  each  month.    Therefore,  the  large  increase  in 
amortization expense in April reflects the year‐to‐date true‐up amount needed for this item.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ FINANCIAL REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – APRIL 2019

JUNE 2019



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



Slide 7



Slide 8



Slide 9



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
June 19, 2019 
 
Subject:  Kern County Hospital Authority, Chief Executive Officer Report 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
Summary: 
 
The Chief Executive Officer has provided the attached 3‐month trend Analysis: Volume and Strategic Indicators 
for Kern Medical 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ VOLUMES REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – APRIL 2019

JUNE 2019



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold a closed 
session on June 19, 2019, to consider: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff – Unrepresented Employee: 
Chief Financial Officer (Government Code Section 54957.6)  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
June 19, 2019, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending litigation, 
because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the position 
of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: Two (2) 
Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the 
advice of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not 
limited to, an accident, disaster, incident, or transactional occurrence that might 
result in litigation against the Authority and that are known to a potential plaintiff or 
plaintiffs – 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
June 19, 2019, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending litigation, 
because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the position 
of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Resource 
Anesthesiology Associates of California, A Medical Corporation, a California 
corporation v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-
17-101504 DRL –  
 

 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on June 19, 2019, the premature disclosure of which would create a 
substantial probability of depriving the authority of a substantial economic benefit or 
opportunity.  The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on 
authority trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) –  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 


	06.19.19  09b Freeman Agmt..pdf
	AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	CONTRACT EMPLOYEE
	RECITALS
	5.1.6 UFair Market Value CompensationU.  The compensation provided under section 5.1 represents the parties’ good faith determination of the reasonable fair market value compensation for the services to be provided by Physician under this Agreement.
	Job Description


	EXHIBIT “B”

	06.19.19  14b KCHA 19-20 RN - Program Summary.pdf
	PROPOSED PROGRAM

	06.19.19  14c Matrix of Coverages FY 19-20.pdf
	Sheet1

	06.19.19  16c Kern Medical 2019 CHNA Report Final.pdf
	Executive Summary
	Report Adoption, Availability and Comments

	Introduction
	Background and Purpose
	Service Area
	Project Oversight
	Consultant

	Data Collection Methodology
	Collaborative Process
	Secondary Data Collection
	Primary Data Collection
	Public Comment

	Identification and Prioritization of Significant Health Needs
	Review of Primary and Secondary Data
	Priority Health Needs
	Resources to Address Significant Health Needs
	Impact Evaluation

	Community Demographics
	Population
	Race/Ethnicity
	Language
	Veterans
	Citizenship

	Social Determinants of Health
	Social and Economic Factors Ranking
	Poverty
	Vulnerable Populations
	Median Household Income
	Unemployment
	Free and Reduced Price Meals
	Public Program Participation
	Community Input – Economic Insecurity
	CalFresh Eligibility and Participation
	Food Insecurity
	Community Input – Food Insecurity
	Households
	Homelessness
	Community Input – Housing and Homelessness
	Educational Attainment
	Preschool Enrollment
	Reading to Children
	Parks, Playgrounds and Open Spaces
	Crime and Violence
	Community Input – Violence and Community Safety
	Air Quality
	Community Input – Environmental Pollution

	Health Care Access
	Health Insurance Coverage
	Sources of Care
	Difficulty Accessing Care
	Access to Primary Care Community Health Centers
	Delayed or Forgone Care
	Lack of Care Due to Cost, for Children
	Community Input – Access to Health Care
	Dental Care
	Community Input – Dental Care

	Birth Indicators
	Births
	Delivery Paid by Public Insurance or Self-Pay
	Teen Birth Rate
	Prenatal Care
	Low Birth Weight
	Premature Birth
	Mothers Who Smoked Regularly During Pregnancy
	Infant Mortality
	Breastfeeding
	Community Input – Birth Indicators

	Leading Causes of Death
	Life Expectancy at Birth
	Leading Causes of Death
	Heart Disease and Stroke
	Cancer
	Chronic Lower Respiratory Disease
	Unintentional Injury
	Community Input – Unintentional Injury
	Alzheimer’s Disease
	Community Input – Alzheimer’s Disease
	Diabetes
	Pneumonia and Influenza
	Liver Disease
	Drug Overdose
	Homicide
	Suicide
	HIV

	Acute and Chronic Disease
	Hospitalization Rates by Diagnoses
	Emergency Room Rates by Diagnoses
	Diabetes
	High Blood Pressure
	Heart Disease
	Asthma
	Cancer
	HIV
	Coccidioidmycosis
	Community Input – Chronic Diseases

	Health Behaviors
	Health Behaviors Ranking
	Health Status
	Disability
	Sexually Transmitted Infections
	Teen Sexual History
	Community Input – Sexually Transmitted Infections
	Overweight and Obesity
	Fast Food
	Soda/Sugar-Sweetened Beverage (SSB) Consumption
	Adequate Fruit and Vegetable Consumption
	Access to Fresh Produce
	Physical Activity
	Community Input – Overweight and Obesity

	Mental Health
	Satisfaction with Quality of Life
	Mental Health
	Mental Health Care Access
	Community Input – Mental Health

	Substance Use and Misuse
	Cigarette Smoking
	Alcohol
	Marijuana Use, Youth
	Opioid Use
	Community Input – Substance Use and Misuse

	Preventive Practices
	Flu Vaccines
	Immunization of Children
	Mammograms
	Pap Smears
	Colorectal Cancer Screening
	Community Input – Preventive Practices

	Attachment 1. Benchmark Comparisons
	Attachment 2. Community Stakeholder Interviewees
	Attachment 3. Community Survey Report
	Attachment 4. Resources to Address Significant Needs

	06.19.19  16c Kern Medical 2019 CHNA Report Final.pdf
	Executive Summary
	Report Adoption, Availability and Comments

	Introduction
	Background and Purpose
	Service Area
	Project Oversight
	Consultant

	Data Collection Methodology
	Collaborative Process
	Secondary Data Collection
	Primary Data Collection
	Public Comment

	Identification and Prioritization of Significant Health Needs
	Review of Primary and Secondary Data
	Priority Health Needs
	Resources to Address Significant Health Needs
	Impact Evaluation

	Community Demographics
	Population
	Race/Ethnicity
	Language
	Veterans
	Citizenship

	Social Determinants of Health
	Social and Economic Factors Ranking
	Poverty
	Vulnerable Populations
	Median Household Income
	Unemployment
	Free and Reduced Price Meals
	Public Program Participation
	Community Input – Economic Insecurity
	CalFresh Eligibility and Participation
	Food Insecurity
	Community Input – Food Insecurity
	Households
	Homelessness
	Community Input – Housing and Homelessness
	Educational Attainment
	Preschool Enrollment
	Reading to Children
	Parks, Playgrounds and Open Spaces
	Crime and Violence
	Community Input – Violence and Community Safety
	Air Quality
	Community Input – Environmental Pollution

	Health Care Access
	Health Insurance Coverage
	Sources of Care
	Difficulty Accessing Care
	Access to Primary Care Community Health Centers
	Delayed or Forgone Care
	Lack of Care Due to Cost, for Children
	Community Input – Access to Health Care
	Dental Care
	Community Input – Dental Care

	Birth Indicators
	Births
	Delivery Paid by Public Insurance or Self-Pay
	Teen Birth Rate
	Prenatal Care
	Low Birth Weight
	Premature Birth
	Mothers Who Smoked Regularly During Pregnancy
	Infant Mortality
	Breastfeeding
	Community Input – Birth Indicators

	Leading Causes of Death
	Life Expectancy at Birth
	Leading Causes of Death
	Heart Disease and Stroke
	Cancer
	Chronic Lower Respiratory Disease
	Unintentional Injury
	Community Input – Unintentional Injury
	Alzheimer’s Disease
	Community Input – Alzheimer’s Disease
	Diabetes
	Pneumonia and Influenza
	Liver Disease
	Drug Overdose
	Homicide
	Suicide
	HIV

	Acute and Chronic Disease
	Hospitalization Rates by Diagnoses
	Emergency Room Rates by Diagnoses
	Diabetes
	High Blood Pressure
	Heart Disease
	Asthma
	Cancer
	HIV
	Coccidioidmycosis
	Community Input – Chronic Diseases

	Health Behaviors
	Health Behaviors Ranking
	Health Status
	Disability
	Sexually Transmitted Infections
	Teen Sexual History
	Community Input – Sexually Transmitted Infections
	Overweight and Obesity
	Fast Food
	Soda/Sugar-Sweetened Beverage (SSB) Consumption
	Adequate Fruit and Vegetable Consumption
	Access to Fresh Produce
	Physical Activity
	Community Input – Overweight and Obesity

	Mental Health
	Satisfaction with Quality of Life
	Mental Health
	Mental Health Care Access
	Community Input – Mental Health

	Substance Use and Misuse
	Cigarette Smoking
	Alcohol
	Marijuana Use, Youth
	Opioid Use
	Community Input – Substance Use and Misuse

	Preventive Practices
	Flu Vaccines
	Immunization of Children
	Mammograms
	Pap Smears
	Colorectal Cancer Screening
	Community Input – Preventive Practices

	Attachment 1. Benchmark Comparisons
	Attachment 2. Community Stakeholder Interviewees
	Attachment 3. Community Survey Report
	Attachment 4. Resources to Address Significant Needs

	06.19.19  16c Kern Medical 2019 CHNA Report Final.pdf
	Executive Summary
	Report Adoption, Availability and Comments

	Introduction
	Background and Purpose
	Service Area
	Project Oversight
	Consultant

	Data Collection Methodology
	Collaborative Process
	Secondary Data Collection
	Primary Data Collection
	Public Comment

	Identification and Prioritization of Significant Health Needs
	Review of Primary and Secondary Data
	Priority Health Needs
	Resources to Address Significant Health Needs
	Impact Evaluation

	Community Demographics
	Population
	Race/Ethnicity
	Language
	Veterans
	Citizenship

	Social Determinants of Health
	Social and Economic Factors Ranking
	Poverty
	Vulnerable Populations
	Median Household Income
	Unemployment
	Free and Reduced Price Meals
	Public Program Participation
	Community Input – Economic Insecurity
	CalFresh Eligibility and Participation
	Food Insecurity
	Community Input – Food Insecurity
	Households
	Homelessness
	Community Input – Housing and Homelessness
	Educational Attainment
	Preschool Enrollment
	Reading to Children
	Parks, Playgrounds and Open Spaces
	Crime and Violence
	Community Input – Violence and Community Safety
	Air Quality
	Community Input – Environmental Pollution

	Health Care Access
	Health Insurance Coverage
	Sources of Care
	Difficulty Accessing Care
	Access to Primary Care Community Health Centers
	Delayed or Forgone Care
	Lack of Care Due to Cost, for Children
	Community Input – Access to Health Care
	Dental Care
	Community Input – Dental Care

	Birth Indicators
	Births
	Delivery Paid by Public Insurance or Self-Pay
	Teen Birth Rate
	Prenatal Care
	Low Birth Weight
	Premature Birth
	Mothers Who Smoked Regularly During Pregnancy
	Infant Mortality
	Breastfeeding
	Community Input – Birth Indicators

	Leading Causes of Death
	Life Expectancy at Birth
	Leading Causes of Death
	Heart Disease and Stroke
	Cancer
	Chronic Lower Respiratory Disease
	Unintentional Injury
	Community Input – Unintentional Injury
	Alzheimer’s Disease
	Community Input – Alzheimer’s Disease
	Diabetes
	Pneumonia and Influenza
	Liver Disease
	Drug Overdose
	Homicide
	Suicide
	HIV

	Acute and Chronic Disease
	Hospitalization Rates by Diagnoses
	Emergency Room Rates by Diagnoses
	Diabetes
	High Blood Pressure
	Heart Disease
	Asthma
	Cancer
	HIV
	Coccidioidmycosis
	Community Input – Chronic Diseases

	Health Behaviors
	Health Behaviors Ranking
	Health Status
	Disability
	Sexually Transmitted Infections
	Teen Sexual History
	Community Input – Sexually Transmitted Infections
	Overweight and Obesity
	Fast Food
	Soda/Sugar-Sweetened Beverage (SSB) Consumption
	Adequate Fruit and Vegetable Consumption
	Access to Fresh Produce
	Physical Activity
	Community Input – Overweight and Obesity

	Mental Health
	Satisfaction with Quality of Life
	Mental Health
	Mental Health Care Access
	Community Input – Mental Health

	Substance Use and Misuse
	Cigarette Smoking
	Alcohol
	Marijuana Use, Youth
	Opioid Use
	Community Input – Substance Use and Misuse

	Preventive Practices
	Flu Vaccines
	Immunization of Children
	Mammograms
	Pap Smears
	Colorectal Cancer Screening
	Community Input – Preventive Practices

	Attachment 1. Benchmark Comparisons
	Attachment 2. Community Stakeholder Interviewees
	Attachment 3. Community Survey Report
	Attachment 4. Resources to Address Significant Needs




